BHAVNAGAR ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Notes Forming Purt of Financial Statemenks For the year ented on 315t March, 2016

" Note No.11 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
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Amount (T in Lakhs) Amount R in Lakhs)
As At As At
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
’ CWIP - Building | 549.31 463.30
- CWIP - Plant & Machinary . 2,75.157.75 2,60,221.08
’ CWIP - General Civil Work 45,489.18 42,105.61
gRaf ~ 3 CWIP - Expenditure Pending For Allocation
> CWIP - Bomrowing cost ; 91,785.79 60,247.84
v CWIP - Preoperalive Expenses and Coasullancy fazs, ele 2,804.38 2,481.74
A CWIP - Incidsntal Expanses : 10.896.40 5,359.06
s Total £,26,692.82 3,70,888.63
Notes No.12 INTANGIBLE ASSET UNDER DEVELOPIENT - :
Amount (£ in Lakhs) * Amount (¥ in Lakhs)
As At As At
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Right of Use of Land for Cnshore pipe line of Sea Water & Sweet Water 38.24 38.23 '
- Total - 38.24 38.23 i
S i
Notes No.13 LONG TERIM LOANS & ADVARCES D ‘
Amount (r in Lakhs) Amount (¥ In Lakhs)
b As At As At ‘
R e harch,-2048— - —— ———-3-1511&&[1:!1;2015- ===
Capital Advance ) _ '
Secured, considered gnod 5,725.77 6,809.35
Unsecured, coasiders good 1.261.50 $41.81
Security Deposil,(Unsecured,considrred 5o0d) 926.24 958.20 ‘
Advance Income tax 12.01 4289 |
Advance FiT - 0.10 '
Prpaidexoenses - 4.59 2.68 .
i Total 2 S T S Ee0Y . 8,355.03 '
Notes No.14 OTHER KON -CURRENT ASSETS e
Ariount (¢ in Lakns) Amount (€ in Lakhs) 4
. As At As At
J1st March, 2016 J1st.March, 2015 ‘
Group Gratuity Fund 23.28 il 15.80 ,
Total . 23.28 15.80 - ‘
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3 Notes No. 15 INVENTORY B ]
Ameunt; (¥ in Lakhs) Amount (% in Lakhs)
As At As At
1 34st March, 2016 31st Mareh, 2015
Stock of Light Dleset Gil * 134.72 25.06
- Stock of FO ; 83.80 -
- Stock of Diese! & Ges ' 0.48 -
> ¥ "
- e Total 212.00 25.08
’ x H
® Notes No.- 16 C/ASH & BANK BALANCE
Amount (Y in Lakhs) Amount (T in Lakhs)
b | : As At As At
} J1st Marcn, 2016 J1st March, 2015
- A.Cash & Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Schedule Banks : 25867 821.84
S Cashon Hend . . 0.22 0.41
Fixed Deposit with Banks* . Sete 'S 217
Py B. Other Balances
Bank deposit with mere than 12 manth maturity : 0.22 0.22
, ) Total 361.2% 824.54
< i " out of which 1,17,169 is Held as lien by bank against issuance of bank guranies =l o
Notes No. -17 SHORT TERM LOAN & ADVANCES i
2 T T T S T L T T T S T T S S S S T T e T s e e e e s s s m e e e s e —— e AMOUN S (TN Lo NS ) -.-‘.momt-(\"’-.'rlzkhs)'—— -
A= At As At
31st Narch, 2016 J1st Mareh, 2015
Advances recoverable in cash or %ind '
Unsecured, considered good’ 8.44 10.60
B Prepaid expenses 6.47 5.55
5 Total 14.31 16.16
Notes No.- 18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Amount (Tin Lakhs) Amount (7 in Lakhs)
. : : . As At As At
:@ Sy . < . 34st March, 2016 1st March, 2015
- Interest Accrued but not Due on Fived Deposit 0.14 0.08
: Other Receivables (Rent) 1.41 1.52
Total A et I 1.60
»
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BHAVNAGAR ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of Financial 8

Note 19 Employee benefits expense

ements For the year ended on 31st March, 2016

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31
31st March, 2018 March, 2015
Amount (T in Lakhs) Amount (2 in Lakhs)
B Salanes and wages . 457.88 374.72
- Conlributions to provident and other funds 19.21 17.14
o Staif welfare expenses 5.55 5.26
i & Sub Tetal 482,64 387.12
- less: Transiered to CWIP - incidental Expenses 472,40 387.38
. | Balance shown in Statement of Profit and Loss 10.24 ) 9.73
; 1

Note 20 Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
31st Mareh, 2016

Forthe yearended 31
March, 2015

Amount (T in Lakhs)

Amount (2 in Lakhs)

(a) Borrowing Cost - Opening Balaicz

60,247.84 | 34.467.94
[Add: Barrowing cost during (e Yernr 31,637.95 | 25,779.90
‘ Sub Yot 91,765.79 | 60,247.84
|
less: Transfered lo CWAP - Sorrewing Costs 91,785.79 60.247.84

® & & & @ «

Balance shownin~ Statemernt of Proftand Loss

Note 21 Depreciation and amnertisation expense

Particulars

For the yoar suded
31st March. 2015

For the yearended 31
March, 2015

Amount (X in Lakhs)

Amount (¥ in Lakhs)

Depreciation and amortisaiion expense

less: Transfered to CWIP - Incidental Expenses
Balance shown in Slatement of Profil and Loss

118.57 323.55
115.65 318.21
3.92 5.34
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Notes Forming Part of Financlal Stzterients For the year snded on 24s!

Note22 Other expenses

BHAVNAGAR ENERGY CCGMFPANY LiMITED

March, 2016

<185

Particulars [ For the year ended For the ydar ended 31
31st March, 2018 MarcTw. 2015
Amount (R in Lakhs) Amount (R in Lakhs)
- |Corporate Socia! Responsibilily Expenses - 0.0¢
" Electricity Exp. (Site office) 1.958.20 452.40
General & Adminstration charges 114,69 104.02
P i LDO Consumption 1,517.86 =
& FO Consumption 262,30 5
ae: Sh Diesel Consumption 0,67 2
L, i Insurance Exp. 3.85 277
E g Legal & Professional Fees 60.11 13.89
Payment lo Auditors 2.08 1.54
& Plantation 10.49 8.89 |
Repairs & Maintainznce Planl 0.67 -
3 Repairs & Maintainance Building 8.69 24,79 |
Repairs & Maintainance Olhers 60.87 14,07 |
3 Rent | 19.33 19.23 |
Rates & Taxes ’ 2.17 4.33
3 Security Charges (Project Sile) 205.65 256.91
Share Capital Issue Expenses 6.78 14.93
o Sitting Fees & Direclor Exps. 4.90 1.53
" Travelling & Conveyance 51.60 54.55
R Travelling Expenses (Director) 0.85 1.46
Waler Expenses 115.59 76.44
Daonation Exp 121.50 70.00
2 EXCessISAGR PIv. 1T === 1 {0.48) _ =
Loss on sale of Assel 0.01 -
3 . Sub Total 4,633.38 1,122.73
Less: Transfered fo CWIP - incidental Expenses 4,485.44 1,035.40
= Balance shown in Statement of Profit 2nd Loss 142.94 87.33
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Note No. 23 Notes on Financial statements

1) Capital Commitment

Particulars : As At As At
; 31* March, 2016 31" March, 2015
Rs.in Lakhs, Rs.in Lakhs.
Estimated Amount of Contracts (Net of Advances)

o, ining to be executed on Capital ‘Account and '41,841.13 41,821.15
\_ "7+ Jided for.

i3,

2) |\ ' 2 the year, the Company has acquired right of use and occupaticn of 100 square meter open land

? he purpose of serge stand pipes and allied construction theretc for sweet water from Mr.
"nbhzi Bhikhabhai Bagad {the Owner) for 25 ye=ars from 25™ Februery, 2016 to 24™ February, 2041
fz\ -otal cumulative occupation charges of Rs. 2,50,000/-. In absence of applicabiiity of Accounting
Standard Rules 2006 and AS 19 which is not applicable for use of land, the total cumulative occupation
charges is shown as advance occupation charges and proportionate amount related to current financial
year is charged and transferred to CWIP for further capitalization on Commercial Operation Date.

¥
{

3) Contingent Liability not provided for:

. The Company has entered inte a Purchase Power Agreement {PPA) with Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd.
(GUVNL) for sale of power. As per the agreement, scheduled Commercial Operation Date (COD) for Unit

4B M B A A =

:-and-UniHl-war:rS:C-‘-!.—ZOiS-an3‘18705.-201‘3‘resp‘e‘ctive‘l\raﬁd‘liqniﬁat’eti'dm'ﬁ‘g—s‘a €5 (LD) can be levied; in
case of delay in achievement of COD, as per the terms of agreement. .

The Company has informed GUVIVL 25 well s Government of Gujarat 2bcut delay in COD and requested
to extend the date of CCD and to condona the delay in a view that the delay s due to reasons beyond
the contrel ¢f Managament of the Company and it should be treated as Force Majeure. As the actual
period of delay in project execution would be known only after achieving COD and in view of the fact
that GUVNL s not raised any clalin towsrds LD till date of signing o1 Bzlance Sheet, the amount of LD,
if 2t 3l imposed, would be ascertained only after Commercial Operation Date.

ii. Shapoorji Pallonji & Co. Ltd. (SPCL) has charged service tax @ 10.30% on their invoice till 1% July, 2012 .
towards Generzl, Civil & Pilling works, which in terms of legal-opinion obtained by the company, service

tax is chargeable on'y @ 4.12%. The differential amount is Rs.869.91 Lakhs which company has not
acknowledged as.debt. '

iii.

Shapeorji Pallonji & Co. Ltd. (SPCL) has raised extra claim towards work escalation of Rs. 4728 lacs,
service tax of Rs. 966 lacs and other extra work of Rs.5236 lacs resulting total claim amounts to Rs.
10830 lacs which is beyond the contract terms and hence, not acknowiedged as debt by the Company.

iv. The Company has acquired land of 22112 sq. meters for approach roed to site from private owners of
land. The Company had initiaily paid Rs 11.04 Lakhs @ Rs.29 per sq. meter plus other expenses to all the
lznd owners. In F.¥.2612-14, the compsny paid Rs. 9.52 lakhs @& Rs.246 per 5q. meter plus other
cxpenses 1or 3832 sa. meters of land. During the vear, the company hus paid Rs. 26.86 Lakhs @ Rs.246
per sq. meter for 10,922 sq. meters of land. However, owners of 7252 sq. meters of land have not
agreed.to accapt the consideration @ Rs.275/- (Rs. 29 + Rs. 246) per <q. meter and have raised their
additional claira @ Re. 721 per so. meter [Rs.750 - Rs.28). The estimatad differential amount is Rs.53.01
Lakhs.

7> 2
7 &M
| o~
o O
#Cierierzd Accountanist
|

\[ AHMEDABA_Q_l

£

P

A M s s e S

"W R & & @ M A8 & & " O M

&

@ &



V. The co. has acquired sdditional land of 22424.00 sq.rmters, As per D, Collector, Bhavnagar jorder No.
speciai LA.O. Case no. 3/2C09,Rs. 10.51 lakhs @27 fsa. raetor along with ‘zolesiam charged and rate
difference is payable. However, land ownars have refised to accept the amount and claimed| Rs. 85.69

lakhs @ 350/~ sq. mater which the company has nut

vi. The Company has entrusted the work of laying 6210 rmm dia /700 mm dia MS pipe line for sw
from Nagdhanimba Patiya to BECL power plznt, Village Padva in Bhavnagar district toe GWIL ad
work: The company has to pay compensation to farmers towards damage of Trees and d
fencing, earther bund, etc. The estimated remaining amount payable towards tha compen
Treesand for damage o7 fencing, earthen bund, etc. is Rs. 2.23 lacs. é

acnowledge the debt.
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vii. As per the contract with BHEL for manufacture, supply, erection and commission of Boiler, Turbine and

Generator, the contract price is subject to variation in terms of material and labour. Howevsg

in case

o
the project is delayed for the reasons attributable to supplier, the price variation during extendet period
shall be absorbed by the supplier. As the project is delayed beyond the completion scheédule as
mentioned in the contract, the claim of BHEL towards price veriation after 18.05.12 (COD fpr Unit 1)

amounting to Rs.1177.66 Lakhs has not been accepted by the Company.

viii. The Company has entrusted the work of Sea Water Intake, Outfall and Circulating Water Syst@m to M/s
MARG Ltd. vide ietter of Award dated 20th July 2011, As per the scheduie, the work Was to be
completed within 22 months from the date of Lotter of Award. ie by 20th May, Z013. However, M/s
MARG Ltd couldn’t complete the work due to severe cash crunch faced by them and local resjstance of
nearby villagers for laying down of pipelines. Since M/s MARG Ltd. could not execute the work within

et

B

o

R K"

time-schedule;the-Company-had-esked-N/s- MARG-1:t

Grio—stopthe work:-Being-aggrieved M /ls-MARG -

Ltd. filed petition in the High Court of Gujarat on 2 plea that reasen for delay was diuo o local tgsistance
and non-availability of ROC and further praved for allowing them to zontinue the work|dssigned.
Honorable High Court of Gujarat directed M/s MAEG Ltd. to take course of Arbitration to pettle the

issues. Arbitration Tribunal was appeintac jointly by both parties and have placed their clai

E hefore

ul
the Tribunal. M/s. Marg has claimed Rs. 31078.42 lacs towards price escalation, finanjding and
C

administrative cost, etc. The claim of M/s Ma rg Ltd. has been denied and not accepted by the

Jompany

in their submission dated 29.02.16 to the Tribunal and hence not acknowiedged as debt. Furthier, BECL
has claimed Rs. 91192.69 lacs under arbitration towards interest cost and loss of profit dua tp|delay in
completion of work, alternative arrangement of sweet water in place of sea water, finafding and

administrative cost, elc. The proceedings of Arbitration Tribunal have cornmenced and going of.

4) The company, in order to commission the project, has opted to divide the project in 9 (Nine] different

recovered in case of delay by contractors in complation of work. The company, as decid

packages and contracts were given to various contractors with the claure of Liquidated Dar.:Ege to be
meeting of Board of Directors dated 21/03/2012, in order to avoid delay in commissioning t

! in the
oroject,

payment should be madé in a manner that comvany should be in position to recover the dmount of
Liquidated Damages. Pending the decision or levy of Linuidated Damages from Contracters. np action /
accounting entry has been done for recovery of Liquidated Damages. The amount is not quantifiable at

this stage.

5) Based on information available with the Com pany, there are no suppliers who are registered as Micro,
Small or Medium enterprises under “The Micro, Small & Medium enterprises development Ac{ 2006” as

on 31* March, 2016 .
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6) Financial Derivatives;

The Company uses foreign currency forware contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency

fluctuations relating te payment to be made to the contractors for import of capital goods. The use of

foreign currency forward contract is governed by the company’s strategy approved by the Board of
< Directors, which provide principles on the use of such forward contracts consistent with the Company’s
. Risk Management Policy.

7) Employee Benefits

T T - Y T

' el
The liability on account of gratuity and iesve encashment is accounted as per AS 15 (revised) dealing
with employee benefits.
The Company operates & defined benefit nlan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligibie employees, which
provides a lump sum payment (o vested employees at refirement, deach, incapacitation or termination
of employment, of an amount bosed on the respective employee’s salery and tenure of employment.
Status of gratuity plan and leave encashment as required under AS 15 (revised):
ne Al L L I {fs. in Lakhs)
| Particulars | Asat31% March, 2016 As at 32% March, 2015
Gratuity Leave Gratuity lLeave
= - T Encashment Encashment
1. Reconciliation of opening and clesing
balance of the present value of the
defined benefit oblizaticn
Obligation at the beginning of the vear 19.76 6.55 14.59 4.57
| Currant service cost | 5.23 3.43 INil 231
| interestCost ‘ 1.58 0.52 0.79 | 0.28
| Renefits paid il (0.65) Nil | (0.35)
' Net Actuaria! loss / (gain) Recognised (5.36) 026 | 438 (0.26)
Obligation at the end of the vear ! 21.3 10.07 19.76 6.55
2. Reconciliation of opening and closingj;
balance of the fair walue of plan !
f - assets: ‘ |
i Fair value of Plamn Assets as at | 15.68 | Nil ! 14.59 Nil
| the Beginnlng of the year §l.Ly f | I
| Coitributions 148 Nil 0.22 Nil
‘ Actuaria] gain / {loss) on plen assats | 148 | Nil . 0.87 Nil
Fair Value Plan assets ¢t the end of the ! 24.64 | Nil 15.68 Nil
Year {
3. Reconciliation of the Present value of
defined benefit ! ;
oblization and Fair value of plan assets |
Present Value of Defined Benefit - 19.76 10.07 19.76 6.55
3, Obligations at the end of the year
A Fair Value Plan assets 2t the end of the 15.68 Nil 15.68 Nil
. Year -
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized-in 4.08 (10.07) |  (4.08) (6.55)
-:':::—-——_”_-—-‘--n'-.:'\l
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Consortium Banks to defer CCD and repayment schaduie, Arec rdingly Consortium banks have approved
revision in repayment date frarn 30.09.2015 to 31.12.2016

92 9D

14) Additional information {70 the extant applicabiz! ] ‘ As'at 31* March, 2016
a. Payment to Auditors- ) . o {Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
D o Particulars A 201516 B 2014-15
o I Statutory Aucit Fees o ST T 206 | o 1.54
! 1 t\ Other Certification werk | 31]:1_!,-_ 1.01
& Reimbursement Of expenses | - | ’ 0.18
@D o
" b. Value of Import on C.I.F. Basis in respect of Capita] Goods- (Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
D Particulars : i 2015-16 | B 2014-15 |
Capital Goods | N 225.21
39 i s { .
. Asthe company has not <tarted any manufacturing or trading activity, the information as required
under Section 129 of schedule |Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of quantity CiF value of
,' imports, expenditure in foreign currency etc. is not given.
!l 15) No provision for Wealth tax is made in absence of Wealth Tax liability zomputed as per Weaith Tax Act
¢ 16) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Lakh. v s o e
¢ 17) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necesszry o correspond with current
year’s classification / disclosure,
. As per our report of even date sttached For and on behalf of Board of Diractors
|
f DGSM & Co. ~%’n/a .
| Chartered Accountants Chairman .
i) A A
¥ { 'd
5 VAP
| Devesh Shah S.K.PAUL
i Partner Mangging Director
f Membership No. 036830 /
[ ) | AHIMIZDARAG >
| o 3\l\__f:z:_vl;:z.tx_Ar‘,‘ sl ¥
i o Jina] S( an
! Dy.Ceneral Manager {F&A)
] & CE0
2 / :2
v'”‘ -
: ~Lhprs
Bhoomika Sharma
Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinag=r
’ Date :July 12, 2016 ate :lJuly 12, 201
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o ' BHAVNAGAR ENERGY CONMPANY LIMITED

“‘O 3R° FLOOR, BLOCK NO. 8, UDYOG BHAVAN, SECTOR ~ 11, GANDHINAGAR -

l 382011PHONE NOS: 079-232-41321 FAX NO: (079) 23245506

9 . Email: info@beci.in Websita: wveir.becl.in,

| | CIN — U40102GJ2007SGC051396

ATTENDANCE SLIP

|

— .' j

Name of the Shareholder:- J
|

FoloNo.  [DPID/ClientiC- | No.ofShares.

o

For Physical | For Dematholding
| Holding |
l

Pl e Rt S

i il il e — '7"-—-—1,.--—’-}.7* g—w“m‘ y

| / We hereby record my / our presence at the 8" Annual General Meeting held on
Wednesday, 09.12.2015 at 01:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at
3" Floor, Block No.:8, Udyog Bhavan, Sector — 11, Gandhinagar — 382 011, Gujarat,
as Shareholder / Proxy.

4

Name of Proxy (Block Letters). Signature of the Shareholders/
Proxy.
Notes:

1. Shareholder / Prexy holder wishing to attend the mesting must bring duly

signed attendance slip to the meeling and hand over the same at the

entrance.
2. Shareholder / Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should carry his
copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.







FGRAT NO. MGT - 14

& PrOXY FORW
[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of tha Companics Aci, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the

j@ ~ Companies (Management and Admirizie=ii=a) 2 0a 2014.]
5 CIN — U40102GJ2007:4=£051396

! Name of the Company: BHAVNAGAR ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

3 Registered Office: 3™ Floor, Block No.:8, Uidyog Bhavan, Sector — s

. Gandhinagar - 382 011, Gujarat

"@ | Name(s) of Sharei':ol'der(s) ; I —’
J | |
o Registered Ad'dres_s_A o —__ ______ - __ - - 3
J Email ID:

® Y SIS b

l Folio No. /DP ID / ClientID. | S RO T

. I / We, being the Member(s) holding _ ____ equity shares of the above
: named Company, hereby appoint the following as my / our proxy to altend and vote
9 (on a poll) for me/us and on my /our behalf at the 8" Annua: General Meeting to be
0 held on Wednesday. 09.12.2015 at 01:00 p-m. at the Registered Office of the

Company at 3™ Floor, Block No.:8, Udyog Bhavan, Sactor - 11. Gandhinagar — 382
¥ 011, Gujarat and at any zdjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

1. Name: . Address: _ e | -
E-mail ID: Signature: -
9 Or failing him
¢
>
I 2. Name: _ Address:__
& E-mail ID: Signature:
E ————— e = e~ S S U B e P e
@' Or failing him
g 3. Name: - Address :
E-mail ID: Signature:
Item Description of Resolution ! Optional* '
No. A S
i Ordinary Business o | For Against
> 1 Adoption of Annual Accounts for the financial 4
year 2014-15. N ]
2 Re-appointment of Shri S. P. Desai (DIN- |
05344270) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. | S | N
3 Re-appointment of Shri J. P, Gupta, IAS (DIN-| |

S
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Cemyp “the Coampany”) which comprise 2rlance Sheet a;
31, 2017, of Profit and Loos inciuding other comrnrehensive in
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Franagement’s Reaper sibility for the Ind AS Finaneial ¢
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion cn these Ind AS {inancial statements

based on our aucdit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the zudit report under the

provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan end perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS {inancial statements are free

from material misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatcment of the Ind AS financial statements, whethe:r due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers irternal financial control
relevant to the Corapany’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by

the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the







accounting principles genzeraily sccepted in Iindia inchading 'nd AS, of the financial
position of the Company ns at Merch 21, 2017, and its financial performance
!

including other comprehensive incom:z, ite cash fiows and the changes in equity for

the year ended on that date. N ;

J¥mphasis of Matters

1. We draw attention to the Note No. 40 to the financial siatements relating to non
fulfillment of condition of the letter of Ministry of ‘Invironment and forest,
government of India dt. 10t February 2010 as regards to an amount cf Rs. 8.40
Crores required to be earmarked as caue time capital cest of Corporate Social
Responsibility Programme and subsequently a recurring expenditure of Rs. 1.70
Crores per amnum till the operation of the Plent for Corporate Social

Responsibility activitics.

2. We draw to- attention to Note No. 38 in respect of Liguidaied Damages,
according to the letter of GOG Energy and Petrochiemicals Dapartinent dt
03..01.2017, company needs to recover Liquidated Damages from the different

vendors who have delayed in exccution of work, hewever, till date of Audit

eport no Liquidated Damages have been recovered.

3. We draw attention to Note No. 44 in the financial statements in respect of
accumulzated losses of the company of Rs. 48,066.28 Lakh and the financial
statements being prepared on-going concern basis our opinion is not modified

in this respect.

4. We draw to attention to Note No. 45 in the financial statements in respect of
Tariff Petition filled with GERC in respect of approvat of Tariff and for same
subsequent submission of documents as per requircment of CERC are filled on

)

10.08.2015 and final verdict from GERC is awaited.

5. We draw to attention to Note No. 34(vii) to the financial statements, the
company has entered into Power Purchase Agreement with Gujarat Urja Vikas
Nigam Limited(GUVNL), as per agreement in case of delay in scheduled

Commercial Operation Date, Liquidated Damages can be levied. Further,




GUVNL had levied Liquidated Damages to e comipany but througn Energy

Petrochermical Departinent vide Jetter dt. 14/C2/2218 directed GUVNL to defer
levy of Liquidated Damages ti March 2020 {for the company: Hence, The
company has shown this Liquidated Damages under Contingent Liabilities of
Rs. 16750 Lakh..

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2

:

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Crder”), as
amended, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexurs A” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information anc csplanations which to the

~

best of our Iknowledge and belief were necessary fur the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive-income and the Cash Flow Statement and statement of changes

in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the bocks of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under zection 133 of the Act.

On the Basis Of written representations received from the dircctors as on March
31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as cn March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial




reporting of the Company and the operating eifotiveriess

4

{f such contrels, refer
to our separatec Report in “Anpsrura B”,

g. With respect to the other matiers o be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit end Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material forescezhble losses;

ili. There were nc amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disciosure inn Note No. 11.10 to
these financial statements as to the holding of Specified Banic Notes from
November 8, 2016 to December 31, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified
Bank Notes from the period November 8, 20 16 to December, 21 2016.
Based on our audit proccdures and relying on the management
representation regarding the hoiding and naturs of cash transactions,
including Specified Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures are in
accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company and
as produced to us by the management.

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, 2013 we zre enclosing herewith
compliances to directions / sub directions as part of Audit Repert in “Annexure
C” enclosed herewith.

For, Sandip Desai & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registrition No.: 111812W

mew@m -

Devang Mysorewala
Partner
Membership No :116809

Place: 61'-0"\5%4
Date: 23 Mm').olg




. “Annezare A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report .

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading Report on Other Legal & Regulatory

Requirement’ of our report of even date to the {inancial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2017: '

3)

1)

2]

(a) In our opinion, the Company has maintdined proper records’ showing full
' particulars, including quantitative details and situadon of ‘fixed assets

(Property, Plant & Equipment);

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonabile intervals, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, a portion of the fixed assets (Property, Plant & Equipment) has
been physically verified by the management. during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have
been noticed. The items of Initia! / Mandatory Capital stores and spares are
to be handed over by the coniractors to the company at the time of hand
over of the plant and hence, the same being in the custody of tire contractor,

the question of physical verification. by the maunagemert doesn’ arise.

7

{c) The title. deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the

company.

As explained to us, the management has conducted the physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals, and as explained to us, the discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records

which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of

the Order are not applicable tc the Company and hence not commented upon.
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4)

5)

6)

In our opinion and according to the information and cxplanatioris given to us,
no loan or guarantee or security is given as per ihe provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 of

the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence, not commented upon.

In our opiniocn and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits during the year irora the public with in
the meaning of yrovisions of Scctions 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed there under and therefore, reporting under clause (v) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

As explained and informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has been not
applicable to the Company under sub-section (1) of Scction 148 of the Act, in

respect of the activities carried on by the company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues inciuding Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities except while making payment to workers
appointed at site as casual labour, where varicus labour laws are not
applicable. According to the information and cxplanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at
March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date on when

they become payable.

b) According tec the information and explanation given to us, there are no

disputed dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute, except
following dues.




8)

9)

10)

11)

| Natureof | iatureof | Amount(Fs. | 1t0 | forum where ﬁl
Statuc ' Dues : i which the | the dispute is
! ! i amount l pending
ko, i | Tolates
Income Tax DLaterest on | 3.06 | AY.2014-15 i Commissioner
Act, 1961 1 TDS | of . Income Tax
I | of Appeals,
b | | Ahunedabad

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has nct defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks and financial
institutions except as per listed below table. The loans have ‘been taken from

various public sector banks. Furiher, the company has not issued any

debentures during the year.

Interest Amount B ) ] N 3 T l . )
Month Due Date Paid Date | Delay in Days

(In Lakh) ' l |

January 2017 298130 | 31/01/2017 | T01/05/2017 | 89 "l
February 2017 272822 | 28/02/2017 | 31/08/2017 | 91
S S e b e S S —————

March 2017 2963.54 31/03/2017 | 29/06/2017. | 8e |

1 | H

During the year the company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instrument). The company has
raised by way of term loans and has applied the money for the purpose for
which they were raised. The surplus fund lying unutilized in absence of any
immediate duc towards the project expenses is invested in liquid deposits with
Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd. by the Company as matter of prudence

policy.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or

reported during the course of our audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act
2013.




12)

13)

14)

15)

16

For, Sandip Desai & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm’s Registration

Devang Mysorewala
Partner
Membership No:116809

Place: 67’ mellad D 2

Date:
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Avditer’s Report

Report on the Internal Finanecial Céntrbis wador Cinase 1) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2012 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controis over financial reporting of Bhavnagar
Energy Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company ior the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Respoﬁs'ibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and meaintaining internal
financial controls basec on for example, “the mternal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the cssential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FWinancia! Coatrols Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Ascountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for cnisuring ihe orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Companics Act, 2013.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's interral financial
conirols over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 20.13,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrels, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Instituie of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie




assurance about whether adequate internal financial conirols over financia reporting
was established and maintained aod i zuch conirols operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequac

of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating_:
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls oves fingncial reporting included
obtajning an unc’xer?st:xaﬁ.:iing of internal financia! conirols over financisl reporting,
assessing the risk that a material - veakness cxisis, and testing and cv aluating the
design and operating cffectiveness of internal control bared on the assessed sisk. The
procedures selected depend on the audiior's judgement, including the assessment o

the risks of material inisstatement of the financial statements. wi ether du= to fraud or

CITor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficicat and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls

system over financial reporting,.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Be porting

A company's internal financial control cver financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS finencial statements for external purposes in accerdance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's infernal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) peitain to the
maintenance of records that, in- reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely defection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.

ES
// 2 V%

_.%




Inherent Limitations of "ternal #inoneia! Contrnis QOwe:r Financial Reporting
Because of the inhereni limitations of internal financial - controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusicn or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any cvaluation of the internal financial contrcls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controi
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in cenditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures raay deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financiai controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 201 7, based on “the
internal control over financial reporting criteria establizshed by the Company
considering the essentiai components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ind; a’].

. For, Sandip Desai & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Firmma\ﬁon No:111812W

Devang Mysorewala
Partner
Membership No:116809

Place: Gendirinnger
Date: 5379 Masdl, 2618







Ao noxure

A) Directions undar Section 143(5! of Conminaniesn
et | &

year 2016-17

' o
TLATOT'S Ao

MY GT

fet. 2013 Applivable for the

nse/Remedial Measures

respectively? If not please state the
area of Freehold and leasehold land |
for which title / lease deeds are not
available?

| Sr.No. CQuestionnaire - _| ___ Respense/
1 Whether the Cempany has clear title/ | Yes, company has clear title for
lease deeds for frechold and leaschold | freehold / lcase hold land.

S |
There are no cases of waiver/write off
debts / loans / interests etc. during
the year. However, there has been
ient of Bank l

delay in Intcrest

pa;

maintained for inventories lying with |
third parties & assets received a« gift/ |
grant(s) from the Govt. or other |
authorities? f

2 Whether there are any cases of

waiver/ “write' off of debts; Iocans/

interest etc.

If yes, the reasons there for and the |

amount involved, ; Term Lean.
3 Whether  proper  records are | There arc

Please refer “Annexure : 17 |

ne any inventories lying with |
third partics. No ascets have been Il
received as g ft from Government or
other authorities du ring the year. I
i

B) Sector specific suh directions under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 applicable for the year 2016-17

Sr.No. Questionnaire __|__Respouse/Remedial Measares

1 In the cases of Thermal Power ’ As informed to us by the Technical |
Projects, compliance of the various | Department, during execution of |
Pollution Conirol Acts and the | Project,  details about  various
impact thereof including utilization measures related to Poilution Control ]
and disposal of ash and the policy of | are being ensured in lines with ;
the company in this regard, may be | Environment Clearance granted for |
checked and commented upon. this project.

2 Has the company entered into | No j'
revenue sharing agreements with i
private parties for extraction of coal ‘
at pitheads and it adequately
protects the financial interest of the
company? B

3 Does the company have a proper | The Company has system.  for
system for reconciliation of quantity/ | reconciliation of quantity, quality and
quality of coal ordered and received | grade and also recording system is in i
and whether grade of coal/ moisture | force.
and demurrage etc., are properly
recorded in the books of accounts?




share o{ irece power was
due to the Government and
whether the a2 vas calculated as
per the agreed terms and denicte
the accounts ac per accepted
accounting norms

How much
e} -d.r(‘
sam

in

¢ i sold tc Government |
£CNire: on L'ir;,f and ibe same is |
calculated as per terms agreed in PPA
(Power Purchase Agr(n mentj.

In the case of Hydroelectric Projects
the water discharge is as per policy /
guidelines ssucd by the State
Government to maintain biodiversity.
For not maintaining it penalty

‘paid/payable may be reported.

As stated -,\‘, " the managerment, the
said point is not applicable.

For, Sandip Desai & Co..
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration N

RN TAS—
Devang Mysorewala
Partner
Membership No: 11680

N0:111812W

Place: @ia,hol hiaogor

Date: 23 rd

Ma-£h, 2012
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Interes: Amount | ; _ ' Delay in
Month {

Days

‘ Due Date l Fald Date
1
|

| January 2017 2981.30] 31/01/2017 | 01/05/2017 | 89
|

February 20 17 |

e i e e e | =

2728.22 | 28/02/2017 | 31/05/2017 | 91
i I |

2963.54 | 31/03/2017 |
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“Bhavnagar Energy Company Limitad
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2017

ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment

(Rupees in Lakhs)

5 28,649.62 3,53475 3.617.41
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 28,972.31 26,450.12 3,70,888.63
(¢) Intangible assets 6 34.94 61.98 70.48
(d) Intangible asscts under development 6 75.28 38.23 38.23
(€) Financial assets 7
(i) Security deposits 257.31 926.34 958.20
(i1) Other financial assets 0.22 1.3¢ 1.3¢
() Other non-current assets 8 2,497.77 6,295.08 7,254.04
(g) Non-current tax asséts (net) o v ‘_____23 47 — 1)) 42.80
Total Non-current Assets 4,60, '\1502 4,38.019.91 e . 3,82, ""'l 19
IT.Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 2,270.13 216.c0 25.06
(b) Financial assets 7
(1) Trade receivabies 3.26 -
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 320.4¢ 359.39 822.25
(iii) Bank balance other than (i) above 1.34 - 1.00
(iv) Other financial assets 2.45 1.60 1.59
(c) Other current asscts 11 — 5 65 e 1491 = . 16.16
Total Current Assets 3,043.23 23 595.40 866.06
Total Assots 4. 6% e 15 43861531 38383724
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES e i SRR L e I i i
Fquity
(a) Equity share capital 12 84,600.39 77,563.39 70,779.39
(b) Other equity ¥ = (32,218.09) (858.51) (462.41)
52,282.30 76,664,585 70,316.95
LIABILITIES
Y. Non-current liabilities
(2) Financial liabilities 14
(i) Borrowings 3,44,421,79 99,223, 2,71,30i.19
(b) Long term provisions 15 10.00 9.2 9.99
{¢) Government grants 18 . 86,48 A 130.00
Total Non-Current liabilities _ 3,44.518.27 2,71,441.18
IT.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities 14
(i) Borrowings 1,888.23 23,100.0¢ 2,500.00
(ii) Trade payables 2,169.98 225.15 413.64
(ii) Other financial liabilities 62,441.04 39,015.08 38,974.8%
(b) Other current liabilities 16 127.49 247.07 120.03
(c) Short-term provisions 17 0.84 0.84 0.53
(d) Government grants 18 26.00 e =y 17.52 -
Total Current liabilities 66,653.58 62,605.66 42,079.08
Total Equity and Liabilities __4.63,554.15 e $:38,615.31 3,83.837.24
Summary of Notes & Significant Accounting Policics 1to 51
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
fhoett e g
As per our report of even date ”1.'\. g S
For Sandip Desai & Co. Shahmeond hz:m-‘ P K Tancja
Chartered Accountants Director Chairman
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 11 1812W DIN: 035234560 DIN:00010589

Rprencl-

Devang Mysorewala S N Didmishe /‘,(-’\ Vot
Partner General Manager (F&A) & CFO (.{:

Membership No.116809 | ?L GANDHINAGAR
Place : (‘1ndh»mmr Place : Gandhinagar \’—;’—7,,

Date : :2_3 MM(_[A QO !% Date : 9o Ad Mae !-‘ , Aoy q .K/g







iraited

the year ended Marel

1s)

et

Yeira

(Rupees in Lakl
SR

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Revenue (T)

Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 21 5,014.35 -
Employee benefits expense 22 311.40 111.24
Other Expenses 24 = o 3,004.71 ) 288.52
Total expenses (IT) 5,330.97 . 399.77
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciatior and o W %57_36) TS 111 (399. 7;
amortization (EBITDA) (ITI=I-IT)
Depreciation antl amortisation expense 5&6 §.641.71 3.92
Finance costs 23 16.964.42 18.24
interest income 20 27.22) -
Loss before tax (V=III-TV) i (31.316.28) (421.92)
Tax expenses 25
Current tax - 20.06
Deferred tax | - -
Total tax expense (VI) - 20,06
Loss for the year (VII=V-V]) (._’1.3_1_6.23) (44 [.99_)_
Other Comprelensive Income T T R St
A. Other comprehensive income noat 1o be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit (3.00) 5.59
Income tax effect R - -
(2.00) 5.56
Total other Comprehensive Income fur the year, net of tax (VI) __{3.00) R _558
Total Comprehensive [neome for the year, net of tax (VII=V+VI) | — __(i[,‘,'}__x_'_.‘_)_____._.____("" 0,40y
Earnings per share e DR R
Basic 35 I T @ 71)_ - __-_——‘(6_05
Diluted ey - (0.06)
Summary of Notes & Significant Accaouniing Poiicies 1to51 .
The accompanying notes are 2n integral part of the financial statenGnts.! &‘\—q S
w7 - A
As per our report of even date v ! Y
For Sandip Desai & Co. Shahmeeng Hfisain P K Tancja
Chartered Accountants Director Chairman
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Bhavnagar Energy Company Limiied
Statement af Cash Flows for the yesr epded Marv2h 27,2017

(Rnpe'x in Lakde)

1. Profit/(loss) before tax
Loss before tax {31.45.207 (421.92)

2. Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5. dl 7 3.92
Finance cost 1624
Interest income & -
Govermnment grant income I (17.32) -
Operating profit/(loss) before workmg capital changes (1+2) (5.354.67) (A99.77)
3. Adjustments for working capital 2hangec:
<
Decrease / {Increase) in Trade and other receivables (3.26)
Decrease / (Tncresse) in sceurity deposils §69.02 31.86
Decrease / (Increase) in Other financiai nuscts 0.33 * (0.01)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other current asse:s 132.30) (1.72)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories (2,151.13) (193.94)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade and otiier payzbles HOZ B (188.49)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other financ: s 940095 4020
(Decreese) / Increase i Government grant (17.52) - (0.00)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other current liabilities 119.58) £7.04
. (Decrease) / Increace ia Provisiond o D e e a . OOR)
Cash used in operations 1,529 ?4 (660,87}
Extraordinary item
4. Direct taxes paid (Nat of Advance Tax, TOS and Provision for Tax) (Refer Note Mo.9) 115 10,72
Net C.ash generated from/(used in) Opersting Activities [A] i == .~.5::;.’.:" _:._ (650.15)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE / Transfer of CWIP to PPE (1730731 (23,942.0%)
Changes in capital advance 4497.12 26399
Interest received 222 276,04
Net Cash Generated from/{used in) Investing Activities [B] (12,862.98) (23,302,06)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings (Net) 3922145 27,922.16
Proceeds from short term borrowings (Net) (121179 20,600.00
Finance cost A5,744.57 -31,813.99
Proceeds from issue of Equity share capital 7.037.60 €,784.00
Net Cash Generated from/(used in) Finansing Activities [C] £,104.31 21.492.17
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents [A+B4C) (40.89) ' (460.03)
Cash & Cash equivalents ai the beginning of te year 359.89 $23.25
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end ef tie yzar _319.00 163.21
321,74 359.89
Notes:
A) Components of cash & eash cquivaients
Cash on band 1,52 022
Balances with banks
- In Currcat zccounts 21€.88 159.67
- In Fixed deposit accounts 1,34 -~ -
32:.74 359.89
Cash & cash equivalents es per Note T 32104 359.89

The above casshflnw statement has Been prepared wnder the ‘indirect method' as set out in the Indian AccountinaStandard - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".
PreY

The previous vear's figures have been regronped whervver necessary. f‘ /K’M
~.- A¢
‘ &, a'\ Y-

As per our report of even date

For Sandip Desai & Co. Shahmeenn huss"‘n P K Tnne]a
Chartered Accountants Director Chainnan
ICAI Firm's Registration No, 111512W DIN: 03584560 DIN:0C010589
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEAMENTS F OR THE YEAR
ENDED 315" MARCH, 2017

1. Corporate Information

Bhavnagar Energy Company Limiteq

(“BECL™ or “the Company™) is a public limited

company domiciled and incorporated in Tndia having its registered office at Block.no. 8, 3™
Floor, Udyog Bhavan, Sector 11, Gand

The company 1s engaged in generation
is located af village Padva, District Bhavnagar, Gujarat.

hinagar - 382011, (CIN: U40102GJ3200758GC051396).

of power from Lignite. The principal place of business

2. Application of new Indian Accounting Standard

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs
under the Companies (Indian Accou
financial statements are authorized,
Statement. There is no other Indian Adcounting Standard that has been issued as of that date
but was not mandatorily effective. '

3. Significant Accounting Policies

i)

Statement of Complian

In' accordance with the

nting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the
have been considered in preparing this Financial

ce

notification dated 16" February, 2015 issuzd by the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopied Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from 01% April,

2016.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS
prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as

amended) except in so

far as the said provisions are inconsistent with the

provision of the Electrigity Act, 2003. These are the Company’s first Ind AS
financial Statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1% April, 2015.

Previous period figures
compliance to Ind AS.

Up to the year ended 31°
statements under the his
with the Generally /

in the Financial Statements have been vestated in

March, 2016, the Company had prepared the financial
torical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance
ccepted Accounting Frinciples (Previous GAAP)

applicable in India and the applicablie Accounting Standards as prescribed
under the provisions of| the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companics
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, except in so far as the said provisions were

inconsistent with the pro

" In accordance with Ind

visions of the Electricity Act. 2003.
AS 101 “First Time adoption of Indian Accounting

Standards”, the Company has presented a reconciliation of Shareholder’s
equity under Previous GAAP to Sharcholders’ equity under ind AS as at 31"
March, 2016 and 1™ April, 2015 and the Net Profit as per Previous GAAP and
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS for the year ended on 31™ March,

2016.




Bagis of Prsparation
The Financial Statercents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for certain financial instfuraents that arz measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period as ¢xpiained in the accounting policies belowr. .

As the operating cycle caneoi be identified in normal course due to the special
nature of industry, the sqme has been assumed to have anration of 12 months.
Accordingly, all assets ang lizbilities have been classified as Current or Non-
Current as per the Company’z operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind
AS-] ‘Presentation of Financial Statemeats’ and schedule 1T to the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Financial Statements arc presented in Indian Rupees and all values are
rounded off to the nearest two decimal Lakhs except otherwise stated.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received cn s2ll of an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an prderly transaction between market participants at the
measurcment date under| current market conditions. The Company categorizes
asscts and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending
on the ability. to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are
déscribed as follow,

Level 1 Inputs are at quoted prices (vnadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. ‘ |

Level 2 Inputs are inputs that are observable, cither directly or indirectly, other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 for the asset or liability.

)

Level 3 inputs are uno
significant modification
assumptions about pricin

Foveign Exchange Tran

The Company’s financiz

bservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting
to observable relaicd market data or company’s
g by market participants.

sactions

I statzments are presented in Indian Rupees, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and bala
Transactions in foreign
functional currency spo
recognition.

Monctary assets and liab
at the functional curre)
Differences arising on §
monetary assets and lial
exchange rate are recog;
which they arise.

Non-monetary items tha
currency are translated
transactions.

ces G
currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s
1 rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for

ilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated
ncy spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
ettlement of such transactions and on translation of
vilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
nised in Statement of Profit and Lossin the period in

t are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
at the dates of the initial

using the exchange ratcs
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The cost atiributable e
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i the asset inte U

and decommissioning cesis. Direct cost are ca isea

for use and includes borrowing cost capitalised accordance with the
Company’s accounting Policy.
Work under crection / installation / execution are shown as Capital Work it
Progress.

Tnitial capital spares * be vsed only I CONDLCI ith an item O:
tangible assets whose v3e i« not of reguiar aal + capitalised as patt of

respective plant assets.

The estimated useful lives. residual valucs and deprecinfion methods ave

ceviewed on an annual basis and if necessmy, CH2nges in -estimates art
Js =
accounted for prospectively.

As poe the Gujarat Electricity Regulatory Corpmiesion (Muiti-Year T
Regulations, 2016 useful life of Lignite based power piant is 22 years.

De-recognition

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when 10 futare economic
hanefis are expected to arise from the continued useof the PPE. Any gain of

losg arizing on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as
the di .nce between the sale proceeds and e carrving amount of the PPLE
nd is recoenised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Pl on to Ind-AS

On transition to IND AS, the Company has' glected 10 sontinue’ with the

sarrying value of all of its property, plant and ergaipmoent recogniseq as at
1 April, 2015 measurcd 28 per the previcus GAAP znd use that carrying vaiue
¢
L

as the desmed cost of the propery. plant and squipnient.

Depreciation
Upto 31% March, 2016, Depreciation on all Fixed Asscts was provided on
straight iine method as per the provisions and in the manner prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of declaration of
Commercial Operation Dates during the current financial year, the Company
has reviead its Accounting Policy of charging depreciation in the Books of
Accounts w.e.f. 01.04.2016 as per ratcs and methodology notified by the
Gujarat Electricity Reguiatory Commission (Multi-Year Tariff) Regulation,

2016.

Devreciation of Property, Plant & Equipmen. commercos when the ussets are
: J i

ready for their intended nse. Depreciation 0% A1 fixed assets (cxecept those
iited Lelow) s provided on straight 1

per rates and

sethodology notified
(1 aiti-Year Tariff) Regniat







Capital spares are Gopratiaitl

exceeding the remeining v

on on addition/a
a basis with =

A,-.

I‘,“"“ & Low value
depreciated at the time of additi
on PPE arising on account O

prov ided ')LOSpCCLIV\Ay over the xC"l‘ulT‘l“"’, usci

The cstimated useful lives, rcs.a.xm values and
reviewed on an annual basis 2 and if necessary
sccounted for prospectively.

As per Gujarat Flectricity Regulatory L“c,'w“.'.ﬂ
Regulations, 2016 useful life of { Lignite bas ed

vi) Impairment of Asseis

The company reviews at ach reporting period whethe
that an asset may be impal ired. If any such i
ostimates the recoverable .mon..t of the assct.
the asset or the recover able amount of the c:.?'.'- .
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, Lnc <
its Tecoverable amount. The rediuction is treat c:l 45 &
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. if at ths
an indication that there is change in the previcusly
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
recoverable amount.

vii) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measure: 1 on initial vecogrition at cost.
Following initial recognition, Intangible asscls arc carvied at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated im pairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, exciuding unm.‘.l srd devclopient COSIS,
are not c:’puanccd and expenditure 1s recognised in the statement of Profit and

Lose in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are ar mortised aver their aseful cconomic iives

and asscssed for m‘p“nmf ont whenever there is an indi aation that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The ar nortisation period and the ¢ arnortisation method
for an intangible asset with & finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an mg.m ible asset are measured
as the (h’f"‘“cr\cc between the net d\<pom proceeds and the carrying amount of
sset and are recognised in the Sz

cM 7y

tement of Profit and Loss wiien the asset

; r:cogmscd.
Amortisation
Amortisation of Computer Software is provided on straight line method as per

J
rates and methodology notified by the Gujarat Electricity Regulatory
Commissicn (Multi-Year Tariff) Reg'llahm.‘ 2016 —r—
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Xi)

ition Lo Ind AS

i to IND A‘:‘. the v*»"up hag elected o continue with the carrying
equip:aent recognised as at 1L\pnl, 2015
- that canying valuezs-the deemed

\

Leases are classified as finance leases whensver the temms of the lease
L.aansr svbstantially ail the risk and rew '1"_1 inc 1 ntal to the ownership of
r. asset to the Company. All other leases ave classified ac oper: 1‘»1nglca'5f

Treusition to Ind AS
For amrangements entered into prior to April 01, 2015, the Company has

determined whether the arrangentent contain lease on the hasisof facts and
t‘:rurﬂsmnces existing on the date of transition, i.e., April 1, 2015.

Borrawing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to' the " acinisition, construction or
I"If\rl" tion ﬁ‘"'m asset that necessarily takas 2 substantial perfod of time to gef

ready for its intended use are capitalised @y part of the cost of the respective

assat. Al other borrowing costs dre expensec
Borrowing costs consist of interest and otl
conrection with the borrowing of funds.

)

Adin whicll they oocur.
1er costs thot the Company incurs iu

iri the pet

Inventories

Inveniorics are valued at lower of costs and net realizable value. Costs of Faw
material - Fuel, Stores, Spares and Othersare valued at weighted average cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the. ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completicn and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the zxtent that it is probable that cconomic benefit
will flow to the Company "1*»'1 that the revenue .canbe reliably measured.
Reveaue ie measured at the fair value of the coasideration received or
receivable. Revenuc is reducedfor estimated tehates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue from sale of power is accounted as per Power Purchase Agreement

(“FPA”) executed with M/s. Gujarat UrjaVikas Nigam Limited.

Tnterest Income is recognized on accrual basis except when realization of
such income is uncertain.

Revenue from sale of service is recognized as per terms and conditions of the
contract.

Other Income is recognised on accrual basis exce

. . ‘ . ’,‘
income is uncertain. S
f/\‘

i<
(l‘r\ (’\fz}?u“fﬁ ‘\C ol
\

hen realization of such




xii)

').,viu*.ion Settlement Mechanism (DSM) charges reccivable / payable is
accounted as & when notified by State Load Diseatch Centre {(SLDC)

/ coriractors shall be
s at the time of final

Fecaveries / Deduciions made from su
recognized as mcomc or creaited to cost of
sctiimment. Till suck Fime ™ are vhigwan under

Financial Instruments - Initial recogrition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a firancial asset of one
eatity and a financial liability or equity instrament of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and measurement of financial ussets

All financial assets, are recognised initially at faic value plus, in the case of
financizl assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Sibscquent measurement of financial assets
¥or the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified
into

a} Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial asset is measured at amortised cosi ift

e the financial asset is held within a bmmcss model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collent contractual cash flows,
and

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial

measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

H) Tinancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FYTOCY)

A financial asset is measured at fair vaiue through other
comprehensive income if:

» the financial asset is keld within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount ouistanding.

Financial assets inciuded within the FVTOCI category are ineasured

initially as well as at each reporting date at fair v.xluc Fair value

movements are r(‘cngmz ed in the other (O"‘“,i'}'{‘b nsive 1nco~nc \O B
/-\r
SR 34
\
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Financial assets at fair valie through profit or loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for firancial assets. Any financial asset,
which does not meet the criteriz for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVTQC], is classified as at FVTPL.

-3
S

o

Afier initial mmeaswcment, such finencial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value with all changes recognised in Statement of
profit and loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets -
A financial asset is derecognised when:

» the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expite,
(658 )

o The Company has transferrad its contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a tbird party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement;and either (a) the Compauy has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company

as neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

o Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivablas and bank balance

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash .or another

fAnancial asset that resuit from transactions that are within the scope of Ind

AS 18

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment
logs ailowance on:

» Trade receivables or contract asscts resulting from transacticns within
the scope of Ind AS 18, if they do not contair a significant finaacing
component.

The application of simplified approach dees not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL arc the expected credit losses resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from default events on a

financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECI .im] airment loss allowance (or reversal) reco mvcd during the 'iod is




This amount is reflccted in 2 sepdrate line under the head “Other expenses

in the P&L

Financial Liabilitice

Initial recognition and measurement of Financial Liabilities

Firancial liabilities arc classified, at initial recognition, as {inancial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialiy at fair value minus, in the case
of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are aitributable to-the issue of Uiz financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings and rztention money payable.

Subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

=  Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant tc the Company. After initial
recognition, inferest-bearing borrowings are subsequentiy measured at
amortised cost using the EIR methed. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or Joss when the liabilities are derccognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an intogral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

De-vecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from-its
Talance sheet when, aud only when, it is cxtinguished i.e. when the
obligation specificd in the contract is discharged oc cancelied or expired.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined ahove, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considersd an integral part of the Company’s
Cash Management.







Xiv)

xv)

Covearnment Grants

C.?"""'f"ﬂ‘.:‘u grants, ""f-"'.r":'-‘v'. aon-monctare graots at fair valee 4re not
recomnized until the™ i <+ onaeile assrance that the Company will comply
with the 2ondiiions :'.':L:c:' ic them end thiat the grants will be received.

Specifically, Government grants whose primavy condition is that the

Company should purchase, construcet or othernwise acquire noa-current assets
P

and non-monetary grants are recognized and disclosed as Deferred Income as

pon-curent liability in the balance shect and transfened to the Statement of

profi¢ and loss on systematic aod rational basic over the useial lives of the
related assets.

Tuxes
Tax expense comprises of carrent income tax and-deferred tax. -~ .

Carrent income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that ave enacted or substantively
enaziad at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of proﬁt
and loss is recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income
tax are rccogmseo in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in cquity. Management periodically
evaiuates positions taken in the tax returns with respest to situations in which
applivable tax regulations are subjsct fo imteructation and. establishes
previsions “vhere appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differerces
behween the tax bases of assets and liabiiitics and their carrying amoants for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Delerred tax liabilities are racognised for ali taxabic temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused rax credits and any nnused iax losses. Deferred

tax zcsets are recognised to the extent that it is prebable that taxable profit '

will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carvy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longcr probablc that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the defeired tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to b recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mncasured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply iv ihe year when the assct is realised or the liabililv is
seitied, hased on fax rates (and +tax laws
substantively enacted of th2 reporting date.




Vi)

Reforred tax relating o items racognised ouizgide Statement of proiit and loss
is recognised outside. S tement of proﬁ: and leoss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underiving transaction either in other

cemprehcnsive incomic ot diresily i "-‘.E‘.:Ex}‘.

Deforred tax assci: ned deie o tisbilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set ofT cizient tax assets. against current tax
tiabilities and the deferred taxes telate to the same taxable ¢ ntity and the same
taxstion authority.

Lmployee Benefits
Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short.term benefits. Such bevefits include salaries, ‘wages,
bonus, short term compensated ahsences, exgratia, performance pay ete, and
the same are recognised in the period in which the employee 1cnde.o the
related service.

2ost-Employment Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans
The -Company’s approved vrovident fond . and family pension fund

scheme are - defined contribution  plans.. The Clompany
hasnoobligation,otherthanthecontribution rmd'::ay,..)l uader - such

schemes. The conmb.nmn pa;d/pdy'xL lc unch the schemes is recognised
Avring the period in which the employes renders the related service.

b} Mefined benefit plan

Tuc cmployee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defin ed benefit
plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on the aciuarial valuation using the Proy‘ctod
Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Ralance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation
under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the oblization on the net
")d.)]o.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the eflect of
ihe asset ceiling, excluo.m_, amounts included 1n net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the retusn on plan aseets {excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability),  are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with 2 corresponding debit
or credit to retained earings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements arc not reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or ioss on the eariier oft
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

> The date that the Company recognises rejated restructuning costs

Net interest is calculated by applying tie discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation as an ‘e magn the Statement of
profit and loss: /\3“’..91‘:4/ 3

% ‘U
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¢) Otigrlong tersa employment ben

"The employee’s iong ierm compensated sbsences are Company’s defined

bencfit plans. The preseat value of the chiigation is determined based on
the actuarial veluation using il:e Projected Unit Credit Method as at the
dete of the Balunce sheet. In case of finded plans, the fair value of plan
asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on
the net basis.

d} Termination Benefits.

Termination bensfits such as compensation under voluniary retiremen:
scueme are recognised in the year in which termiinatunon henefits become
payable.

v

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividieg the profit / Joss for the year atizibutable
to.ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted avers ge number
cf ordinary shares outstanding'duriry the year.

Provicions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingeni Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past evest, and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying econcmic benefita wiil be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estirazte can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects <ome or all of 2 provision to be

Lotursed, for example, under an insuranze conlraz , the reimbursement is

«

recognised as a separate asset, but enly when the reimbursement is virtually

ceriain. The expense relating tn a provisien is presented in the statement of

profit cr loss net of any reimbursersent.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. When discounting iz used, the increass in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obiigation that arises from past cvents
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
onc or more uncertain fiiture events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will ba required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rarc casss where ihere is a liability that
‘cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured z't:!fszl_\. The Company

does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in ¢
7 :\:Ar?\\ 'QRGY CO,.
el 4 \\ > 7
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finauoisl statements, Conuingentiiabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet
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mt discloced in the financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits.is probabie.

4. Significant Accounting Judgment, estimates and assumptions.
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimztcs and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent [fabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
cutcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying ernount of assets or liabilities
affected in future périods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies a5 stated in note ne. 3 above,

nanagement has mude the following judgments; which have the most significaat effect on the
amounts recognised 3 P

1 the financial stateinents:

a) Property plant & Tquipment

i) Service Concession agreements
The Company has assessed applicability of Appendix A of Ind AS - 11 “Service
Concession . Arrangements™ with respect 1o its power gencration plants.. In
assessing the applicability, the Company have exerzised judgment in refation te
the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003. terms of its' Power Purchase
Agreement, etc. Based on such assessment, it has conclnded that Appendix A of
Ind AS 11 is not applicable to the Company.

pet e
-
~—

Arrangemeni contain a lease

The Company has assessed applicability of Appendix C of Ind AS — 17 “Lease”
with, respect to its power purchase agreement (PPA) for its power generation
plants. In assessing the applicability, the Company have exercised judgment in
relation to the provisicns of the Electricity Act, 2003, tcrms of itz Power Purchase
Agrecmeit, etc. Based on such assessment, it has concinded that Appendix C.oof
Ind-AS 17 1s applicable. Further, the management, based on abuve factors, has
assessed that the above PPA docsn’t meet the eriteria of firance leass aod Lence,
considered as operating lease.

if) Impairment of property plant and eguipment
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts
of its property. plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if anv).

Recoverable amount of property plant and equipment is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use is usually determined
on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves
management estimates on anticipated PLF, power taxiff, fuel availability at
econortical rates, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other
factors. Currently, the Company is in the process of getting power tariff fixed by
reguiatory authority, GERC and it expects to realiss the valie in use of PPE. Any
subsequent changes to cash {low due to changes in the above mentioned factors
could impact the carrying vaiue of assets,




iv) Depreciation rates, depreciation method and residual value of property,
plant and cquipment

m terms of Rart B of Schadil I[ o' e Contpravies Act, ;'m? the Company has

nlmwm the C;pr:mza::.* G veeistion maethod o.r,: esidual value of the

: fres Gxuw in accordance

Electricity Act, 2003 with respect te tac sssets 1"'*1l.nrY under regulated

't >ms O
with the
business.

=t a8 potil

b) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for unused tax credits as the management, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with fature tax
planning sirategies is not uncertain of realisaticn sufficient profits in future to utilise the
deferred tax assets, Jt is probable that taxable nrofit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are
determined using actnarial valuations. An 2ctuatial valuation involves meking various
assumptions that may differ from acinal developments in the futwe. These include the
determination of the discount rate, fiture salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed ai each reporting date.




Bhavnagsr Energy Compsny Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Nate 5 : Property, Plant aud Equipment

(Rupees in Lakhs.)

— ! — i
Particulars .E Freeheld Land Buildings Ful:;l:::;& Vehicles Offlce Equipments I::f::;:::;ln Coniputers Total CwIP
- — o —
Gross Carrying Value i |
Deeined cost as at April 1, 2015 l 2282131 562.15 406,03 23.65 1572 35.36 273.81 18.55 3,617.41 3,70,888.63
Additions ! - 0.93 27.00 .- = . 6.40 28.33 55318.79
Deductions/Adjustraent - - - - .03 - - 0.03 242,70
Borrowing Cost Capitalissd - - = - = - " -
ransfer / Capitalised frotm CWIP - - - - - 5 = - - :
As at March 31, 2016 2,282.13 562.15 406.96 50.65 15.72 35.33 273.81 18.95 3,645.71 4,26,450.12
Additions 0.47 30.22 0.44 5.35 36,49 36,215.23
Dzductions/Adjustir -
iBorrowing Cest Caplt 413.53 1,03,074.77 | 1,0%,488.29
{Transfu / Cepiteli 1,774.49 3,25,400.20 30.05 3,30,204.75 4,33,693.04
223213 2,750.17 4 31,8%2.40 £0.83 15.72 05.52 273.81 24.30 4,37,375.25 28,972.31
30.58 14.30 498 2.35 10.67 35.51 12.58 110.96 -
- 30.58 4.98 235 10.67 3551 12.58 110.96
- 82.06 3.9% 1.65 245 19.23 1.00 £,614.67
118.64 8,512.58 8.96 4.00 ©13.32 54.74 13.58 8,725.63
: Velee
As st Apiit 1, 2015 2,282.13 562.1%5 406.05 23.65 15.72 35.36 273.81 18.55 3,617.41
As at March 31, 201¢ 2,282.13 531.57 392.66 45.67 13.38 24.66 238.30 6.37 3,534.75
As st iierch 31, 2017 2,282.13 2,631.53 4,23,369.52 71.92 11.72 52.7¢ 219.07 10.72 4,28,649.62
INotes :
1. The Company has elested ta continue with the carrying valve of its other Property, Plant and Fquinmeant ("PPE") recognised g5 of April 1, 2015 (Transition date) measured as per the previous GAAF and used that carrying value &5 ity gezmglagst as on the
; 2R DESTN,

n date.

%. Fieak up oU Bomrowing cost and Incidental Charges

capitaliscd

Borsowing Cost [ Borrowing Cost B, Incidetal Exp. L'v‘orrr\.;r., ot Incidental Exp. Borrowing Cost Incidetnal Exp

7o o oo Incidenial Fxp o RS transferved to o BE . e w &

S Upio Capitalised Capitalised N transferred to | carrying in "CWIP" |carrying in "CWIP

Particulars . o N = Upto ., Fixed Assets . i R
31st March, |during FY Z016- 315t March. 2016 during Darine FY 2016 Fixed Assct #5 on 31st March, as on 31st March,
2616 17 bR FY2016-17 | ° ““x*, ¥ [During FY 2616-17 2017 2017
Building & Plant and Equipiuent

(relsted to Powex Project Assets) 91,785.7% 19,040.01 14,555.74 4,229.91 1,03,488.29 17,869.85 7,337.50 1,315.80

. CWIP as on 31st March, 2017 of Rs. 28,972.31 Lakhs includes Borrowing Cost of Rs. 7,337.50 Lakhs and Incidental Exp of Rs. 1,315.80 Lakhs

L

4. Above land cost includes, land development expenditure of Rs. 349.70 Lakhs
<. In accordance with Ind AS 36 on "impairment of Assets”, the company has carried out an exercise al every year end

for identifying the assets that may have been impaired. Refer note no. 4. (a) (iii) for further details

ZSee

3




Bhavnagar Energy Coizpany Limiled

Notes to the Financial Stawey en’s

Note 6 : Other Intangible Assete

Fixed Assots -

Gross Carrying Value B

Deemed cost as at Aprii i, 2015 i 70.48 ’ it Sk I 108.72
Additions o ’ o - ; " - R
Deductions ) - Ea -
As ot March 31, 2016 1048 38.%: 108,72
Additions i 27 65 1705
Deductions o wm e e e e -
As afMareh 31, 2017 _ o o TTOARL Pt o e USSR 0 148,77

Amortisation and Impsairment

As at April 1. 2015 3 -

Amortisation for The Year R.51 p 8.5]
Deductions . S = _— -
As at March 31, 2016 . 85% T PRI o ) >
Amortisation for The Year 27.0% - 27.04
Deductions = &3 . -
As at March 31,2017 3555 ' B0 o - -

Net Carrviog Value

As at March 31, 2017 34.94

As at March 31,2016 51.98

Notes :

1. The company has elected lo continue with the carrying value of ail of its intangible asseis recognised as at 1April,
2015 measured as per the previcus GAAP and use that carrying vatue zs the deemed cost of the intangible assets. The
details arc in note 3]

2. In accordance with Ind AS 26 on "impairment of Assets", the company has carried out an exercise at every year end
for identifying the assets that may have been impaired. Refer note: no. 4 (2) (i) for further dotails

N, 77 5 v"; '4-"'/ T N
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Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited
Notes tc the Firanciai Statemenis

Nete 7 : Financial 2ssets

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Note 7a : Trade receivables ;
{Rupees in Lakhs)

N~ T - As ot Mavan o1, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Unsecured, considered good 326 - -
Total — B B T 326 : %

7 Ps. 3.19/- Lakhs (as at 31st March, 2016 of Rs. Nil ; a5 at 01st April, 2015 of Rs, Nit) is due

ompany's largest Custanter, Thers e no other customers who represents more than 5% of the total

Trade receivable balance 25 at 31st March, 2G)
1

frem Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited, the C
balance of trade receivable,

Note 7b : Cash and Bank Balances
(Rupees.in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Mareb 32,2017 As 2t Mareh 31,2016 As at April 3, 2015

Cash and cash equivalenfs
Balance with Bank

Current accounts and debit balance i cash credit accounts 518.83 821.84
Cash on hand ’ 7 R, | 041
Total cash and eash equivalents T 32040 : 822.25
Other bank balances 1.54 . 1.00
Total 321.74 35669 823.25
Note 7¢ : Other financial assefs

(Rupees in Lakhs)

o As at March 31, 2017 As ot March 21,2016 As at April 1, 2015
Particulars
Non-Current e

Security Deposits (tinsecured, unless cherwise stated) 257.31 926.34 958.20

Deposit with original maturity of mere than twelva (12) months 0.22 0.22 0.22

Other non-current financial assels 1.17 1.17

927,74 955.59

Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 0.19 0.03
Other Receivables 2.37 1.41 1.52
2.43 1.50 1.59

Total other financial assets N 259.98 “‘_.:-“—59_.3;- _..-.._._..961’18_.
Total Non-~current financial assets 57.53 927.74 959.59
Total Current financial assets B 127.45 ~ 351.49 824.84 .
Total financial assets 584.98 1,289.23 1,784.43




Bhavnagar Energy Compaig “mited
Yo

Notes to the Financial Statement:”
Note 8 : Qiher non-current as:f.

5 So— T —n——

—— S e €2 PRy 7,2016  AsatApsii 1, 2018
aruacuiars :

Capital Advance G,987.17 7,351.15
Gratvity fond A 3.33 -
Oihers 714 4,59 2.38
Total i 7.354.04

Note 9 : Non-cuzrrent tax assets (no¢)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particuiars

As at March 31,2017 at Marci: 21, 2016 As at April 1, 2015

Advance Tax (Net of provision for Tax, TDS)

1347 ) 1201 42 80

Total!

2347 120 4280

Note 10 : Inventorics

(Pupess in Lakhs)

ity AS it Match 21, 2017 9t Neave 31, 2016 &5 at gpril 1, 2015
Fuel, spares and others 2,370.13 ’ 215.00 25.06
Total 237043 21900 25.06
el As At March 31, 2017, nt Mareh 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015

Stock of Light Diesel Oil
Stock of FO

Stock of Spares

Stock of Diesel & Gas

Stock of Lignite

Stock of Limestone

Stock of Chemical

Stock of Bed Refractories

207.64 134,72 25.06
154.50 £3.50 -

0.66 0.4% :
1,571.32 : .
91.4 - -
37.5% -

Note 11 : Other current ysscts

{Xupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

As ot March 31, 2017 at Mareh 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015

Prepaid Expense
Advance recoverzile in cash er kind

6.47 3.56
8.44 10.60

Total

1491 16.16







Dhavnagar Energy Company Lisnited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Share capital

31 ?r,-F

As ot Wizch 31,

As at April 1, 2015

Particnlars V3. of shares Ny. of shares

e (i Lakhe) Auins Amnount {in Lalkhs) Amount
Authorised share capital ) .
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach 8,500 25.,000.00 3,500 §5,000.00 8,506 385,000.00

= _8,500 85,000 B 2" 85,000 8,500 85,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 8,460 §4,6092.39 7,756.54 7,563.39 7.077.94 70,7758.32
Total 8,460 34,600.39 7,077.94 70,779.39

\ .2 -
12.1. Reconciliation of shares cutstanding {(excluding share capital suspensa sccount) at the beginning aud 2 the cnd of the Reporting rexr

As at March 31,2017 As at Mavch 31, 2016 As at April 1,2015

Particulars No. of shares Mo. of thares No. of skares
(in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs) Amount
At the beginning of the year 7,756 77,563.39 7,077.94 70,779.39 7,077.04 70,779.39
Issued if any during the year 704 7,037.00 678,40 5,784.0C ‘- -
Outstanding at the end of the year 8,460 24,600.39 7.756.34 77,562.39 7.077.94 70,779.39

12.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The company has only onc ciess of Equity Shares having a par value of Re.10/- per share. Each sharcholder is eligible fiur ane vote per share held., .

In the event of liquidaticn, the equity sharcholders are cligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company efter distributicn of 2% preferential snounts

shareholding.

12.3. Number of Shares held by cach sharehiclder hoiding more than 2% Shares in the company

, in proportion to their

As at March 31, 2017
Name of the Shareholder No. of shares % of

As 2L March 31, 2016

No. of shares

Asat April 01, 2015

No of shares

(in Lakhs) __ shareholding (inLakhg ' of shareholding @aLakhy) o of shareholding
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid
Gujarat Industrics Power Company Ltd. 2,060.80 24.4% 2,060.80 26.6% 1,310.80 25.6%
Gujarat Mincral Development Cerporation Ltd. 1,976.50 23.4% 1,676.50 25.5% 37726.50 24.4%
Gujarat State Investments Ltd. 1,984.34 23.5% 1,435.84 18.5% 1,435.84 20.2%
Gujarat Power Corporaticn Ltc. 761.40 2.9% 720.G¢ 9.3% 63¢.00 RS%
Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Lid. 592.20 7.9% £60.00 72% 477.60 6.7%
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd. 592.20 7:0% S10.60 6.6% 510.60 7.2%
Gnujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Co. I.td. 492.60 58% 492.6( 0.4% 492.60 7.0%




Bhavnagar Energy Comnany Limited

Statement of changes in Equite for the year rnded March 31, 2017

(Rupees in Lakhs)

e D = —-1-—'-v'- 4 T § ‘W«‘lw?—{’ .

Balance as at April 1,2015 70.779.39 (462.41) 70,316.98
Loss for the year (441.99) (441.99)
Other comprehensive income for the year s 5.39 5.59
Total Comprehensive inconme fov the year - (436.40) (436.40)
Issue of shares 6,754.00 - 6,784.00
Balance as at March 31, 2016 T 7156339 898.81) 76,664.58
Balance'as at April 1,2015 77.563.39 (828.81) 76,664.58
Loss for the year - (31,316.28) (31,316.28)
Other comprehensive income {or the year (3.00) (3.00)
Total Comprehensive income for the year B (31,212.28%) (31,319.28)
Issue of shares 7,037.00 - 7,037.00
Balance as at March 31, 2017 84,600.39 (32,218.09) 52,382.30

O DES.
%
o)
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Bhavnagar Foergy Company Linited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 13 : Otheyr Equity

e (Ru;zé:ss in Lakhs)
Balance g - : -,._.-.-'('L:dci-t.,{in " Total
the statement of '
proiit and loss
As at April 1, 2015 462.41) {462.41)
Add: Loss for the year (441.99) (441.99)
Add: OCI for the vear 5.59 5.59
"Balance available for appropriation (898.81) (898.81)
Less : Appropriations
Transterred to general reserve - -
Dividend - -
Tax on dividend - ' -
As at March 31, 2016 B @9831) (898.81)
As at April 1, 2016 (898.81) {898.81)
Add: Loss for the year (31,316.28) (31,316.28)
Add: OCI for the year (3.00) {3.00)
Balance availabic for appropriation {32,218.09) o (32,218.39)
Less : Appropriations
Transferred to generzal reserve - -
Dividend =
Tax on dividend “

As at March 31, 2017







Bhavnagar Energy Company Limitesd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 14 : Financial liabilitie
(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Note {4a : Borrowings

_Pnrﬁculars

(Kugpees 1o Lakbs)

T S et March 33,2016

Long term borrowings

Scecured

Term Loans from Banks
Rupee Loans

Unsecured
From financial institution
Gujarat State Financial Services LM

Cusrent maturities (Refer note 14¢)
Secured
Term Loans from Banks

Rupee Loans

Total long term borrowings
Short term horrowings

Secured
From Bank

As av April 1, 2015

28,500.60

2,71,301.19

eyl

3,44,421.7¢ 2,99,223.35

2,71.301.19_

3,71,301.19_

Working Capital Cnsh Credit (scum!) detaiis seding from client) 1,888.22 -
Unsecured
From financial institution
Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd - 23,100 €0 2,500.00
1,883.23 23,100.00 2,590.00
Total interest bearing borrowings T A 3.60.335.05 _ 3.22.322.35 2,73,801.19
Aggregate secured borrowings 3,21,735.03 3,22,323.35 2,73,801.1¢
Aggregate nnsecurcd borrowings 28,600.60 23,100.00 2,500.00

For explanations on the Company’'s Interest r
142(i) Term Loan & Working Capital (Cash Cred

a. Immovable propertics admeasuring approximately

b. All the other immovable properties and as

d. All the Company’s tangible and intangible assets, all the ook debts, oper

present and future;

isk, forsigs: curcency risk and ligu

1sk management prozesses. sefer to Natn 27

WAy G Morigage 2s wn

ed at Village Padva, Dis

i) from Banks are scourer

Tectares of land situ BYavrenar iv the

e civniarad

3 of the Compray, both present and fotuee,
¢. All the movable (whether tangible or intangible) pro
and accessories, furniture, fixtures and vehicles), bols py

ics and assets of the Compaay (iacluding but pot hinuted 1y arovesbie plant and machiney,
¢ and future;

¢. All the Accounts and all cther bank aveonnis of the Compary including in eacn case, all monies lving areditzd/depasited itio such accounts;

14a (ii) Terms of Repayment (Term Loan -1}

Term Loan Sanction Amount -
Repayment Period 5
Repayment Start Date -
Rate of interest -

14a(iii) Terms of Repayment (Term Loan - 11}

Term Loan Sanction Amount -
Repayment Period -
Repayment Start Date -
Rate of interest -

Ks 229,400,900 Lakhs
1\'.:.1 Qanncr':y Installmient

SBI RR X’

as 130 BP (Presertly 10.60% P.AL

Rs 30,600.00 Lakhs
45 Quarterly Installment
3111212017
SBI BR Plus 130 BP (Presently 10.60% P.A.)

14 (a) (iv) Defanit in payment of Inferest on bonowings:

Particulars / Month Amount o l Paid date Deiny in days
Jan-17 2,981.30 | 31-0! 7'1]' , 01-05-2017 89
Feb-17 2,728.22 | 28-02-2017 | 31052017 91
Mar-17 2,063.54 | 31-03-2017 ' 9:060017 | 8 |

machinery spares, tools

ng cash flows, receivabilez, all other coutent sseets, commissions, yevecues of the Company both

As the Company has achieved COD of its Unit-Il on 27t March, 2017 and Unit-I was stil} uv:dcr stabilisction as on 3 isi March, 2017, at the stage of injtial operation year ot the
sneration of revenue to discharge monthly interest liability, howe 0';1'&*'\-‘&{'1}' has subsequently paid in the month of May-

Company, the Company did not have sufficient ¢
2017 & June-2017.

S AL

v "/-'







Bhawvnagar Energy Company Limlited
Wotes to the Financial Statements
Note 14b : Trade and Other payables

Rupezs in Lalihs)

& - - : A at Mareh 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Particulars
Current C e o e o . i
Trade and Other payables . ) & 225,15 413.64
Total i g R i 225.15 413.64
For explanations on the Compary’s -‘:(-)—r_t‘i;,n c-'-:lr.’f:rtr-.j-,'_ risk e i ~~.x?('h':y \:xr—}wﬂ.:\rq:rr*:r.p—lc o - N

Note 14¢ : Other financial liabilities

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars T"hs atMarch 31. 3017

Acal Merch 31,2016

As at April 1, 2015

Current

Current maturities of Jong-term bonowings (Refer Note 14a) 14.025.00 . -
Interest accrued but not due on term loan 3,062:81 1,055.98 443.00
Interest accured due but not paid (Refer Note 14a(iv)) G - -
Retention payable 26,54%,17 26,433.67
Peyable for capiial goods 11,351.03 12,093.72
Other payables - 951 4,50
Total T T3001808 3897488
Total Non-current 35442172 2,99.223.33 2,71,501.12
Total Current 66,4€5,25 £2,340.23 41,888.52
Total financial liabilitics st amortised cos: - 41092104 3,61,563.55 3,13,189.71

For explanations on the Company’s Interest risk, Forsign currency risk and liquidity -isk management processes, refir to Not

Note 15 :. Long term pravisions

c 27

. i (Rupees in Lakhs)
Pursilins AsatMarch 31,2017 A< at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 30) - S - 3.96
Provision for Leave eucashment 10.00 0.24 6.03
Total 10.00 9.24 9.99
o TaGY C
2 DESID /L,
7 AR N ~/d 77 \z
el oM & LR %
[P RO i LG WNAWAR )
‘f‘\:}lk s ““/?/AD)‘;/') t‘\j":)é\“"' s/
X5 \ =y / S
o - Nl
ND A oA







Bhavnagar Energy Company Ulmited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 16 : Other.current iiabilitics

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Bitlediars Ag at March 21, 2017 . Asat March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
articu
Statutory ducs payabic R T 131.87 190.03
Earnest money deposit 21.9¢8 05.20 -
Total " _ 12749 - _ 247.07 190.03
Note 17 : Short-term provisions

) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at iarch 31, 2046 As at April 1,2015
Provision for Leave encashment T 0.84 0.24 0:53
Total 0.5¢ 054 053

Note 18 : Government grant

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,2017

Asat Marele 33, 2016

As at April 1, 2015

Deferred Income 112.42 130.00 -
Non-current £6.48 112.48 130.00
Current 26.00 17.52 B
Total 112.48 130.00 130.00

Govemnment grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment, There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contigencies attached to these grants as at M=reh 31,

Movement of Government grant (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-i6
As at April 01 - 139,00 130.00
Reccived during the year “ i
Released to statement of profit and loss (17.52) -
As at March 31 112.48 130.00

!




Bhavnagar Encrgy Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 19 : Revenue from operations

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particnlars 2016-17 2015-16
Sale of Electrical Energy 2.378.39 -
Total o | 237839 - -
Note 20 : Other income
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Professional Incore 63.96 -
Interest income 37.22 -
Government grant income (Refer note 18) 17.52 -
Exchage gain/loss (net) 17.85 -
Others 5.88 B
Total 142.43 -
Note 21 : Cost of materials consumes!
_ (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 2(16-17 2015-3.6
Inventory at the beginning of the year 219.00 25.06
Add : Purchases 7,165.98 2.074.77
7,384.98 2,099.83
Less : Inventory at the end of the year -2,370.1 -219.00
Consumption 7,014.85 1,880.83
Less : Transferred to CWIP (Incidental Exp) - -1,880.83
Total Consumption of the year S 5,014.85 -
Cost of materials consumed
(Rupees in Lakhs)
016- 5-16
T— 2016-17 2015-16
LIGNITE Consumption f 1,8653.55 -
LIMESTONE Consumption 3.15 -
LDO Consumption 1,541.26 1,617.86
_ FO Consumption 1.303.57 262.30
Refractory Consumption 67.82 -
Diesel Consumption 4,02 0.67
Transpotation (Lignite, LDO, FO etc.) " 24138 -
less: Transfered to CWIP - Incidental Expenses - -1,880.83

Total

5,014.85




Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited
Motes to the Financial Statemionts

Note 22 : Employee benefits expionise

A —

{Rupeces in Lakhs)

Particulars Z016-17 2015-i6
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 271.17 87.27
Contribution to Provident and Other Fund 27.01 17.66
Gratuity Expense 5.89 5.65
Staff welfare expenses 7.33 0.66
Total_ _ S 311,40 111.24
Note 23 : Financ? costs
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Interest Expense 35.54G6.78 31,537.95
Other Borrowing Cost 187.57 18.24
Less: Transfer to Capital Work in piogicss (1&,253.02) (31.537.95)
Total 16,864.42 — 18.24
Note 24 : Other expenses

. ™ (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particuiars 2010-17 2015-16
Electricity Exp. 1,688.80 5.73
Fuel consumption 1.76 -
Chemical Consumption 25.26 -
Commissioning Support - KEPC 22.23 -
Other (Project Related Expense) 59.20 -
Water Bxpenses 234 46 1.21
Manpower Source Exp . 24.33
UI Charges 289.46 -
General & Adminstration charges 13348 18.32
Insurance Exp. 30.60 5.22
Legal & Professional Fees 57.49 30.14
Repairs & Maintainance Plant niz 0.67
Repairs & Maintainance Buildiug 14.96 8.69
Repairs & Maintainance Others 48.74 8.19
Rent 16.23 23.01
Rates & Taxes 4.96 2.17
Payment to Auditors 2.30 2.08
Security Charges (Project Site) 191.20 -
Share Capital Issue Expenses 7.04 6.78
Sitting Fees & Director Exps. 6.27 3.05
Travelling & Conveyance 71.85 B
Donation Exp 79.25 121.50
Loss on sale of Asset - 0.01
Communication expenses - 12.42
Misc Expenses ZaGY Co 1608 12.99
Total [ X 3.004.71 288.52
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Bhavaagar Energy Compnny Limitcd
Notes to th= Firancial Statements

Note 25 : Income tax

The major component of income tax experse for the year ended Mar: - 31

Tomnd voes

‘e

adsd b

fazch 3!, 2016 are:

(Kupees in {ecs)

Particulers

2016-17

201516

Statement of Profit and Lozs
Current tax
Current income tax.

Deferred tax
Relating to crigination and reversel or temporary difference

20.06

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

20.06

OCI section

Particulars

2015-17

2015-16

Statement to Other comprehensive Inscine (OCI)
Deferred tax related to items vecognised it OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses

Deferred tax charged to GCL

Reconciliation of tax expense and the acrouniiag profit multiplied by dom.estic 1ax rate for the year ecded March 21, 2017 and Meroh 31, 2616,

Particulars

2016-17

2015-16

Accounting Loss before tax

Tex @ 30.90% (March 31, 2016; 30.99%)
Adjustment
Expenses not allowed for tax porposes

Non-recognition of deferred tax asset on zceount of uncertain realisation

(9.677.66)

(9,677.66)

(421.92)
(130.37)

(37.54)
(112.89)

-At the effective Income tax rate of 30.20% (March 31, 2016 : 30.90%)

20.06

Reconcifating o Daforred Tsx Lialiities (net)

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Pariisvlars

Masch 31, 2017

Merch 31,
2016

April 1,
2015

2916-17

Depreciation
Expenses allowed over future period
Businness Loss

(4,842.41)
112,89
18,235.27

2015-1€

{4,842)
113

18,235

Deferred tzx expense/(income)
Net deferred tax assets

13,506

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net

Opening balance as of April 1

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI
Closing balance a5 at March 31

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2016

During the year the company have carrisd forward losses aggregating Rs.52013.82/- Lakhs under Income Tax Act, 1961, which will be available to be
carried forward 1o set off against taxable income only upto next 8 years. Iin current financial year which is also a first year of commercial operation of the
company, the company has incurred 2 huge loss of Rs.31,319.28/- Lakhs. Further, as per management assumption that, it is nct probable that the carried
forward loss will be available for set o/T against taxable income in near futurs and the company is also entitled to 100% profit deduction under 80IA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Henee, Dafcrred Tax Asset/Liabilities has been not recognized in curreat financial year.







Dhrvnagar Energy Company Limited

Not
Net

= to the Financial Statements
¢ 26 : Disclosure pursuant to Related Perty Toxnaneiinng

1 Particuiars of related parties and nxture ol relsiicnehing

Name of Reiated Paries - -
Gujarat Power Corporation Limitd
Gujarat State Investments Limited ok 1.2

of

Name cf Teiationship
w1 P

Company i

Gujarat Minera! Develorvment Corporation Timiteo .

Company i--.')

Gujarat Industries Power Company Limited = KeySharshaices / Dedic-Comibutor. - 2
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Limited y Koy Shareholder £ Equity Contibulor SN

Gujarat Alkalies and Chemiicals Limited e Key Sharcholder/ Tnity Contibuzar
Gujarat State Fertilizers and Chemicals Limited Kzy Shareholder

Vikas BECL initiative for Rure! Development

Qther - Directors ars trustees

Key Management Personnel

Shri Prem Kumar Taneja IAS (Reid.)

Chairman from 19.04.2016 crwards

Skri D J Pandian, IAS (Retd.)

Chairmen fiom 14 08.2015 10 3’

Shri S G Mankad, IAS (Retd) Chairmen upto13.67 26:5 glal !
[Smt. Shahmeena Syedafzal Husain, IAS . Director from 0) 09.2017 onwards - -

Shri § K Paul Managing Director frein 26 04.2016 onvvards

Shri § K Negi — Managing Director from 21.03.2016 10 26.04.2016 R

Shri Gurdeep Singh .

Managing Lrirecter wpto 02.03.2013

Shri Indrajeet Prasad Gautam IAS (Retd)

Dirsctor from 26.07.2007 onwards

Shri Prakash Shah, IAS (Retd) Non -Execttive {(adevainant D HOmALB0IS. - | N e
Ms. Arti Kanwar , 1AS Director from 25.11.2016 onwards

Shri Arunkumar Mohanbhai Solanki , IAS

Director from 12.07.2016 onwards

Dr. Hosmukhbhai Baldevbhai Patel |

Director from 29.0%.20}4 onwards |

Ms. Meena Kantilal Bhatt

Non -Executive Indepednent Director fropn 31.03.2:15 onwerds

Shri Nagendra Kumar Singh

Director frum 08.06.20) 6 onwards

Shri Vishvesh Dineshchancra Nanavaiy

Director frora 19.04.2016 onwards

Shri S X Nanda, IAS Director Upty 19.04.2016 .

Shri ? K Gera, IAS Director from 03.;2.2G15 10 25.92.2016 TR NN,
Shri Avvind Agarwal, JAS Director Upto 12.57.2016

Shri Sanjesv Kumar, IAS sorhere s Cirector

Shri J P Gupta, IAS pe Diregtor. ..

Shri A L Thakor o Director upto (9.12.2015 v

Shyi S P Desai - Director Upta 03 ~

Shri R A Shah Dircctor upto 27

Shri Vikram Mathur

Director from 04.022.2016 to

Shri Kshemank Merchant

CFO from 23.01.2017 onwards (KMP)

Shri Jinal Shah

CFO till 22.01.2¢17 (KMP) ¢

Smt Bhoomika Sharma

Company Secreiary (KMP) from 25.02.2013 onwards

b The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in ordinery course of business during the year
) {Rupees In Lakhs)
Sr. . 2016-17 2015-16
No. AR TGl Associates | Kmp _Others TAscocintes _KMr Others ]
1 |Issue of Share Capltal = ks 7,037.00 _ __6,754.50 .4
Gujarat State Investments Ltd. 5,485.00 l .
Gujarat Power Corporation L4d. 414 00 3 t 90000 )
Guiarat Alkalies & Chemicais 1td. e 322.00 | [ 8RA0G |
Gujarat State Fenilizers & Chemicais Ltd. . 816.00 ey -
Gujarat Industrics Power Company Ltd. - I: 2,500.90
Gujarat Minera) Development Corporation Lid. - I 2.500.00 |
5 | B | |
2 |Remuneration tc Key Mannagement Persounel i 64.74 | 37.56
] .
Short-term employee benefits 62.30 ! 3464
ShiSGMankad, IAS(Retd) - ] 0.71
Shri 1D J Pandian, JAS (Retd.) ) ] o8l I ! 12.02
Shri Jinal Shah ) 15.69 | ! 14.29
Smt Bhoomika Sharmna = 3.83 | 2.49
Shri Gurdeep Singh - 6.13
Shri Kshemank Merchant 6.56 -
Shri § K Paul 37.22 -
Post employement benefits 1.44 0.92
Shri Jinal Shah 0.85 0.31
Smt Bhoomika Shanna 0.17 | 0.11
Shri Kshemank Merchant 038 | -
|
3 |Director Sitting Fees & Incidental Expediture 244 _ 244
Director Sitting Fees paid to Directors 344 2.44
3 |Donation 7925, 121.50
Donation paid to Vikas BECL intiative for Rural Development ! 79.25( P 121.50
- ; i ta AN
4_|Technical Assistance 359 JLxS SN
Guijarat Industries Power Company Limited o 8.59] {[=f P e}’
i 3 = MDJ‘-I.:j 2] ’
5 _|Purchase of Lignite 3872.52 ] N &/
Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation Itd. 1872.52 < // i
6_|Purchase of Ct 1 6.91 |
Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals [4d. 651 {







Dhavnagar Energy Company Limitad
Netes to the Financial Stateme
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2 Commitments with related parties
The company has not provided sny commitn.

3 Terms and conditions of traasactions with
Transaction entered into with
year end are unsecrured and i

relzted parties are mide un torms equivalent to Giose that prevail |

res in cash

=upth trinsant







avargar Energy Compiny Limtad

MNeles to the Financial Statements

Naote 27 : Finapcial risk management

The Compary’s principal financial liabilitics somprisg o7 lvans wnd berowings, trade piyables ar
are primarily taken for working capitai menagement yarosce. The Company's principal fin
receivables and other £

] . The louns and borrewings
assets dnclade aah sud cash equivalents. trade

inancial assets,

While ensuring liquidity is sufficient to meat Corspany's operziional requirement:, the Cv’n" ry's 2rofent & Financs €
manages key financial risk relating to the operations © f' the Company by analysing ripostres
regulatory risk, fuel availahility 2nd affercability isk, maivet risk (including forefns nerzacy=isi

¥s of risks. 7%

e and ?-mp

Repulatory risk

The Company's operations are subject to re
The rapidly changing regulatory Jandscape p
approved.

Gy intmventiqns, introduction of new laws snd regulaticns inclu
.

ses 2 visk 0 *he Compary, The Con

ling changes in compentive framewdr
any hes anplied: for approval o , which is yet 1o hc

Market Risk )
Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possibls market price movements and theis mpact on the fiture periprmance of o huviness. The major
component of market risk i3 Intest rates risk,

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections reie
The sensitivity of the relevant prefit or foss i
financial liabilities held a1 31 March 2017 and

to the position a3 at 31 Maich 2017 and 31 Maxch 2016,

item

is the efivet of the assumed chanees in sespective market risks. This iv dased on wne Dnancial sssets and

a1l ..-h 2016,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valve o futute £as}
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in marke!
rates. The Company's main interest rate i 1 floating rates.

The Company has initiated, the process of Financiat Rest ‘uctining as per the Guidelines of RBI 2nd appointed M/s. SBI Capita! Markels Limited as i
Financial Advisors. Accerding to restructuring plan, the existing interest mte ie. 10.80% p.a. will be reduced to 8.30% pa. and also ien of «he
repayment will be extended from 11 years to 20.75 yearz, Further, the Interest expenses is pass through uncer the Power Purchree Agreement executed
with M/s. Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstratss the sensitivity fo  Teasonably possible change in interest rates oa loans and benowings. Wil i othey vanables held
constant, the Company's profit before tax is affectes through: the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

(Runees i in Labigy

L Increase/decreace in basis l'*c"e'nn'.u":-r:;:; in prcﬂ. Lefnre
Particuiars
- bos points 3 tax e
2016-17 ;
INR borrowings +50 (1,649.35)
=50 1,649.97
2015-i6 '
TNR borrowings +50 {1,496.92)
-50 1,496.92
The assumed movement in basi 5 for the inia=nc- rate sensitivity amalysis is based on the swreatly ob:zervable mnrket enviconment, showing a

significantly higher volaiility than in priov years.

Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk fhat the fair vaine or future cosh flows of an exposure will fiactuate bicavse of chanpes in fnreign exchange mates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreigm rx2hangs rates relates primarily to the Company s eperaiing activi
is denominated in 2 foreign currency.

tics, i.e. when revenue or expense

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonsirate the sensitivity o a reasonubly possible change in EUR and USD exchange raies, vwith all other vari
The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and labilities. The Company's "!.“’-"
currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Change in Chenge in

Particulars EUR rate Effect on profit before fax USD rete Elfcet an profit beloye sy
2016-17 5% 333.08 5% T9281)
-5% 333.08 -5% 925!
2015-16 5% -303.28 . 5% (77.54)
-5% 303.28 -5% 77.54
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meci its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 1o a firancial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade reccivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks and fi ial institutions and foreign exchange transactions.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s internal policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of

a customer is assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Presently, the Company sales
power to single customer only. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days to 60 days credit term, )







Tio Company monitors its rizk of shoriags of jund: senyrses 2y anvhing of proiesed casit inflow and
cuttiow.

The Company to inuity of funding =nd |

activities and the uie of bank pucentration of o

Company has access to a sufficient varicty of sours
The table below summarises the mat

(Rupees fn Lakhy)

Particulars
As at year ended
31-Mar-17

Borrowings (including current m

Upto 1 year 1105 years

—.total

b Sy 1,838.23 14,025.0C 02,530.5% 3,60,335.03
orrowings)

Trade & other pa - - 2.16%.98
Other financial liabilities - 4 48,4158.04

3i-Mar-16

Borrowings (ircluding current maturities of |

3 3 23,105.06 93,146.00 2,06,077.25 3,22,323.35
borrowings) 3

Trade & other payables * - 25.15 - - 225.15
Other financial liabilitics - 39.MS5.0 - - 39,015.08

01-Apr-15

Bomowings (including current me

borrowings)

Trade & other payables - 41244
Other financial liabilities - 38,974.8%




PBhevnagar Energy Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 : Fair values

1 Carrying value and fair valne
Given below is the comparison by class of the carrying value and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments,
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at March Az at March 31, AsarAgprill,  Asat March AsatMarch  AsatApril J,
_ 31,2877 Lk 2018 .. 31,2017 31,2016 2018
Financial assets
(i) Security deposits 257.31 026.34 958.20 257.31 926.24 058.20
(ii) Other financial assets 022 1.39 1.6 139 110
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 3,60,335.03 3,22,323.35 2,73,301.19 1,60,335.03 3,22,323.35 2,73,801.19

.
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.







Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited
Netes to the Financial Statements

Note 22 : Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capitel and all other equity reserves attributatle to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a sirong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and moximis2 shareholder's value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments {7 it i gt o elanzes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structuze, the Company raay adjust the dividead payment to sharehelders, return capital to sharehelders or
issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plas net debt. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowinzs, trade and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits.

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 14a) 3,60,335 3,22,323 2,73,801
Trade and other payables (Note 14b) 2,170 225 414
Less: cash and short-term deposits (Note 7b) (322) (360) (823)
Net debt 3,62,183 3,22,189 2,73,392
Equity share capital (Note 12) 84,600 . 77,563 70,779
Other equity (Note 13) (32,218) (899) (462)
Total capital 52,382 76,665 70,317
Capital and net debt 4,14,566 3,98,353 3,43,709
Gearing ratio (%) 87% 81% 80%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capitai management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans aud borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants wonld
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in thie financia! covenants of any intcrest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period. The Company has applied for rescheduling the repayment terms and is confident of approval thereof.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April
1,2015.







1bavnagar Energy Compsny Limited
=5 to the Financiai Statements

Note 30 : Disclosure pursuant tc Employce benefits

,. Defined contribution plans:

Armount of Rs. 23.99/- Lakhs March 31, 2017, is recognised as expenses and included in Note i¥o. 22 "Employee benefit expense”

Particulars

Provident Fund
Contributory Pension Scheme

(Rupeses in Lakhs)

2016-17 2015-16
15.92 9.62
8.06 6.48
23.99 16.1C

The Company is depositing Provident Fund contributions of its employcs along witih Company's contribution in the Employees Provident Fund Organisation, ludia.

B. Defined beuefit plans:
+ following post employment be

s which are in the nature of defined banefit plans:

125 gratuity plan whecin every employee is entitled to the benzi
of continvous service.

1,2017 1+ Chanass in defined benefit chligation and plan esscts

s per scheme of the Company, foreach cor
I ParY,

ayable onvetirzment or termination whichever is eariier. The benefit vests

ted year of service. The same is

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Gratuity cost charped to statement of profit and loss

Remessurement pains/(fosses) in other comprehensive income

April 1, 2016 Service cost Net interest =xpense Sub-total Jenefit peid Retum on plan Actuarial changes Actuarial changes Experience Sub-total  Contributions March 31,2017
iactuded in assets (excluding  arising from changes  arising fram changes adjustments  includedin by employer
statement of amounts included  in demographic ocCI
profit and loss in net interest assumpiions assumptions
(Note 22) expense)
{21.31) (6.16) (1.76) (7.52) 1.13 (2.64) (0.08) (2.72) - (30.82)
- 24.64 2.03 2.07 (1.13) (0.28) 5 _ (0.28) 6.15 31.42
3.34 (6.16) R (5.89) - (0.28) -2.64 (0.08) (3.00) 6.15 0.59
Tota! henefit asset / (Hability) 3.34 (6.16) 0.27 (5.89) - (0.28) - (2.64) (0.08) (3.00) 6.15 0.59
‘!\!.JC"I 31,2016 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan sssets 0.00 (Rupees in Lakhs)
Cost charged to statement of profit and loss Remeasurerent gains/(losses) in other comprehe
Aprit1,2015  Service cost Net interest expense Sub-total Bensfit patd Retumonplan  Actuerial changes  Actuarial changes  Experence Sub-total  Contributions March 31,2018
included in assets (excludiog  arising from changes  arising included in by employer
statenient of amounts included  in demographic in fia: ! oci
profit and loss in et interest asswnptions assumptions
{Wote 22) expense)
Gratulty
Defined benefit obligation {19.76) (5.32) (1.58) (6.90; 0.64 4.71 536 - (21.31)
air value of plan essets 15.68 1.25 125 0.23 0.23 7.48 24.64°
(4.08) (5.32) 0.33) (5.65) - . 023 - 0.64 4.71 5.59 7.48 3.34
Totzl benzfic asvet / (liability) (4.68) (532) (0.33) (5.65) - 0.23 - 0.64 4.71 5.59 7.48 334







Flhevoagar Energy Company Limited
Notes lo the Financial Statements

15 of Gratuity arc as follows:

The rhajor categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan 2

Particulars Year ended March 31,2017

Year eaded March 31, 2016

. (%%) of total plan assets (%) of total plan assets
Insurance funds ————a——ax 100% 100%
of tots] plan sssets REDESEEE 100% 100%
The principal ptions used in d ining above defined benzfit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particnlars Year ended March 21,2017 Year ended March 31, 2016
Discount raie 1.57% 8.25%
Future salary inceease 7.00% 7.00%
Expreted rate of retum on plan assets 1.57% 8.25%
Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00%
g employment Indion asswed lives Menality (2006 08) Indian assured lives Mortality

(2006-08)

N.A.

ED el i

decreass in defided begelitobliga

Aincrense)

.u.&ﬁ..hwuﬁwozu

% increase 3,77
% decreass 458
125 increase 4.56
%% decrease -382
1% increass 0.1
3 %6 decrease -0.01

followings ere the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit pian

Year ended March 31,2017

Particulsrs
Gratuity
0.56 0.37
3 4
) 1% . 11.93
) 17.81 16.36

e =——e

otel expected payments

o

Weighted sverage Jurxtion of defined pian obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

Year ended March 31, 2016

Particolars Year ended March 31, 2017
Years Years
15 14

The followings sre the expected contributions to pl d assets for the next year: .
Particulars Yesr ended March 31,2017 Year eoded March 3, 2016
Gratuity 6.20 2.84

C. Other Long term employee benefit plans
Leave encashiment
Hmos

of Rs. 2,11 Lakhs (March 31, 2016: Rs. 0.42 Lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 22 "Employes benefit expense”







FBhavnagar Energy Company Limited
Notes to the Financiz! Statements

Note 31 : First~- time adoption of Jud AS
These financial statements, for the year ended iarch 31, 2017, are the first annual Ind AS fnancial statements, the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements

in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periads ending on March 31, 2017,
together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. In preparing these {inancial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2015, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP
financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 and the previously published Indian GAAP financial statements as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Exemptions from restrospective application

5
Ind AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” ailows first-time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions.

1 Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a a first time adopter to clect to measure an item of property, piant and eauipment inciuding capital work in progress at
the transition to Ind AS at its carrying value and use that carrying value as its deemed cost at that date. This exemption can also be used for
intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38.

Accordingly, the Company has clected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment & intangible assets including capital work in
progress at previous GAAP carrying valuc on the date of transition to Ind AS and used those carrying value as deemed cost of Property,
plant and equipment & Intangible asscts.

2 Embedded Lease

Para D9 of Ind AS 101 states ‘A firsi-time adopter may apply paragraphs 6-9 of the Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an
Arrangement at the date of transition to Ind ASs contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition to
Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not material.’

The Company has assessed on the date of transition i.c April 01, 2015 for the contract where in the entire power generated through the
station after consumption is supplied to GUVNL is an embedded lease arrangement and is considered as an arrangement containing 2 iease

AL

3 Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables
represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS:







Rhavnagar Energy Company Limited

Reconciliation of Tquity as at April 1, 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS

o |

1. Non-current assets

(a) Property, piant and equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Other Intangible assets

(d) Intangible assets under development

(e) Non-current financial assets
(i) Security deposits
(i1) Other finarcial assets

Loans and advances
(f) Other non-current assets
(g) Non-current tax assets (net)

I1.Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash Equivalents
(ii) Other Bank Balance
(iii) Loans and Advances
(iv) Others current financial assets

. (c) Other current assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other cquity

LYABILITIES
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Non-current financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings
(i1) Other financial liabilities
(b) Net Employee Defined Benefits
(d) Government grants

IL.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade and other payables
(iii) Other current financiai liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities

3100

31.3ii1)
31.(3ii)
31.(iii)
31.(ii)
31.(ii)

31.(1i1)
31 (iii)
31.(iii)
31.(iid)
31.(ii1)

(G &

i1 )

31.(iii)
31.(iii)
31.(iii)
31. (i)

31.(ii)
31.(i)
31.(iii)
31.(ii0)

3,617.41

2 . 3 1,70,888.63
70.48 : & 70.48
38.23 4 38.23
958.0G 2 958.00
. 1.39 = 1.39
8,352.16 (8,352.16) -
16.02 7,338.02 = 7,354.04
: 42.80 . 42.80
3,82,982.93 (11.95) 5 3,82,970.99
25.06 = 4 25.06
824.42 (.17 . 822.25
. 1.00 = 1.00
19.04 (19.044) = s
= 1.39 5 1.59
1.56 14.57 16.16
§70.11 (@05 - 866.06 _
3,83,853.04 (16,00} ¥ 3.83,837.04
70,779.39 5 2 70,779.39
(641.41) 179.00 (462.41)
70,137.98 9 179.00 70,316.98
2,71,480.19 = (i79.00) 2,71,301.19
26433.67 (26,433.67) - i
25.79 (15.80) = 9.99
130.00 130.00
2,97,939.65 (26,319.47) (179.00) 2,71,441.18
2.500.00 3 2,500.00
. 413.54 X £13.64
: 38,974.88 . 18,974.82
13.274.63 (13,084.60) " 190.03
0.78 (0.25) e 0.53
15,775.41 26,303.67 2 42,079.09
3,53,853.04 (15.80) 5 3,33,837.24







Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited
Reconciliation of equity as at March 21, 2016

I. Nen-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3,534.75 - - 3,534.75
(b) Capital work-in-progress 31.0%1) 4,26,692.82 - (z42.71) 4,26,450.1%
(c) Other Intangible assets 61.98 - - 61.98
(d) Intangible assets under development 38.23 - - 38.23
Loans and Advances 31.(ii1) 7,930.11 (7,930.11) - -
(e) Non-current financial assets
(i) Security deposits 31.(3ii) - 92634 - 926.34
(ii) Other financial assets 31.(iii) - 1.39 - 1.39
(f) Other non-current assets 31.(3i1) 23.28 6,971.81 B 6,995.08
(g) Other non-current tax assets (1:et) 31.(iii) - 12.01 - 12.01
4,38,281.16 (18.56) (242.71) 4,38,019.91

I1.Current assets

(a) Inventories 219.00 - - 219.00
(b) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cnsh Equivalents 31.(131) 361.28 (1.39) - 359.89
(ii) Loans and Advances 31.(3ii) 14.91 (14.91) - -
(iii) Other financial assets 31.(11) - 1.60 - 1.60
(c) Other current assets 3G 1.60 13.30 - 14.91
_ 596.79 (1 39) - 595.40
Total Assets 4,38.877.95 __(19.95) (242.71) 4.38,615.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 77,563.39 - - 77,563.39
31.G & ! 5 6 98.81)
YO ity J.ﬁ(;)& (818.57) 1.37 (81.61) (898.81)
76,744.82 1.37 (81.61) 76,664.58 ’
LIABILITIES

I. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics

(i) Borrowings 31.(ii) 2,99,384.45 - -161.10 2,99,223.35

(ii) Other financial liabilities 31.(1ii) 26,548.17 -26,548.17 - -

(b) Net Employee Defined Benefits 31.(iii) 30.56 (21.32) - 9.24
(c) Government grants 31.3i) - 112,48 - 112.48
3,25,963.17 -26,457.01 -161.10 2,99,345.06

I1.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 31.(iii) 23,10C.00 - 23,100.00

(ii) Trade and other payables 31.(iii) B 225.15 - 225.15

(ii) Other financial liabilitics 31.3i1) - 39.015.08 - 39,015.08

(b) Other current liabilities 31.(1i1) 13,067.60 (12,820.53) - 247.07
(c) Provisions 31.(3151) 237 (1.53) - 0.84
(d) Government grants 31.3i1) - 17.52 - 17.52
36,169.97 26,435.69 - 62,605.66

Total Equity and Liabilities 4,38,877.96 (242.71) 4,38,615.31
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Bhravaagar Bnergy Com

Reconciiiation of Total Comprehensive ¥

Income

neome for the year exded March 35, %9

!Rupue\ in Lakh %)

Other income - - - =
Total Revenue (I) > - - - -
Expenses
Cost of aw materials consumed - - - -
Empleyec benefits expense 31.41) 10.24 -1.49 102.49 111.24
Finance costs 31. (iii) - - 18.24 18.24
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.92 - - 3.92
Other Expenses 31.(1) 142.94 - 145.58 288.52
Total expenses (11) 157.10 -1.49 266.31 421.92
Loss hefore tax (1= I-T1) (157.10) 1.40 (266.31) (421.92)
Tax expense
Current tax 20.0¢ - - 20.06
Deferred tax o - BPI. PA - - -
Total tax expense (IV) 20,06 - - 20.06
1ss for the year (V=111-IV) ) (177.16) i.49 (266.31) (141 ‘)’))
Qther Comprechensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit 3L.3i1) - 5.59 5.59
plans
Income tax effect - v ot
- - 559 5.59
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (VI) - - 5.59 5.59
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net'of t2x (VII=V+VI) (177.16) 1.49 (260.72) (43 16 40)







Nhavnager Energy Company Limited

- )

Motesio the Financial Statements

Notes to the reconcilistion ef equity as xt April 1, 2015 z-d Maceh 35, 2036 and total compreiensive incorae for the year ended
March 31, 2016 '

i. Decapitalisation of expenses
Under previous GAAP, thv* company has capitalised prelimnary exnenses, lovn processing charges and other general adminstrative
expenses related to H.O. The same hze Lien .cwrsed as thexa i ot eiigibic for ca ml disation under Ind AS,

ii. Re-measurement gain / loss on defincd benefit plan

Under Ind AS, re-measurement i.c. actnarial gain loss and the return on plan assets, excluding an:ounts included in the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability are reeognised in other comprehensive income mslu\d of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these
re-measurement were forming part of the profit or less for the year. As a result of this chenge, the profit for the year ended on March 31,
2016 increased by Rs. 5.59 Laklis. Thers is no impast on the total equity @5 at March "1 2016.

ifi. Classification '8 Presentation
Classification of Financial Assets aned Minanejal Liabitice

The Company has assessed the cla 2alion of financial asseis and liabilities under nd AS 3

circumstances at the transition date. Borrowings (part of T

“nd AS 109 on the basis of the facts 2nd
pancial Liabilities) - Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in
connection with borrowings arc amortized and charged to proiit or loss for the peried. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included in the
initial recogniticn zmount of financiz! Hability measured at amortised cost and charged to Stateinent of Profit and Loss using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method.

Recognition of government grant s ¢cierred income
The government grant related to fixed assets was netted off with the cost respective PP vader previous GAAR. Under Ind AS. TPE has
been recognised at gross cost and Lovcrnw‘c‘m grant has been recognised as deferred income.,

iv. Statement of cash flows
The impact of transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS on the statement of cash flows is due tc various reclassification adjustments

recorded under Ind AS in Balance sheet and Statement of profit and loss and difference in the definition of cash and cash equivalents under
these two GAAPs .

Note 32 : Standards issued but not yet effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Co- ratc Affairs has issued the Companies (Indian Accoun ) {Amendment) Rules, 2017

notifying amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows™ and I*d AS 102, ‘Share-besed Paviaents’. These amendments ai2 in
accordance with the recent nm':ﬁd:rcm\ made by International Accounting Standards Roard (L48B) to IaS 7 ”Emc":cm of Cash Flows’

1nd TFRS 2, ‘Share-based Fayment’, respectively. The amendments are app licable to the Cor; rpany from Aprit 1, 2017,

1 Standards

Amendment to Ind AS 7

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requirad {he eatities to provide disclosures that enables users of financiel statements fo evainate changes in
liabilities arising from financing "mt‘? ities, including both changes arising from cash flows and now-eash changes, suggesting inclusion of a
reconciliation between the opening 2id closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arisiug from financing activities,
disclosure requirement.

to mect the

The Company has evaluated the dis:losure requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is not expected to be
material.

Amendment to Ind AS 102

As the Company does not have such nature of transaction, this amendment does not have any effect on the financial statements of the
Company.







Bhavnagur Loergy Company Limited
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Note 33 : Commitracnts (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars ; ! nsat Asat
: March 31,2017 Marzh 31,2016
Capital Commitients

Estimated amount nfgomc(s (Net of Advances: remaining 10 be sreanted aa Capfal

Amount 2nd rict providad for. g . 30,421.09 4184113
¢ 41,841.13

—— i

Note 24 : Contingent latilities not jroviiled for
Clsime ngainst the Campaay viof acknowledped as debts

(i) Inzccurdance wiih the Contraet £ zreeawnt for Construction of Piling and Geperal
Project, at Padva, Rhaviaer Dist M/s, Shagnorji Pallonji & Company Pyt Lid ("SPCLY) served notice of Arvitcation on the company ettlsment of
dispute arises cut of sontract geeemeni towarde Delay Damages, Payment of Variations, C Hification Errors, Peimbursement of taxes and cesses & Tnterest
Cost ete for Rs. 26,217.79 Lakhs. {Previoas year Rs.10,830 Lakhs and as at Apnil 01,2015 Rs, 869.91 Lakhs)

ibworks (the "Contraet™) fur 2 % 250 MW Lignite Based Thermai Pover

Furtiier, SPCL has charped service 132 @ 10.30% on their invoice till 15t July, 2012 towards General, Civil & Pilling works, which in 1erms o legal opinion
obtained by the company, servize tax is chargeable only @ 4.12%. The differential amount is Rs. 859.91 Lakhs (Previous yoor Rs, 869.91 Lakhs and s ot April
01,2015 869.91 Lakhs) which company has not acknowledged as dett,

In Acsordance with Articie 7 ofthe Contract Agreement, the Claimant (SPCL) vide its Notice of Arbitration dated 02.01.2017 nominated arbitrater to resolve
the dispate. The respondent (“the Company” or "BECL") vide its lotter dated 13.02.2017 nominated compazy's asbitrator to resoive the dispute.

Further, BECL had submitted its statement of defence dated 14.08.2017 to the applicant along wilh counter ciaim of efmmxh:ml&y Rs. 135,576.85 Lakhs. The
company has not acknowledged claic: subuaitted by M/s. SPCL 5z debt. 2« final out corne of arbitration proceading is =t not come,

(i) The Company has entrusted the work of Sea Water Intake, Outfall and Circulating Water System 2 M/s MARG Lid. vide Letter of Award dated 2Gth July 2013,

Subsequently, 23 M/s. Marg could not complete the work withinschedulad time period, the matter went for arhitraiion. Details of erbitmition was previded in the
Aanuzl Report £Y 2015-16 whersby the company had not accepted claim of M/s, Marg for Rs. 31,073 Lakhz towards price escalation, financing and
administrative cost and aence the satne amount was considered as contingent liability, As pe: latest arbits! proceeding, Me, Marg hias revised the claim amount
for Rs, 31,988 00 Lakhs whicl: aleg the company has not acknowledp=d o< debt on the contrary the company has clained ks, 91 ,192.69 Lakhs under arbitration
towards intesast cost and toss of profit dne (o delay in completion of work, alternative amangement of sweet water in place of sea water, financing and
administrative cost, etc. The proc=edings of Arbitraticn Tribunal is going on.

(iif) The Company bas acquired iand of 22112 sq. meters for approach road 1o site from privite ewners of land, The Company had inilially paid Rs, 11.64 Lakhe @
Rs.29 per £q. meter plie ather expenses 1 all the land owners. In F.Y.2012-14, the company paid Rs. 0.57 Lakhs @ R3.246 per sq. metar plus other expenses for
3838 5q. meters of land. During tha FY 2015-16, the company has paid Rs. 26,86 Lakhs @ Rs 246 per sq. meter for 10,922 ¢q. meters of land, Hovover, owaers
of 7352 3q. meters of land have not agreed 10 accept the consideration @ Rs.274/- (Rs.29 + Rs.24G)per sq. meter aad have ralsed' their aaditiona{ claim @
Rs.72) per £q. meter (Rs,750-Rs.29). The estimated differcntial amount is R4.53.01 Lakhs, (Previous year Rs.52.01 [ s and ae at Apnl G, 2015 Wil) has not
acimowsldged as debt Ly the Company,

{iv) The Company has ncquired adiiitional land of 24484.00 5q. meters. As per Dy, Collector, Bhavuagar order No. spevial LA.O. Caseno.
@27/5q. meter rlong with solesizm arpas and rate difference is payable, However, land cwners have vefsesd o aczept the a
Lakhs (Previous year Rs 55 €3 Lakhs and as at April 01, 2015 Nil) @ 350/ sq. meter which the company has rot ackmowlease the debt.

2009 Rs, 10.51 Lakhs

(v) The Company has entrusted the vork of lzying 610 mm dia /700 mm dix MS pipe line for sweet vater from: NagdhanimbaTatiya to BECL power plant, Villsge
Padva in Bhavnagar district to GWIL a: a deposit work. The compazy has 1o pay compensation to fanmers towa-ds damape of Trees and damaye of feacing,
carthen bund, etc.The estirnzted remnining amount payable towards the compensation for Trees and for damape of fencing, earthen bund, etc. is Rs. 233 Lakhs
(Previovs year Rs.2.33 Lakhs and as a¢ April 01, 2015 2.33 Lakhs),

{vi) M/s. EMCO Limited has submiited etz claim towards of 2s. 198.07 Lakiis (Previous year and 25 at April 01, 2015 M) which is ot acknowledged as debt
during the FY 2016-17.

(vii)i. The Company has entered into a Purshase Power Agreement (PPA) with Gujarat UrjaVikas Nigam Ltd. (GUVNL) for sate of power. As per the agreement,
seheduled Commersial Cperation Daie (COD) for Unit T and Unit Il was 18.62.2012 and 13.05.2012 respectively and liquidated damages (LD) caa be jevied, in
case of delay in achieverment of COD, 2: per the terms cf agreemeat,

The Compary has informed GUVNL cs well as Government of Gujamt about Gelay in COD and requested to extenl the date of COD and to condone tie delay
in a view that the delay is due to rezsons beyond the control of Mansgement of the Company 2nd it should be treated as Farce Majeurs, The Goverameant of
Gujarat, throngh Energy and Petrochmital Depatment vide its letter duted 14th February, 2018 has directed M/s. GUVNL to defer the levy of Liquidated
Damazes of Rs. 167.0/- Crores till Marsh, 2020. Accodingly the GUVNL also has censidered the deferment in its Beard Meeting held ex 23rd Februavy, 2018,

Meamwhile, BECL hzs also requasted for waiver of the LD cbarges of Rs. 167.50/- Crores to M/z, GUVNL vide letter date

h Febr:ary, 2018 for which
confirmation from GUVNL is awaited,

The Company has ot ackmoledzed ae debt of P, 16750.00 Lakhs (Previous year and as at April 01,2015 R, 16750.00 Lakns)

Note 35 : Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Ly
Particulars As at March 3,4
As 2t March 31,2017 2016
Net Profit as per Statemen® of Profit and Loss (31,316.28) (441.99)
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 77,5633,900 70,77,93,900
Equity Shares issued during the year 7,03,70,600 6,78,40,000

Equity Shares outstanding at the enri of the year 84,60,03,200 77.56,33,900

Weighted Average Number of Fquity Shures In ealeulating Basic EPS
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Ir ealculating Diluted EPS

83,98,40,285 74,19,92,696
83,98,40,285 74,19,92,696

Basic Earning Per Share (3.73) (0.06)
Diluted Eerning Per Share (3.73) (0.06)
Nominal Value of Shares 10.00 10.00
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Note 36 : Segment reporting
The Company's operations fall under sine’e segmert namely “Power Gencration”, tiking into a-count the (i
the intemal yeperting systems heace no s¢

rent risks 10l retnms, the organizati
unt is zequiived 10 be made a3 vequiredd widar Tid AN - 0¥ “Cparating §

Note 37 : Du 76, e O
allicd construction thereto for sweet
total cumulative occupation charges of Re. 2,50.000/. For use of Ind, the total comy
proportionate amount of Ks. 10,000/~ rel t2d 20 cus -ent financial year is charped to Prohit

G kemags maater ooe

ner) for 25 years from ?
harges i vh

2 Loss Acconit

= pecupalion pharges and

Note 38 : The company, ia order to commission the project, has opted to divide the project in 9 (Nize) different packages and contiacts were piven 19 ~aricus
cont-actors with the clause of Liguidatad Damage to be recovered in cass of delay by in completion of work. The pany, as Jdacidea in the mizeting of
Board of Dirsctors dated 21/03/2013, m order to avoid delay in comumiesioning the project, payment should be made in 2 manner that company shanld be i position
to recover the aunount of Liquidated Dammages.

Further, as per letter zeceived from Government of Gujarat, Energy and Petrochemicals Department di.3rd Jay
that, BECL neads to recover the Liquidated Damages (LD) from the diiTarent vendors who have delayed in ex o work. However, due to 7
settlement of the Contrzcts, no action / accounting entry has been done for recovery of Liguidated Damages. Ths amount is not quanafizble at this siage.

Note 39 : Based on information availahle with the Company, there are no suppliers who are registered as Micro, Small or Medium voterprises under “The Micro,
Small &Medium enterprises developroent Act 2006” as on31st March, 2017,

Note 40 : As per the condition no. (xxx) laid down by Ministry of Environment & Forest vide letter no. J-13011/39/2008-IA.T{(T) dated 10,02.2010, R5.840.00

Lakhs 35 one timz capital cost for Corporate Sacial Responsibility program and subzeguently, a recuming expenditure of £.5.170.00 Lakhs per annum till operation of
the plant for Corporate Social Rasporsinility sctivities is yet 1o be earmarked.

For the purpase of Corporats Sacial Re:,
a donation of Rs.79.25 J.ekhs during the

itity activity, the Company has created a trust in the name of Vizas BECL Tnitiative for Rural Developraent and given
srrent period towards Comorate Social Respornsibility program. 7

Note 41 : The existing term toaa of tha Cowmprny is Rs.2,99,400/- Lakls. (Term Loan -1) &Rs 30,600 Lakhs (Teom Loan 1), =1 bl in 45 guanterly
installments. As perprevious sanstioned, the repayment date was to start from 30.09.2015. However, due to deley in nroject scheduic; company has requasted to
make revision in payment dme. Hence, sonso:tium banks have approved revision in repayment date fom30.09.2615 to 3 122016, ow of delay in
project schedule, the Comprry hss raquested all Consortium Banks to defer the repayment schedule, accordingly Consertiv baaks hav: ¢d revision in
repayment date from 31.12.2016 to 31.12.2017 vide letter ref PFSBU/Tent-08/2016-17/2039 dated 27.10.2016.

Note 42 : Additional Information (f0 the =xtent applicable)

2. Payment to Auditor {Rupees in Lakhs)
| Partitulsrs 2016-17 2015-16 |
|Statutory Audit Fees s 230 204 |
i:,h?:cr(‘u‘.:ﬁrnfian Work 0.12 0.11 I

b. Vaive of Import on C.1.F Basls in respect of Capital Goods

(Rupees in Lokhs)
Particulars 2016-17 201516

Capital Goods 948.11 -

Nota 43 : Depreciztion on Fixed Asset — except free hold land, capital spaves and computer software was hithesto being provided on straight line method at the mtes
specified under Schedule 1T of the Companies Act 2013, Company has revised its Acconnting Policy of charging Depreciation in the books of account w.e.f
01.04.2016. Accordingly depreciation for the F.Y. 2016-17 has been arrived cn straight line basis at rates and methodology notifiet in Gujarat Eiectricity Regulaiory
Commission ( Multi Year Tariffy Regulatior.s, 2016. Consequent to this change, depreciation for the year is lower by 10.52/- Lakhs on sxcluding asvets capitalised
during the year.

Up to FY 2015-16, Depreciation was charped a3 per Companies Act, 2013 However due 1o change in Accounting Palisy, {f depree
and methiodology provided in GERC (MY T) Regulations, 2016, Depreciation would have been charged lower by Ra. 27154/ Lak™s,

ion was charged s per rates

Note 44 : During the current year, Company has siccessfully commissioned its Z X 259 MW power projzet, and deslared Commereini Operation Dats (“COD”) of
its Unit-1 and Unit-Tl on 140 Mav, 2016 2nd 27:h March, 2017 respectively, In vizw of dzclaration of COD, the Compans lins napitatised ifs major power project
asset during the corrent financ?

As FY 2016-17 is initisl yoar of operation of the company, the Company has incurred Joss of Rs. 21,318.28/- Lakhs. The loss for the year mainiy sonsists of

Borrowing Cost of Rs 16,864.42/- LakYs, and depreciation of Rs, 8.641.71 Lakhs, During the FY 2016-17, LD Charges of =, 16750.00 Lakhs lovied by M's.
GUVNL has been concidered s Contingent Liability, (Please refer Note 34 (vii))

Further, the Company expects improvement in gencration of power from next Financial Year and fisancial restructuring of debyt is under process. Having regards to
improvement in operational performance and Financial Supports from Promoters and Lenders; the Compz

y's financial statenents have been prepared on the basis
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Note 45 : In accordance wi A e quiremnts under 5, 1 & §2 olthe Electricits Azy,
Petition for Approvalof T 0 G 1.2016. Suhsequently, as per GERT direction, 3EC
the response on vitien obicetinns received 1 resncnse to Public Hatics in March-2016.

» during the & Y 2015415, BECL had flle he
;"! :vn_-wviqu_r’ cuments 70 22.02.2076 and §

47.07.2016 directing GUTVHL 19 submit the tariff
calcuLuow *nd BE l“ lo v 10 GERC on D1,08.2026 v BECL fillad rejoinder an 10.08.2015. The

final verdict from GERC i5 awaii

Note 45 : The Company has been imzzlermenting 2 X 250 MW Power Froject. The company in order 1o commission the projsct bat opted 1o divids the projects in 9
(Nine) different packages. The ganen.ting capacity of both the Units of the company is sam.s and based on Boiier Twbine Generator (“BTSGY) which is 250 MW
each. Other auxilisrice ars cormen for hotl e Units,

The Cormpany fias git ez couroon wark o/der for BTG and Other muxiliaries for both the vait
£0% base hes Leen takea for capit
Bzlance of Plant paciazs and Sea Wais
other Auxiliarizs (zxccit Bal
approvad in Audit & Risk !

A3 gcne:ilinz. capacity of both the Units of tie Comprny is same, the
c. of the project assets, Acwonimgly 50% Cost of Boiler Turbine Generator (BTC) and other related nuxilieries (except
Intake Syriem) has been capiialized 25 on 16th May. 2616 (d=cliration of COD of first Unit) and 50% Cest of DTG and

1ge ard Sca Water In tem) a5 on 27t March, 2017(dectaration of COD of seeond Unit and the stme bas been
e inceting dt : 19.12.2017,

Note 47 : The company ha + Corfirmation to major contractors, vandor aod service praviders to confirm sccerns as on 31st Maich, 2017, The prities
who have submitted accounts c"nﬁrmul one are reconciled with books of accounts and others who have ot sabmitted the rec n ere suhject to
confimation and reconciiistion.

Nate 48 : Figures hava been rounded off 1o the nezrest Lakhs.
Nots 49 : Previcus year figures have teen reproup=d / reclassified wherever necessary ta samespond with evrreat yo ar's elazsifestion ¢ disclozane,

Nete 50 : Disclosure on Specifisd Bank MNotes (STNs)
During the'year, the Company hud spect
details of Specified Back Note:
other notes as per potificution i

Liank notes or other denominationnotes 13 defined in MOCA notificatin GuS.b.
Ms) eIl and transacted during the period fia Neovamber 8, 2016 ta Decunbar 10, 2
y below:

1NK(C) datent Mareh 31, 2
15. the danapsination wis rS"\sv'('

Closirg cash balance as on November 8, 2016 | 11.000 2,268 | 13368
(+) Permitted Receipte 9 - 2.00372 2,00372
(=) Permitted Payments - 1,05,181 1,638,181
(-) Amount deposited in Sanks 11,000 | | 11,000
Closing cash halance as on December 20, 2016 .| 34,559 | 34,559

*For the purpasss of this clause, the teri 'Specified Bank Notes’ shall kave the same meaning provided ia the 1.ofification of the Government of
Indie. Ministry of Firance, Dejortment of Ecenomic Affairs number §.0. 3407(F), dated November 8. 2016,

Closing casi balance as on November 8, 2016 | 00 |

! 2 |
(-) Permitted Payments | R, T
(-) Amount deposited in Banks { 11,000 |
Closing cash balance as an December 30,2016 \ - f

*For che purpases of thi: clause, tie term ‘Specified Bank Notes' shali have the same meang provided in tie nai ficatinn of the Goverzntent
of India, Ministry of Firance, Deparirient of Economic Affairs number S.0. 3407(E), dated Nevember &, 2016

Note 51: Approvzl of Financiai Statements
The Financial statement - ware appreved for issue by the Bozrd ¢f Directors on dt,

As per our report of even date
For Sandip Desal & Co. / \\’ (JESA

y cnn*mﬂna HuygeT PK T:mc!a
Chastered Accountats / -ﬁ Director Chrirman
DIN: 0003584"0 DIN:0000010389

ICAI Firm's Registration No. 1! 2“? /
Rporeerdo— 5 Lnanbt_

Devang Mysorewala ~ "I.x' N Didmishe

Partner Ceneral Manager (F&A) & CFO
Membership No.116802

Place : Gandhin: Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 23 MMC‘\,Q—O |8 Date : unﬂ ML‘ 20} ‘é_

Res,
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Auditor’s Regponsibilit

Qur responsibility is to express ar opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on

our audit.

We bave taken into accouni the provisions of the Act, the accounting sod auditing
standards and matters wiich are required te be included in the audit report under the

provisions of the Act.and the Rules made there under.

We conducteo our audit of the Ind AS ﬁnamlal statements in accordance with the
Standards on Audttmg specified under Section 1432(10) of the Aut. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the Ind A8 financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit mvolvcs per f:n ming procedures to obiain audit evidence about the amounts and
the dlsclosurcs in the Ind AS financial statements. The precedures st l'*c ed depend on the

auditor’s judgment. n‘cluunw the assessinent of the risks of malesial misstaternent of the

-+

md AS fnancial siaterments, whether due to fraud or emror. in making those risk
asscssments, the anditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Tnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order fo
design audit procedures hat are appropciate in the circumsiances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suificient and appropriate 1o

provide a basis for our andit opinion on the Tnd AS financial statements.




Opinion

In our opinion and 1o the best of cur information 22d accerding to the explanations given

to us, the aforesaid Iné AS fl"-q cial staisiach’s Ei'ul: e indhrmation ICfun 2 b] the Act
in the manner so requirad and give a truc and fair view in rovformﬂy with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Ind AS, of the financial

position of the Compauy as at March 31, 2018, and its ﬁnanc;nl performance including
other comprehcnswc income, its cash ﬂox\s and the changes in "quny for the year ended
on that date. |

Emphasis of Matters

1. We draw attention 1o the Note No. 38 to the fAnancial stztemenis relating to non-

fulfiliment of condifion of the letter of Ministry of Bnvitonmient and forest,
government of India dt. 10" February 2010 as regards o ar amount of Rs. $40
lakhs as reguired o be earmarked as one time capital cost of Corporate Social
Responsibility Programme against to which the Compaiy has ‘expended Rs.
296.75 Jakhs ti}i 31% March, 2018.
Further as per the conditions a recurring expenditure of Rs. 170 lakhs per annum
to be spent, till the operation of the Plant for Corporate Social Responsibility
activities. During the year, out of the above mentioned Rs. 170 lakhs, Rs. 23
Lakhs have been incurred & balance Rs. 147 lakhs remains unspent as at 31%
March, 2018. The said balance provision shall be carried forward to the next FY.

2. We draw to attention to Note No. 36 in respect of Liquidated Damages, according
to the leiter of GOG Energy and Petrochemicals Department dt. 03..01.2017,
company needs to recover Liquidated Damages from the different vendors who
have delayed in execution of work, however, till date of Audit Report no

Liquidated Damages have been recovered.

(5]

We draw attention to Note No. 41 in the financial statements in respect of current
year loss of Rs. 61730.81 lakhs and accumulated losses of the company of
Rs. 93943.82 Lakh and the financial statements being prepared on going concern

basis. Our opinion is not modified in this respect. The accumulated loss is mainly

due to Depreciation and Borrowing Cost.




We deaw to attention to Note No. 42 in the financisl statemierts i tes l.Ct of Tariff
Petition filled with GERC in respect of dpproval of Tariff and for the same
subsequent submission of documents as per requirement of GERC are filled on
10.08.2016 and final verdict from GIRC is awaited. In the meantime the
Company has taken actions by taking up the matter with M/s GUVNL as per

directives of the Board.

Report on Other Legal aud Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Qrder, /016 C‘* m]cr”), as

(b
-~

"mcnmd B ?U k- the Central Govermrzent of India in terms :3_1'_ sub-gection (11)
of sec 110n 1* } f’r""‘- Act, we give i t’r “Annexurz A” a stais ‘w*u on Lh: mntte.\
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the f)rde"

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanaticns which to the

best of our kriowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, preper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the

Company s¢ far as it appears from our éxamination of those books;

pA

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other

.~ 3 >

fJ'a

comprehensive income and the Cash Flow Statemen: and statement of changes in

equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

In our opimion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 123 of the Act.

On the Basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

((* (Hm“

\\ \io APCO /J'




f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
eporting of the Compeany and (he operating sffcctivensss of such conirols, refer to
our separate chdrt in “Annexnre 27
g. With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:
i. The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statemeats.
ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts fo wh'ch there were any material foresecable losses;
iii.  There \*.f;- . no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
In\;cstor Education and Protection Fund by the Corapany.
iv.  The disclosure regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted
during 8" NMovember 2016 to 30™ December 2016 has not been made since

the requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2018.

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, 2013 we are enclosing herewith
compliances to directions / sub directions as part of Audit Report in “Annexure
{” enclosed herewith.

For, Sandip Desai & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 111812W

Apsenalr—-

Devang Mysorewala
Partner
Membership No :116809

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 19™ July’2018




“Annpexure A” to the ITndependent Auditors’ Report

Referred to-in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘“opoact on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Corapany for
the year ended March 31, 2018:

1) (a) In our copinion, the Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets
(Property, Plant & Equipment);

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physicaily verificd by the management at
reasonable intervals, which in our opinion, is reasonabie having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the
fixed assets (Property, Plant & Equipment) has been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books
records and tiie physical fixed assets have been noticed. The iters of Initial /
Mandatory Capital stores and spares are to be handed over by the contractors
to the company at the time of hand over of the plant and hence, the same being
in the custody of the contractor, the question of physical verification by the

management docsn’t arise.

(c) The title deeds of immovablc properties are held in the name of the company.

2) As explained to us, the management with pre auditor has conducted the physical
verification of inveniory at rcasonable intervals, and as explained to us, the
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to
books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not
material.

3) In our opinion and according to the information given to vs, the Company has not

granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability




4)

6)

partnerships or eilboeg parties covered I the Regisier maipriained under section 189

e bl

of the Act. Accordingly, the proviziens of elpnee 3 (iiD) (@) o (C) olthe Order are

not applicable 1o the Cfnnpany and hence 1ot commenrted upot:,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, no
loan or guarantee or security is given as per hc provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companics Act, 2013. Accordingly, hc pa‘ovxslons of clause ¢ of the Order

s not applicabic to the Company and hence, not commented aoon

In our opiniont and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company kas not aceepted any deposits during the year from the public with in the
meaning of provisions of Sections 72 to 76 of the Companics Aci, 2013 and the
rules framed there under and therefors, reporting under clause (v) of the Ordet is
not applicable 1o the Company.

As explained and informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has been not
applicable to the Company under sub-section (1) of Scetion 148 of the Act, i

respect of the acivities carried on by the company.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

cxamination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been

generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax. Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any
other statutory ducs with the appropriate authoriiics except while making payment
to workers appointed at site as casnal labour, where various labour iaws are not
applicable. According to the informarion and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were i arrears as at March
31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become
payable.




" .
b) Acconding to ihe &

duses of income 19%.
added tax, Goads

following dues.

erination aid

nlgs tax, supvies ts dnty of ¢

= iy
2

and Service Tax ouistan:

cxplanaiion giver

0O IS
L

is, thers are no disputed

istoms,. duty of excise, vaiue

ing on account of any dispute, except

| Nature of

Noture of

[ Amount |

Period to which the

forum where the

Statue i Dues (Rs. In amount relates dispute is pending
' =] Lakhs) ] r
Income Tax | Intereston 3.06 A.Y.2014-15 !Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 | TDS : | Tribunal, Ahmedabad
3) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given io us, the
Company has =oi defaulted in the repayment of duec to banks and financial
pany ¥
institutions except as per listed below tabie. The Joang have been taken from
various public sector banks. Further, the company has not issued any debentures
during the year.
| | Interest Amount | T | Delay in
Month : i Due Dale Paid Date |
l (In Lakh) Days
.- I
January 2018 i 2483.60 | 01/02/2018 30/04/2018 87
February 2018 ! 2389.7’8"} 01/03/2018 29/05/2018 88
March 2018 | 2950.13 | 01/04/2018 | 29/06/2018 88
. mnmmendl, Nria . 51 i =)
= T “ i i = !
, rincipal \ - 1 ) -
" | - i Delay in ‘
Month | Amount (In ’ DuelDate | PaidDaie | '
i . | E Days i
i Lakh) ! : ‘ |
Quamerdof | | o P |
| 7313.00 | 31/03/2018 | 29/06/2018 | 89
FY 2017-18 | | | |
I " ! :
9) During the year the company has not raised any money by way of initial public

offer or further public offer (including debt instrument). The company has raised







10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

by way of term joans aad has appliad the money for e purpose for which they

were raised. The surplus fund lying unutilized in absence of any imunediate due
towards the project expenses is invesied in liquid deposits with Gujarat State

Financial Services Ltd. by the Company as matter of prudence policy.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or

reported during the course of our audit.

In our opinion and according to the informaiion and explanation given to us, the
company has paic/provided for managerial remuneration ir accordance with the,
provisions of seziion 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not 2 Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of

sowe

clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not appiicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explenation given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the company, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us, (e company has issued
18,40,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid by private placement to promoters
and have complicd with provision of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
according to formation and explanation given to us, the amount raised by the

company has been used for the purpose for which the finds were raised.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with dircctors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.




16)  In our opinion, the company is not required (¢ be registered under section 45 1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

For, Sandip Desai & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 111812W
Bhoreonls—

Devang Mysorewala
Partner

Membership No:11680G2

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 19" July’2018




“Anpexznre B” to the Independent Anditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Finarcial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhavrnagar

iv ayva

Enerey Company Lirnited (“the Company’ 25 of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our
o P o N p v /

o~ ks

audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Respongsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsibic for establishing and maintaining internai
financial controls based on for example, “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai Financial Contrels Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that “vere operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the preventicn and detection of frands and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely rreparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting Hased on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note or Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to

an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial







Controls and, botﬁ ?ssﬁcci by the Instinuie of Chavicred Accouatants of "indié. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require fhat v coniply with ethical ‘reqﬁ_i}.exﬁents. and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about ‘whether adequate
internal financial controis over financial reporting was estaBlishcd and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ab‘ou‘t the adequacy of
the internal ﬁnéncial confrols system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls cver financial reporting,
assessing the risk that 2 waterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectivencss of internal contrel based op the assessed ris;k.,.’,i.’l;c procedurea
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, wheiher diie to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Infernal IFinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assuvance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financiai statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internial financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedurss that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of rccords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with







authorisations of i m('..;\ went and directors of the corpas and (3) ;:r,ovid?; reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely dete diuz of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statemenits.

Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportmg

Because of the inhcrem limitations of internal financial controls ever financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or imuc may ocecur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any cvaivaiion of the intcmﬁL i“-.r:ancial contrais over ﬁnancial 1'eporting to
future periods are 3121;'_:':',‘;. to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the
internal control over finencial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential componerits of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Contiols Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”

For, Sandip Desai & Co.

Chartered Acconnianis

Firm’s Registration No:111312W

reonl

Devang Mysorewaia
Partner
Membership No:116809

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 19" July’2018
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Annsxure C to the Audiloi’s Seport

A) Directions uader Section 143(5) ~ Compnnias Act, 2013 Appiicable for the
year 2017-18 ‘

Sr. No.

_ Questionnaire

i

e

. Respouse/Remedial Measures

Whether the Company has clear title/ | Yes, company has clear title for freehold
lease deeds for freehold and leaschold |/ lease hold land. 10

respectively? 1 not please state the arca
of Frechold and leasehold land for
which title 7. Iecase deeds are not
available?

2 Whether there are any cases of waiver/ | There are no cases of waiver/write off
write off of debsis/. Joans/ interest etc. debts /7 loans /7 interests etc. during the
If yas, the reasens there for and the | year
amount involved. -

3 Whether proper records are maintained | There are no any inventories lying with |

for inventorice lving with third parties |

& assets receivad as gift/ grant(s) {from
the Govt. or other authorities?

|
?
|
|

third parties. No assets have been
received as gifi from Government or
other authorities during the year.

l

B) Sector specific sub directions under Seciion 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
applicable for the year 2017-18

system for reconciliation of quantity/
quality of coal crdered and received
and whether pgrade of coal/ moisture

Sr.No. | Qucstionnaire Response/Remedial Measures |

i In the cages” -of Thermal Power | As informed to us by the Technical
Projects, compliance of the various | Department, during execution of
Pollution Contro! Acts and the impact | Project, details about various measures
thereof including utilization and | related to Pollution Controi are being
disposal of asix and the policy of the | ensured in lines with Environment
t company in this regard, may be [ Clearance granied for this project.
checked and commented upon. | -

2 Has the company entered inte revenue | No
sharing agreements with ptivau,!
parties for cxiraction of coal at
pitheads and it adequately protects the
financial interest of the company?

v Does the company have a proper | The Company has system for

reconciliation of quantity, quality and
grade of Lignite and also recording
system is in force.







and demurrage etc., are properly
recorded in the books of accounts?

34

v

[

the water discharge is as per policy /
guidelines issued by the State
Government 1o maintain biodiversity.
For not mazintaining it penalty
paid/payable may be reported.

|
k
|

|
|

point is not applicable.

4 \Hmv much share of free power was + The electricity generated 's old to M/s.

t due to the State Government and | G U\J\HJ as per terms of PPA. (Power
whether the same was calculated as i Purchase Agreement), !
per the agreed terms and depicted in | 'I
the accounts as per accepted ! '
accounting norms? 3 o

5 In the case of ITydroelectric Projects | As stated by the management, the said

For, Sandip Desai & Ceo.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No:111812W

Raeresl—

Devang Mysorewaia
Partner
Membership No:110620¢

Place: Ahme
r f"
Date: 19

labad
July’2818







Bhavnagar Energy Compary Limited
CIN : U40162GJ20075GCH5

Balance Sheet as at March 51, 2018

(Rupees in Lakhs.)

Particulars

Notrs Asat
March 37,2018

Asal
Mareh 31; 2017

ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipmen®
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Intangible assets
(d) Intangible assets under development
(e) Financial assets
(i) Security deposits
(i1) Other financial assets
(f) Other non-current @
(g) Non-current tax assels (ne:)

Total Non-current Assats
11.Current assets
(a) Inventories
“(b) Finoncial assets
(i) Trade receivables
'1\ Caslt and cas

(iti) Bank l\'.r.:cmn. 1
(iv) Other financin! assats
(c) Ctirer current assets
Total Current Assets

Lulove

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILULTES
Equity
() Equity share capital
(b) Other 2quity

Goyernment Grant

LIABILITIES
1. Non-eurrent lizhilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings
(b) Long tenn piz
Total Nen-Current lahilities
I1.Current liahilities
{a) Financial labilities

nsions

() Borrowings

{ii) Trade payables
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabitities
(c) Short-term provisions
Total Current liabilities
Total Bquity and Liabilities

Summary of Notes & Significant Accounting Policies

5 4.11,166.14
S5 29,158.02

<6 i0.05
6 75.28
7

4,28,649.62
28972.31
34.94
7528

- ar
1.zd

0.206.63

326
3720.40

1, JR3.53
507
13 22337
1326560
ASSENIT ____ 4g3SEs
12 1,03,000.39 84,600.39
13 (93,943.82) (32,218.09)
9,056.57 52.382. 30
PRE 8648 112.48
15
5,18,560.21
16 7.%6
3856807
1.08,297.9
17 13
18 147.67
1,30,890.15 66,627- SQ
Y 46355415
11046

The accompanying notes arc 1 integral part of the financial statements.

For/ahd bch%oard of Directors

As per our report of even date
For Sandip Desai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration No. 111812W

Rﬂmem%

Devang Mysorewala
Parmer

Membership No, 116809
Place : Gandhinagar

Date : (4Th July 2 018

éhnhmcenm

Director

DIN: 0“*‘24*60

70 {

e 2 \'_‘1‘)”/1/\//-(’ .

83 \’ Dit Yr'y she

(General Manager (F&A) & TFQ

Place : Gan )
Date : 1370 “July, 2018

P K Taneja
Chairinan
DIN:00010589







Bhavnagar Energy Company Limiied
. CIN':U40102GJ2607SGCO51396
~Statement of profit and foss for the year ended March 31,2018

(Rupees in Lakhs.)
Particulass Notes Year ended Yearended ‘
i PR S March 31,2018 March 31,2017 !
Income 1
Revenue from operations i® 22,786,712 2.378.39
Other income 20 126.69 142.43
Total Revenue (I} 22,913.41 2,520.82
Expenses - T Ao i
Cost of raw materials consumed 21 5.014.85
Employee benefiis expense 22 2i1.40
Other Expenses 24 3,004.7)
Total expenses (I1) 3 3.3 30_._':’________
Earnings befove interest, tax, depreciation and S "(._5,810.15_“ i
amartization (ERITDA) (I1T=1-11)
cpreciation and amortisation expense S&0 20,710.39 8.641.71
Finance costs 23 39,380.50 16,864.42
Depreciation, Amortisation and Firance Cosis (IV) 60,021.38 .25,506.13
Loss before tax (V=1II-TV} (61,739.81) (31,316.28)
Tax expenses 25
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - B
Total tax expense (V1) . - -
Lioss for the year (VII=V-VI) G n ¢ 161.730.81) 31,316.28)
Other Comprehensive Income e W N4, S
A. Other comprehensive income not 1¢ be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit 308 (3.00)
Income tax cfiect -
Total other Comprehensive Income for the yvear, net of tax (VIII) S.08 2 (3.00) .
Total Comprehensive Tncome Tar she year, net of tax (IN=VII+VIIT) (61,725.73)  (31,319.29)
Earnings per share h B - =
Basic 33 (7.33 (3.73)
Diluted 33 (3.73)
Summary of Notes & Significant Accouniing Policies 1 to 46

The accompanying notes are an integral art of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Sandip Desai & Co,

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration No. 111812W

Q}mmﬁe-

4 Devang Mysorewala

" Partner _r
Membership No. 116809
Place : Gandhinagar

pae = |41 July 2613

Director
DIN: 03584560

& .
“~ YN Didmishe
General Manager (F&A) & CFO

Place : Gandhinagar

Date : [3Thju\xj; 2.018

For nfQ on hchalt:;%:rdfofDircrnm
4
WM . @ V’S/
Shahmeena Ain P K Taneja

~

Chairman

DIN:00010589







Bhavnapar Energy Company Limfind
CIN : U40102GI20078GCO51395
Statement of Taxh Flows for the yeerere =4 Woargh 21,2008
{Runeos in L akhe)

Fer the yeaz ended

Fartisulan

Cagh Flow fram Operatiog Activi

L, Protitilos) belore tsa .
Lot before tax (51,7310.94) G1316.28)

. 2 Adjissiment iz -

Deprecistion ani amentiseios eqanwe
Finance cort

Interest income

Profiion Ssleof 1

Gaovernment Geart incarme i =3 "6 105 sy

Operating profit{loss) hefore warking capital changes (142) (1,742.3%) (3864.57)

3. Adjustments For werking capital chriryes:

Decrense / (Toerease) in Trads and siher roccivebles (258} (3.26)
Decrense / (Increase) in security depesity (s2u2an 55902
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Sinancial-asecs (2.6 :) 033
Drecrease / (Tnorease) in Other curert zscers EAR B 333.58)
Decrease / (Incresse) in Inveatorias (21457 (2151.13)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade wnd o'her payniles 280455 1.04483
{Decreare) / Increase in Other financi a0 ) 1,08 4%
{Dsciease)/ incresse in Government p > J
(Decrease) £ Increase in Ciher curent i 1.4 (1ie.5%)
{Decrense) fIncioase in Provitiens R (1, 9%
Cash wsed in pperations T8 {4.7%9.01)
Extracrdinge) item
A. Direct taxes paid (Net of Advance Tne, 1125 anid Provision for Tax) {Reter Note No9) (25 (11.18)
Net Cash geaseated from/(nezd in} Onerating Activities |A| - :|.ml;)_’!—_m_:_ 3! ’.{ﬁ‘t.{)‘—-

Cash Flow frens Investing Avtivitice
Yhrckase o7 PPE /T e AR OWIDAN PP
Sale of PPE
Changes in capita! advence

Inmrast receis

Gthe: Dank Balancs

Net Caut Generatod fre o/ffoved 1) v edling

Cash Flow From Fingncing Activilivs
Proceeds from Yong tevm Eorrowings O
Pracecds from short term besevan

5922344
(2121177}

Finaace cost J (40,807 0% (21,374.94)
Proceeds from issue of Equity share caginal 18,400.20 7.037.00
Nei Cash Generated fram{used [=) Fluw teing Activities [T - JSLLEE 17.673.73
Net Inceease/{Decresss)in cash & el conivalents IA-DC) 1.386.28 39.47 .
Cash & Cash equivzlients ar e beping 320 4% 35¢ 42
Y 9,206.55 23040
Cash & Tasi equivalenty st the vl of t: yoar 2206 66 320,40
Notes: g
Aj Components of essh & cosh sgnival o g
Casly en hand 93> 1.52
Balances wiih banks .
= In Current accounts 31488
- In Fixed deposit eccounta A
32040
22040

Cash & eash equivnlents as peedings 3%

1 af Cagh Flows”

The sbiove cassliflow stateinert has heen praparcd finder the ‘indirect method” ge set ou? in the Indian Avcounting Standare « 7 "Stute

The previnus year's figures have baea reprauped wherever nocessarny

As per aur report of even date For [ o bikall orw }u jp/

For Sandip Desti & Co. :‘?\""' __..?sr /\/

Chantered Acoountants
ICAL-Firm's Registration No. 1118120 thl meena Nu P K Tancjp
Director Chainman

mm.,ml\» DIN: 03584500 DIN-CGO1H389
Devang Mysorewala /"7 éyn [

Pasner \
SN Didmishe

/?
Membarsaip No 116362 \\g\
N

Mace - Gandinagn S o2
e 1SThIUNY 2016 e

General Manager (FEA) & CFO
Blace - Gandhinzgar

e 1310 Tyly 20l







Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited
CIN : U40102GJ2007SGCO139¢

Statement of changes in {guity for the yenr cnded Mareh 21, 2018

() Equity Share Capital

{Rupeesin Lakis)

Particulars Amount,
Balance as at Aprit 1, 2016 b T T T W 77,563.39
Addition (Reduction) 7.037.00
Baiance as at March 31,2017 84,600.39

*Balanceas at April 1,2017 £4,600.39
Addition (Reduction) 18,400.00
Balance as at March 31,2018~ 1,03.000.39

(ii) Other Equity

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars ik Amount .’
Balance as at April 1, 2016 (898.81)
Loss for the year (3t.316.28)
Other comprehensive income for the year (3.00)
Balance as at March 31,2017 L 432,218.09)
Balance as at April 1,2917 (32,218.07)
Loss for the year (61,730.81)
Other comprehensive income for the vear i - 5.08
Balance as at March 31, 2018 (¥3.943.82)
The accomprinying inctes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report el even date 1-’or/mul o pehall of Poard obiirectors
For Sandip Desai & Co. . ~ /{/ s g
Chartered Accountants W.‘ Pz ‘/’1//\/'
ICAI Firm's Registration No, 171812W Shehimeena | in P X Tan i

Director Chaitman

R eedls-

Devang NMysorawala
Partner

Membersiip No. 116809
Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 551‘“ T \B/lﬂ)‘g

DIN: (3584560

LL_ DIN:00010589
! Didmishe e /‘\ 7

!
encral Manager (F&A) & CFO
Flace : Gandhinagur

Date : \3ﬁ7JJ}B y 201¢







NOTES T9) AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31°" RIARCIH, 2018

I. Corporate Information

Bhavnagar Encrgy Company Limited (“BECL” or “the Company™) is & pﬁblic timited
company domiciled and incorporated in India having its registered office at Block no. 8, 3
Flser, Udyog Bhavan, Sector 11, Gandhinagar - 38201 1, (CIN: U40102GI20075GC051396).

The company iz-enaaged in generation of power frem Lignite. The principal place of business
is lacated at village Fadva, District Bhavnagar, Gujarat.

2. Apnplication of nev Ingian Accounting Standard

Al the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
under the Comparies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 (as amended) till the
financial statements.are authorized have been considersd in preparing these. financial
statements. .

Reeent acenunting prencuncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 71, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideraticn: On 28th
March 2018, Minizny of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) has notified the Comparies {indian
Accounting Stanrdirds) Amendment Rules. 2018 containing Appendix B 1o ind AS 21,
Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which -clavifies the date of the
transaction {or the pupose of determining the exchange rate 1o vse on initial recognition of
the related asset. expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration iz a forcign currency. The amendment will come into force from ist April
2018. This amanament has no effect on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 115 - Revenue {rom Contract with Custemers: On 28th March 2018, Ministey of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with
Customers sffactive from 01% April 2018, The core principle of the new standard is that an
entity shouid recognize ievenuve to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
custamers in on amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitied in exchange for those goods or services. Fuuther the new standard requires enhanced
disclosures about thc mature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash [ows
arising from the eatity’s contracts with customers. The effect an the Financiai statements ¢n

3. Significant Accounting Policies
i} Basiy of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordanze with ind AS
prescribed under the Companies (Indian Acceunting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) except in so far as the said provisions aic incensistent with the
provision of the Electricity Act, 2003.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for ceriain financial instruments that are ineasured at fair values at the end of
cach reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.

Effeczive April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted zll the Ind AS standards and
the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards , with April 1, 2015 as the transition
date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read




with Rule 7 of the Comuanies {Accounis) Rules. 2014 (IGAAP). which was
the previcus GAAP,

Accornting policies ieve been corsistently epplied-except where a newly-
issuca accovnting standnrd is-dnidesy odoptad or @ revision o an existing
accoy m.lr 1 standard requirzs a change in the nceounting policy hitherto in wse.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified in riormal course due to the special
nature of industry, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months.
Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classificd as Current or Non-
Current as per the Company s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind
AS-i ‘Presentation of Fmamml Statements’ and schedule I11 to the Companies
Aet, 2013

The Financial Statements are presented in indian Rupees and ail values are
rounided ofT to the nearcst two decimal Lakhs except otherwise stated.

Fair Vaiue Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received on scli of an asset or paid to
transizr a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market cenditions, The Company categorizes
assets. and liabilities measured at fair value into one of tiree levels depending,
on the ability to observe inputs empioyed in their measurement which are
deseribed as follow,

Level 1 inputs are at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 I..p'.ts are inputs that are observable, cuhcr directly or indirectly, other
than quoted prices inciuded within Level 1 for the asset or liability.

Lovei 3 inputs are unobservabie inputs for the asset or liabilitv reflecting
sigrificant modification to observable relsted market data or company's
assumntiens about pricing by market participants.

Fovcign Fxchange Transactions

The Company's financial statéments are presented in indian Rupees, which is
aiso the Company’s functional currency,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s
functional currency spot rales at the date the transaction first qualifies for
™ "wnmon.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated
at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Differences arising on settlement of such transactions and on translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rate are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historicat cost in a foreign
currzncy are translated using the exchange m : dates of the lmml
transactions.




iit)

iv)

Propeviy. Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equinri-nl “*FI* " romprises of Tangible assets and Capital
Work in Progress. PPE are stated af cost, net of tax / duty credit availed, if any,
after reducing accumulated depreciation until the date of the Balance Sheet,
The cost atiributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary
for.it to be Capable of operating in the manner intended by the management
and decommissioning costs. Direct cost ore eapitalised until the asset is ready
for wse and includes borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the
Companv’s accounting Policy.

Work unaer erection / instaiJation / exccution are shown as Cagpital Work in
Progress.

Initial capital spares which can be used only in connection with an item of
tangibie assets whose use is not of regular nature are capitalised as part of
respective plant assets.

The .cstimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods. are
revizwed on an annual hasis and i necessary, changes in estimates are
accouniad for prospectively. :

As per the Gujarat Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi-Year Tariff)
Repgulations, 2016 useful life of Lignite based pawer plant is 25 years.

De-yecognition

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future ecenomic
tencfits are expected to arise from the continued usc of the PPE. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as

“

the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrving amount of the PPE
and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and l.oss.

Depreciation

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment comniznces when the assets are
ready {or their intended use. Depreciation con ail fixed assets is provided on
straight line method as per rates and methodology notified by the Gujarat
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi-Year Tar:{l) Regulations, 2C16.

The depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

| Asset Description | Peicentage
Buildings | 3.34%
i Hydraulic Works 5.28%
| Other Civii Works 3.34%
| Plant & Machinery 5.28%
Lines & Cable Network 5.28%
Vehicles 9.50%
Furniture & Fixtures 6.33%
Office Equipment | 6.33%
| 1T Equipment | 15.00%
Software | 30.00%




Canital sprres are depreciated over the useful life of such spares but not

exceedine the remaining usefu! life of related tangible asset.

-

Deprecintion on addition/deletizn v PPE during the year is provided for-on
pro-rata vasis with reference to the date of addition/deietion except
depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on acceunt of capital
improvement or other facters is provided prospectively over the remairning
useful life.

The estimated useful fives. vesidval values and depreciation methods are
reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary, changes in estimates are
accounted for prospectively.

As per Gujarat Electricity Regulatory Commissicn (Multi-Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2016 useful life of Lignite based power plant is 25 Years.

Irpairment of Assets

The company reviews at each reporting period whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount: of
the nsset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recoenised in the Statement of, Profit & Loss. If at the reporting period, there is
an icdication that there is change in the previously assessed impaitment oss.
the rccoverable amount is reassessed and the asset iz reflected. at the
recoverable amount.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Foliowing initial recognition, ,Intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs,
are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

Intangibie assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives
and assessed for impairment whenever tliere is an indication that the intangible
assct may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
fer an intangible asset with a finite useful lifs are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intaneible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal nroczeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Amortisation
Amortisation of Computer Software is provided on straight line method as per

ratce and methodology notified by the Gujarat Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Multi-Year Tariff) Regulation, 2016.




vii)

X)

xif)

1,0 AR80

Lonses are cquv’f’v--i an 17-~'r.c~ s whanawer e terms of the .lease
transter substantialiy all the risi and rowards incidentai to-the ownership of
anassebio the Lom'v"";. A other leases are classified as operating lease.

Borroswving Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the seguisition,  construction or
preduction of an asset that necessarily takes.a subsianiial period of time to get

reacy for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asser. Al sther borrowing costs ars expensed i the period in which they occur.
Beoirowing costs consist of interesi and other costs that the.Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Inveniories

~

Inventorics are valued at lower of costs and net realisable value. Costs of Raw
msterial - Fuel, Stores, Spares and Qthers.are valued a sweighted sveruge cost.

Nat reajisable value is the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of
b::.‘i'“s". less estimated. coste of completion and the, estimated costs necessary
tc make tie sale.

Revenue Recognition y
Revenue is rccogm.scd to the extent that.it is probable that economic benefit
will fiow to the Company and that the revenue can be reliabiy measured.
Revenue iz measured at the fair valuc of the consideration received or
rceeivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated rebates and othier similar
aliowances. X B

Reveirue from sale of power is accounted as per Power Purchase Agreement
(“PPA"") executed with M/s. Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

Interest Income is recognized cn accrual bazis exeept when realization of such
income is uncertain.

Revenue from sale of service is recognized as per ternis and eonditions of the
coniract,

ther (ncomie is recognised on accrual basis except when reaiization of sucl
intome is uncertain.

Deviation Scttlement Mechanism (DSM) charges receivable / payable is
accevnted as & when notified by Siate Load Dispatch Centre (SLDC)

Recoveries / Deductions made from suppliers / contractors shall be recognized
as inccme or credited to cost of assets at the time of linal settiement. Till such
time they are shown under liabilities.

Finarncial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

initial Recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities




b)

)

a)

Finansial zssa2ts and financial Dabilities are in
except when the effect is immaterial. Tie

tially measured ai fair value.
settor - vosts that are directly
attrioviizble 1o the acquizition or issie of fineneial as3eis and financial liabilities
(other than financial assats and Tnancizl liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added 1o or decuctes from the fir value of the financial asssts or
finanicial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recogrition. Transaction costs
directly atiributable to the acquisition of financiai assets or financiai liabilities
at {air vaiue through profit or loss arc recognized immediately in the Statemnent
of profit and loss.

Finarcial Assets

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Fer the purpose of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified into

Financial assets at amortised cost

Finangial asset is measured at amortised cost if:

ths firancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPP7) on the principal
ameunt outstanding

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurcnient,
such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Financial assets at fair vaine through octher comprehensive income
(FVYTOCID)

A financial asset is measured at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income

if:

the Trancinl asset is held within a business model witose objective is achieved
by beth celiecting contractual cash Hows and selling tinaneial assets, and

he sontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dat2s to cash
flowee that are solely payments of principal and interest-{SPPI) on the principal
amcunt outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTCCI category are measured initially as
well as at each reporting date at fair valve. Fair value movemenis are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial asseis. Any financial asset, which
does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI,
is classified as at FVTPL.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and ioss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets
A financial asset is derecognised when:

J




the confzactua! rights 1o thecash Joews from the {inancial asset expire.,
or

The Company has transitered its contrectus] wights to recejve cash flows from
the asset or has asswavd 1 to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to & third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the zsset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the aszet, bur has transferred control of the asset.

Impairinent of Financial Assets

Iy ‘accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit Toss
(“GCL™} model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
!"é!imvmg financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Finsncial aszets that are debt instruments, and are measured ar amortised cost
e.x., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance -
Traae receivables or any contractual right to veceive cash or another financial
assel that result from transactions that are within the acope of Ind AS 18

he Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on:

Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope
of Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL, is a
partion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on.a financial
insirmnent that are possibie within 12 months after the meporting date.

ECL. impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the statemernt of orofit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected in a separate line under the head “Other expenses™ in the
P&L

Financial Liabilities

Subscquent measurement of Financial Liabilities

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

» Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initiai recognition.
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measited at amortised cost using
tle EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.




o = e s gy ETe -F N ‘». L § . . g
Auncrtised sost ia ealeuintod by

into 2eeount any discount.or premium on
z-"qu‘":tio*l and fees or casts thot are an n"ﬂvml part of the EIR. The EIR
araortisation is included as financs eosts in the sratement of profit and foss.

De-recogaition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a {inancial lability) is derecognised from its
balanca sheet when, and only when, it is extingnished ie. when the pbligation
saoeified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

xiif) Cash :mt,! Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise casls at banks and on
hard and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or iess, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above. net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an .integral part of the Company’s Cash
Management. : :

xiv) Government Grants

Governiment  grants,. including non-menetary grants at fair value are not
recounized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Specifically, Government grants whose priman-' condition js thet the Company
s.ml’ curchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets and non-
ronetary grants are recognized and disclosed as Deferred [ncome as non-
current liability in the balance sheet and transferred to the Staiement of profit
and ioss on systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.
xv) Taxes
Tax expense comprises of cuirent income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
faws used to compute the amount are those that gre enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and
loss is recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current incoine tax are
recognised in correlation to the underlying tvansaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluales positions taken in ihe tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
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Dsferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable termporary differences.

y forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
asscls are recognised to the extent that it is probabl= that taxable profit wili be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asseis is reviewed at cach reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no lcnger probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be availablz to allow al! or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Dederred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
1o apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settied. based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of nrofit

and loss i

nised outside Statement of prefit and loss. ¢rred tax items are

nised in correlation to the underlying transaciion either in other
rehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceabie
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Employce Benefits
Short term employee benefits

All employ=e benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short term benefits. Such benefits inciude salaries, wages,
bonus. short term compensated absences, exgratia, performance pay ctc..and
the sarae are recognied in the period in which the employce renders the reiated

seryize

Post-Iimployment Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s approved provident fund and family pension fund scheme are
defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable
under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.




) Pafined heneflit plan

The emploves’s gratuity fund schenie is Company’s defined berefit plans. The
present value of the oblization wader such defind benefit plans is determined
based on the actuariai vitaation using the Projecied Unit Credit Methed as at
the ‘date of the Balance sheet. in case of funded plans. the fair value of pian
asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined.benefit plans, to
recugnise the obligation on the'net basis.

Re-measurerments, comprising of actuarial gains and iosses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in
the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings
through OCI in the perind in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. '

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earliar oft
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

s Tha date that the Company recognises related restructiring costs

\!c. inicrest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
iability or asset. The Company recognises the following ch.ne s in the net
l fined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss:.

o Service costs comprising current service costs. past-service costs, gains and
losses an curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
o Ne! iaterest expense or income

’

c) QOther long term employment benefits

The amployee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined
benefit plans. The present vaiue of the obligation is determined based on the
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the
Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced
from the gross obligation, to recognise the cbligation cn the net basis.

d) Termination Beneil

Termination benefits such as compensation under voiuntary retirément scheme
arc recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.

xvii) Earaings Per Share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

xviii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or

constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
resonrces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation




vl ety henade o hu. aronst of (he obljgation. When the
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the Hakility. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Cantingent Liabilitics

A contingent liability is a possibig obligaticn that arises from.past everits whose
existence wiil be confitmed] by the aceurrence or non-eeowTence of one or
aneertein Muture cyents bevond the conteol of the Company ora present
#fion that is not recognized hecause it.is nokprebable that an outflow of
rasecnees will be required to settle the abligation. A contingent liability also
ariscs 10 extremely rare cases where there.is @ "J’\ali:':‘ ihat cannot be
recognized because it cannct be measured refiably. The-Company does not
recognive a contingent liahility but discioses its evistence in the financial
stateraents. Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statcmcm\
when an inflow of economic bznefits is probabie.

4. Significant Accounting Judgment, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to
rmazke judgments, estimaies and assumptions that affect the repoited amounts of
revernies, axpenses, assets and labilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
arc th disclosure of contingent linbilities. Uncertainiy about these assamptions
! estimates could rasult in outcomes that rzquire a material adjustment to the
g amount of assets or labilities affecied in {uture pericds,

Inrihz process of applying the Company™s acceunting poticies 45 stated iu note
nc. 3 above. management has made the “ilowing judgmenis. which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the finanvial statements:

al Property plant & Equipment

i) Impaivment of property plant and equipment
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts
of ite property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
detering the extent of the impairment loss (i any).

Recaverabie amount of property plant and equipment is the higher of its fair
value Jess costs of disposal and vaiue in use. Vaiue in use is usually determined
on the basis of discounted- estimated fuiure cash flows. This involves
manazement estimates on anticipated PLF. power tariff, fuel availability at
acenoimical rates, economic and regulatory environinent, discount rates and
other factors. Currently, the Company is in the process of getting power tari




fixed by regulatory authority, GERC and it axpects (0 realise the value in use of
PPE. Any subsequent changes to cash fow due to changgs in the above

menticned factors could impact the carrying value of assets,

i Depreciation x’;‘.:'.‘_;;:7 doireciation method and résidgm’. valie of
preperty, plant and equipment AR P '
In terms of Part B of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company, has
followed the depreciation rates, depreciation raetiod and residual value of the
items of property, plant and equipment as notified by the GERC in accordance
with the Electricity Act, 2003 with respect to the assews falling under regulated

1, san 3
QUGITICSEY.

b) Deferred tax asscts
Deferred tax assets are not tecognised for unused tax credits as the
nanagement, based upon the likely timing and the level of funre taxable

as
profits together with future tax planning strategies is not certain cf realisetion
of sufficient profits in future to utilise the deferred tax ussots. It is probable that

taxzbiz profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.

¢} Defined Benefit Pians .

The sost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are
determined using actuarial vaivations. An actugrial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
moriality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its Iong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensifive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach
reporting date.




Bhavnagar Energy Comipany Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 5 : Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rupees in Lakbs.)

Particulars Frechold L’smd Bnildi’n’g:f W;:::;& Vehicles Office Equipments Total CWir
Gross Carrying Value b
As at March 31, 2016 2,282.13 562.1% 406.26 20,65 1272 35.33 18.95 3,645.71 4,26,450.12
Addiions 0.47 30.23 0,44 535 36.49 36,215.23
Deductions/Adjustment 2
Borrowing Cost Capitalised 413.53 1,03,074.77 1.03.458.29
Transfer / Capitalised from CWIP 1,774.49 328,400 20 39.05 3,30204.75 433.693.04
Asat March 31, 2017 2,282.13 2,752,147 4,31,882.40 50.88 15.72 65.82 24,30 43737525 28,.97‘1.31
Additions 1,024.69 3153 2.86 217 1,07225 2,216.08
Deductions/Adjustment (225 {2.25)
Borrowing Cost Capitalised .
Transfer / Capitalised from CWIP 505 2,02232 21230 T 13058
As at Miarch 31, 2018 2262.13 2,758.23 433,839.4¢ 11542 15,72 65,42 z7, 24.48 14058013 2];158 fi2]
Depreciation/amortisation
As at March 31, 2016 - 36.58 14.30 498 235 10.67 12.58 110.96
Deprectation for the year - 88.06 8.498.29 399 1.65 245 1.00 861467
Deductions/(Adjustment) - - - - - -
As at March 31,2017 - “113.64 8,512.59 8.96 4,00 13,12 54.74 13.58 B,725,63
Depreciation for the year - 105.21 20,547.20 6.83 1.63 431 19.23 1.56 20 6846.060
Deductions/(Adjustment) (2,143 (24N
As at March 31, 2018 223.36 19,059.79 i5.79 5,66 1529 73.97 13,04 = 29,413.77 i .
Net Carrying Vaiue . . i
As at March 31,2017 228213 631,53 4,23,369.82 7192 11,72, 5279 iy 21907 o : s 2064062 | ;
As at March 31, 2018 2,282,13 2,534.37 4,05,979.62 99.62 10.07 31.13 ' 199.35 © 934 L0 Te6a8 b _{

Notes:
1. Above land cost includes, fand desclopment expendituse of Rs. 349 7€ Lekhs

2. In accordance with Ind AS 36 on “impairment of Assets”, the cempany has cartied ontan exercise af every year end for identifying the sssels that may heve been impaired. Refer nots no, 4, (a) (i) for further detatls




Bhavnagar Eneryy Corapany Limited
Notes to the Finaneia! Statemerts

Nqic 6 : Other Intangitiie Assets

{Rupees in Lakhs,)

Fixed Assets

Intangiblc nnder

. Bevslopanent -
Gross Carrying Valze
As at March 31,2016 70.45 38.23 103.72
Additions 37.05 3705
Deductions - - 4
As at March 31,2017 70.48 75.2% 145.77
Additions < s '
Deductions - -
Asat March 31,2018 048 7548 145.77
Amortisation and Impairment
AsatMarch 31, 2016 3.51 - 8.51
Amortisation for The Year 27.04 27.04
Deductions - -
As at March 31,2017 35.55 - 35.55
Amontisation for The Yea 24.80
Deductions
As at March 31,2013 60.43 - 3555
‘Vct Carrying Value .
As at March 31, 2018 10,05 75.28 85,35
As at March 31,2017 34,94 75.28 110.22




Bhavpagar Encrgy Contpany I,
Notes 1o the Financial Stat imenie {

Note 7 : Financial sssets

(i) Financial assets 8¢ amortised cost

-Note 7a : Trade receivables .
s ) (Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars © U Avat Marek 31,2018 Asat Mureh 31,2017
Unsecured, consideréd good 7.25 3.26

TG e s ' 725 a6

A ——

Note 7b : Cash and Bank Balances !

(Ruptes in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2018 Asat Mareh 31,2017
Cash and cash cquivalents
Balance with Bank ”

Current accounts and debiz balaica in cash eredit accaunts TRA7 318.88
Cash on hand 0:27 b * 152
Fixed Deposits with Bank (Matrity within 12 Months) 9,128.25
Total cash and cash equivalenis 5.206.68 320.40

* Other bank balances 15233 L 1.34
Total Other Bank Balances c 1,183.53 1.34
Total ; ' 10,390.21 321.74

T teriremtoyge e

* Other Bank Balance includes Rs. 1182.10 lakh deposited in separate Bank Account maintained with Dena Bank towards invokation
of Bank Guarentee of M/s. Shapoorji Pallonji Company Fwvt, Ltd, the said-amount is not available for utilization as the arbitration
proceeding is on going. Proceedings can be utilized only after final verdict of Arbitration.

Note 7¢ : Other financial assets

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at Mareh 31,2017
Non-Current .
Security Deposits (unseearad, uniess otherwise stated) 786.54 257.31
Deposit with origimal maturity o more than twelve (12) months 0.22 0.22
Other non-current financial psseiz . -
786.76 257.53
Current £
Interest accruad on fixed depasits 2 0.08 0.07
Other Receivabies 359 2:37
Interest Receivable PAL . -
807 245
Total other financial assets 7921.83 259.98
Total Non-current financial assets X 786.76 257.53
Total Current financial assets 10,402.53 327.45

. Total financial assets 11,189.29 584.98




Notes to the Financiat Statements
Note 8 : Other nan-current assets

Bhavnagar Encrgy Cornany j.irited

(Rupeces in Lakhs)

Particulars

asatFiareh 31, 2018

As arMarch 31'2617\

Capital Advance 4,105.28 2,490.05
Gratuity tund 338 0.59
Others 3.58 7.14
- Tofal 4,113.24 - 2497.77

Note 9 : Non-current tax zsscts (net)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particuiars Aeat March 31, 2618 AsatNarch 23,2017
Advance Tax (Net of provision for Tax, TDS) N 26.09 23.47
Total S 22600 23.47
Note 10 : Inventaries 3

: . {Rupees in i.akhs)

Particulars Asat March 31,2018 Asat March 31.‘-261_7’
Fuel, spares and others 2,584.79 2.370.13
Tatal 4 2,534,790 +2,370.13

Particulars As at Mareh 31,2018 . As at March 31,2017
Stack of Light Diesel Ofl 7.19 207.64
_ Stock of FO 108.42 134.50
.Stock of Spares 3.66 -
‘Stock of Diesel & Gas - 0.66
Stock of Lignite 241078 1,871.33
Siock of Limestone 35.34 91.41
Stock of Chemical - 7.02
Stock of Bed Refmetorics - 37.57
2,384.79 2.376.13

Note 11 : Other enrrpnt assels

(Rupees in Lakhs)

——

Particulars

As at March 31,2017

Prepaid Expense
Advance recoverable i nash or kind

"340.15
5.51

Total

345.65




Bhavaagar Eneepy Compay Limited
Notes 10 the Financinl Stalements

Note 12 : Share capital

E Ace! Mareh 31,2012 Asat March 31,2017

Farticulars S P Bk (13 At Nosofshares . Amount’|

ia (In Lakne) {in Lukhs) “(in Laklis;
Aughorised share cepifal
Equity shares of” R3,10 cach 20,000 TA0L0 12,510 1,25,100.00

,___T'n_n(m 12380 1,25,100

Issued, subscribed and fully paid en : B _ o
Equity shares ol R< 10 each tn.200 100,132 B.AG0 84,600.39
i et S NI ¥ 10300 <. * 1,03,00039 £,460 8460030

12.1. Reconcilintion of shxres onts snding (evcluding share capital suspense serount) at the beginning and st ihe endd of the Reporting year

i) AsatMarch 31,2008 : Asat March 31,2017
Particulass e - No. of shares Amount Nou. of sliaves Amount
5 (in Lakhs) (in_Lakhs) (i Lakhs) (In .u'khs)
Atthe beginningyof the year =~ 8460 84,600.3v 7,756 - ©T 77,563.39
Issued if any during the year 1840 18,400.00 1 704 . 7,037.00
Quistanding at the end of the year 10300 1,03,000.39 8.460 84.600.36

12,2, Terms/Rights attached 10 the 2quity shaves
The company has oniy oue class of Cguity Shares having a par value of 3. 10/~ per share. Each shareholder is ¢ligiole {Ghone vole pii share held.
.

Tnthe event of Tiquidation, the equiiv shatchoiders are eligible to roceive the remaining assets of the Company afier (istritwtion of ali prefurentinl
amounts, in propartion o their sharet

12,3. Number of Shayes beld hy ezea sharchsider holding more tian 5% Shares in the company

As at March 21, 2018 Acnt March 31,2017
] - (5

Hhme ol e ABarcholder _ Mii:f:,:;;; % of shurchnlding V"(:f;:;;:; Yo af n!:archolding

Equity Shares of RS 10/ eack {iliy naid o
Gujamt industries Power Compar | 2180.%0 21.17% 2.060.20 24a%
-Guiarat Mineral Developient Cos 976,59 28.00% 197450 23.4%
¢ St Tnvestiments Lid 2384,34 5.009% 195434 23.5%
Gujant Fower Corporat ; 161,40 ) T TELA0 © 0%
Gujarat Aikalies & Chemicals Lid N2 59220 70%
Gujarat State Fertitizers & Chenvicals {0, 50220 S02:20 7.0%
Gujarat Namada Valley Fertitizers Co. Lid 402640 492,60 5.8%




Bhaynegar Energy Company Linited
Notes to the Financial Sarements

Nute 13 : Other Equity

“{Rupees in l,akl;s)

a. Other Equity consists of the fxlowing

Particulars

v

As AL31st March, 2018

As At31st March, 2017,

Retained Eamings

TSI TERRT RS W A TSR

43.045.87) (32.218.0)
(V254580 (32,218.0%)

b. Particulars relating te other Fquity

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Balance - Surplus/{deficit) iuthe fotal
statetent of profit and loss S e
Asat April 1, 2016 1595.81) _ {898.81)
. Add:Loss lor the year (31.31620) (31,316.23)
- Add: OCI for the year (3.00% {3.00;
" Balance avaitable foracprepriaiion AT+ (32.218.09) (32,218.09)
Less : Approprigiion:
Transierred-to geners reserve - -
Dividend " - -
Tax on dividend - s
Asat March 31,2017 (32,215.09) {(32,218:09)
As at Aprii 1, 2017 {32.218.09) - (32,218.09)
Add: Loss for the year (61.730.81) 161,730.81)
Add: CCI for the yeer 3.08 5.08
Balance available for appropriation (93.943.82) 93543.87)
Less : Appropriaticns -
Transferrad to acnera! vecerva’ . -
Dividend - -
Tax on dividend - -
As at March 31, 2018 O394382) (93394382

Note 14 : Goverameal grant

{Rupees m Lakhs)

lMarticulars

Asat March 31, 2018

As at March 31,2017

Govt, Grant towards Tost of Capisad Assets

86,48

11248

"~ Total

86.45

11248

Covernment grants have heen received for the purchase of certain items ol property, plant and cquipment. There are no
unfulfiiled conditions cr contigencics attachea to these grants as at March 31,

Movement of Coveryinent grang

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particuiars 2017-18 2016-17

As at April 01 112,48 130.00
Received during the yoar =
Released to statement of profit and ioss (26.00) (17.52)
As it March 31 86.48 112,48




Bhavaagar Energy Company Limited
Notes to the Finansial Statemenis

Note 15 : Financial liabilities

(i) Financial liahilities at emortised vo

Note 15a : Borrowings

{Rapees in Likls)

Paviicutueg

As ol Mk 31,2058

AsagMarch 31,2017

Long term borrowings

Secured

Term Loans from Banks
Rupee Loans

Unsecured
From financial institution
Gujarat State Financial Services Lid

Current maturitics { Refer note 15¢)
Secured '
Term Loans from [sanks
Rupee Loans
- Unsecured
From financial institution

3 3.11,060.21

7,500.00

3,15,560.21

36,565 .60

3.15.821,79

28,600.00

= 34442179

14,025.00

Gujarat Staté'Finansial Services Ltd 21,100.00 s
Total long term horrowings 37632587 T 3EAeTY
Short term horrowings
Secured
From Bank

Working Capital Cash Credit 12.331.08 1,888.23

o 1033108 i 1,885.23
Total interest bearing borrowinas 3,86,556.94 3,00,335.03
Aggregate secured borrowines 3,57,956.94 3,31,735.03
Aggregate unsecurcd borrowings - 28,500.00 28,600.00

For explanations on the Company's Intercst risk, foreign currency risk ond liquidity risk management processes. refer to Note 27
15afi) Term Loan & Working Capital {Cas’y Credit) from Banks are secured by way o mongage as under :
a. Immovable propeitics admeasuring appro<inmately 171 Hectares of land situated at Village Padva, District Bhavnagar in the State of Gijaiat;
b. All the other inmavable properties and assets of the Company, both present and huture:
¢. All the raovable (whether fangibic or inmngibie) properties and assets of the Company (including hut not limited to movenble flant and machinery,
and accessories, furniture, fixtures and vehicles), mackinery spares, tools both present and future;

d. All the Company's tangible and intangitle acsets, all the book debts, operating casn flows, recaivobies, oit other current assets, commssions, revenues

of the Company both present and fisturs,

¢. All the Accounts and all other bank accoviits of the Company including in each casz. all monies lving eraditad/deposited into such zecounts;

15a (i) Terms ¢f Repayment {Term Lean-1)

Term Lodn Sariction Amount
Repayment Period
Repayment Start Date

Rate of interest

15a(iii) Terms of Repayment (Terra Logn - 11 )

Term Loan Sanction Amount
Repayment Period
Repayment Start Date
Rate of interest

15a(iv) Terms of Repayment (Term Laen - 1)

Term Loan Sanction Amount
Repayment Period
Repayment Start Date

Rate of interest

= 312007

Rs 299,400,090 Lakiis ;
« 43 Equal Quaiterly Instailment
31122017
Si31 One year MCLR plus S531 (Presently 8.50% poz )

Rs 30,600.00 Lakhs
45 Quarterly Instaliment

SB1 One year MCLR plus SSBP (Presently £.50% p.a.)

R 30,000,00 Lakhs
- 44 Quarterly Installment
- 31/03/2018
~  SBI One year MCLR plus SSBF (Presently 8.50% p.a.)

’







Rhavaagur Encray Compe
- Not=3 10 the Financi Stélema, is
15 (a) (v) Defayl in payment ef fnt e on (2

o Lean Berrowings from

vy R ——

Poartic iars | Gt | i Aoust Due Bate | Paiddate. 7| Delayin days
Baniy L 242000 01022018 T 30042013 37.00
“Febail © - : ] sen el 01032016 29:052018 38.00
Mar-18 3 vl 2,0%0 13 | 01-54-2018 29-06-2018 8300
3 15 (=) (vi) Defautt in payment of Principa! Amcunt ¢n Term Loan Borrowings from Banks
Particniars / Mand Amount Poe Date | Paid dute Delay in Days
Quarter -4 of 'Y 201718 7.312.00 | 31-03-2018 | 26.062018 $9.00

As the Company has achicved COD of its Unit-Ii on 27th March, 2017 and Unit-l and Unit 11 were still under stabilisation us on 315t March, 2018, At the stage of
initial operation vear of the Company, the Company ¢id not have sufficient generaticn of revenue 1o discharge mondhly interest lisbility, howaverthe company has
subsequently paid in the month of May-2018 & June-2018.

Note 15b: Trade sand Other payahles

.
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars ; Asat March 31,2078 Asat March 31,2017
Current T o
* Trade and Other pryubles )  Hifsr s Wi 2.169.94
Total ' 3 - ST 7 RN 2,169.98

S——
* Trade and Other Payable inchudes Rs, 3.893, 3y Lakls received as advance from M/s. Gujarat Uvia Vikas Nigam Limited wowards sale of Power
For explanations on the Company’s Foreiga 2ur-cacy risk and liquidity risk managemnent processes, refer 1o Nowe 27

Note 15¢c : Other financial Bahiiities

y i3 i ; (Rup=es in Lakhs)
Particulars: . Asat March'd1, 2018 Asat Maveh 21,2017

Current
Current maturitics of long-termyborowir zi - Tenie Loon (Refer Note 1423
Current maturities of long-term borrosvings - CGSTS Loun (Refer Note 14a)

14,025,060

Interest accrued but not due ¢n Term loan Dank % GSFS Loan 3,062.80
Interess accured due but not paid (Refer Hote (4a(iv) 6,435.68
* Retention payable 26,663.83 2442918
Payabie for capital goods 1569648 1847838
Total - 1,08,297.93_ 67,441.04
Tatal Non-curreat 3,18,560.21 34442170
Total Current 1,30,603.55 $6,499.25
Lotal financini Habilitics at amortised cost 4.49,163.78 4100210

For explanations on the Company”s Interest rick, Foreign currency risk and liquidity sisk m:anogement processes, refer to Nate 27
* Retention Payable includes Rs. 1182.70 lokhs towards invokation of Bank Cuarantec of M/s Shapoorji Patlon|i & Cn. Pvi. Lul the said amanzt is net available for
ntilisation as the arbitration processing is on poing. Proceeding can be utilised only after final verdict of arbitaution, (Refer Now No. 7b)

Note 16 : Long term provizions

Particnlars Asat Mareh 21,2018 As st March 31,2617
’rovision for Leave encashment ) 7.26 10.00
CTotal o 02

St







Bhavnagar Encrgy Cempany Limited
Notes to the Financial Statemenis

Note 17 : Other current liabilitioy
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars et Asat March 31,2018 As at March 31, 2017

Statutory dues payable T Y ' - —‘!2') 28 105.51
Eamest mongy deposit 0.65 21.98
Total L -~ 13803 127.49

Note 18 : Short-term provisions .
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2018

Provision for Leave encashment 0.A7 0.84
as per Ministry.

s at March 31,2017

Provision for CSR
Total

1.8

of Environment & Forest

'
S L e e Lot e 4
e e — - - SR . i A 4 1]







Bhaynagar Encrgy Compaey Limited
Notes t the Figancial Stacments

Note 19 : Revenue [ronii operstinnrs

{Rupices in Lakhs)

Particulars : 261718 C2016-17

Sale of Eleetrical Ererav ' 2278672 37839

Total ' _22.786.12

S S Tt s

2.378.39

(i) Sales has been accovated as per tariff caleulated on besis of Fower I'urchase Agreement with M/z. Gujernt Urja Vikas
Nigam Limited.

(ii) Sales does not includz avxiliary consumption of 88.630 Miilion Units

Note 20 : Other income
{Rupeces in Lalkhs)

Particulars . s 2017-18 T2016-17
Professional Income 12.58 63.96
Interest income 76.61 37.22
Governntent grant income (iKe'er note 18) 26.00 17.52
Exchisge gain/loss {nef) 2 - 17.85
Others 11.32 5.88
Profit on Sale of Asset 019

Total oo S 126.69 = 142.43

Note 21 : Cost of materials censumed -

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars S 2017-18 2016-17
inventory at the bzginning ol the year 2370.13 219.00
Add : Purchases I 7.165.98

7.384.98
Less : Inventory at the ead ol the vear o -2,370.13
Consumption 5.014.85
Less : Transferred to CWID (Incidental Exp) -
Total Consumption of {he vear 13,157.77. 5.014.85

Cost of materials consumed
(Rupeey in Lalkhs)

Particnlars 2017-18 2016-17
LIGNITE Consumption 10.488.98 1.853.55
LIMESTONE Consumption \ 56.07 3.15
LDO Consumption 1,094,647 1,541.36
FO Consumption , 657.92 1,303.57
Refractory Consurnption 37.57 67.82
Diesel Consumption 5.18 4.02
Transpotation (Lignite, LDO, FO ete.) - 819.38 24138
Total 13,157.77 5,014.85

%
NAGAR | <
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Bhavnagar Energy Comjany Limited

Notes 1o the Financial Staternenis

Note 22 + Employee benefits expente

S

{Rupees iz Lakhs)

Particulars,.

Salarics. Wages and 3

Contribution to Provid:
"Gratuity Expense
Staff welfarc expenses

it ard Other Fund

A e
L‘-A(."U

486,39
22.08
4.75

6.77

2016-17

138

Ny

i

% o
9 =

Tatal

521.99

311.40

Nete 23 : Finance costs
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

2017-15

2016-17

Interest Expense
Other Borrowing Cost

Less: Transfer to Capital Work in progress

38.954.27
426.22

35.549.78
167.67
(18,853.02)

Total 5

7 39,380.50

16,864.42

Note 24 : Other expenscs

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particnlars

w17-18

o —————

2016-17

Electricity Exp.

Fuel consumption
. Chemical Consumplior

Q&M Sevice from KEPCO

(,".hcr (Project Related Expense)
Witer Expenses

Ul Charges

Genzral & Adminsiration charges
Insurance Exp.

Legal & Professione! Fess
Repairs & Maintainance Plant
Repairs & Maiiainane: Building
Repairs & Mainta
Office Rent

Rent - Plant & Machine;
Rates & Taxes

Payment to Auditors

Sccurity Charges {Prajzet Site)
Share Capital issue Expenses

inance Others

Sitting Fees & Director Exps.
Travelling & Convey:

ance

Donation Exp
Misc Expenses
GST on URD & RCM Purchase

Rebate on Prompt Payment GUVNL

' Exchage gain/loss (net)

2.42

295.80
13.40
5.10

66.57

430,89
112
440.26

1.073.55

CSR as per Ministry of Tnvironment & Forest " 170.00

i
25.26
22.23

59.20
234.46
289.46
133.48

30.60

57.49

0,12

14.96

48.74

19.23

s
W O
(=]

o
=)

B ey

N = )
& O

by

~1
o

oy
=

-3
O e

< 1)
93 A h

Total

10,873.07

3,004.71







Bhaynagar Energy Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Staternerts

Note 252 Inconrs Tax

Thie Compnny is in initial phase of eperation anv hi n Ies - making an ! v st favy dening 377 051 T8 oF R 5177081 Lakls aggrepafiag accuiaalined losses
of Rs. 93,943.82 Lakhs as per Aczounts. /s tiz aspreagsiing dosses nay not Lo used 10 of it fsabie wofit coned by she Tompeny ininear fiture and the Company is
entitled to 100% profit deducrion imder S«ctica £ 1A ef the Income Tax Act, 1861, o deye ars se wher evidence of Fevovémbiiiy of Deferzed Tl Assel in the nepr
future. - i

Hence, Daferred Tax Asset / Liabilitiel has hot hivan recasnized in Crrrent Finanzial Year.

Note 26 : Disclosure pursuant to Reiated Party Trangactions

a2 Particulars of related partics and naturs of relationzhips y = by
Lt e 0 Name'of Reluted Parties ; " |Name of Relativnstiip .
Gujarat Power Comoratien Limited : Company having significant inflience / Equity Contibutor
Guiarat State Investinents Limited -~ 7 Company having significant influence / Equity Contibutor s 2
~ Gujamat Mineral Devetapment Comporation Liviied Company having sipn: fieant infivmice £ Equity Contibutor
Gujarat Industries Power Company Limiicd Xey Sharchoider / Equity Chntibntor
Guiarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Limited Kev Shareltolder ! Equity Covitibutor
Gujarat Alkaties and Cliemicals Limited ey Shargl:elder! Equity Contibutor
Guinrat State Fertilizers anid Chemicals Limitad Key Sharcheider / Equity Contibutor
Vikas BECL initiative for Rursi Develenment Other - Diectors srg irnstees g
Key Management Personnel L o iy ’ s N "y Tl i
Shri Prem Kumar Taneia {AS (Retd,) Chainpan from 19.03.2016 onwards™ ey
Smt. Shkabmeena Svedafral Husain, IAS Director from 01.09.2017 onwacds = .
Shri Dilip Vinedrey Pankh o Director ficm 28.02.°018 onwards
Shr S K Panl e s Managing Dincetor froim 26,04:2018 onwa:s e — g B
Shri indrajest Prasad Ganion (AS (Reid) y Dircctor from 26.07.2007 onwards 'R
Shri Prakash Shah, [AS (Rend) — Non -Execufive Indzvednen: Direcfor from 31 032615
Ms. Arti Kanwar, 1A% . B iyl Dirvctor from 25,11 0160002052018 . -
Shr Anunkumar Mohenbhai Seiankt  IAS N Director from 12.07.2015 nnwanls ':_ i R et
Dr.H khbhai Baldevbhat Patel 52 Director from 29.09 2014 coveards o,
Shri Milind Torawane . Director from 25.07.2017
Ms. Meena Kantilal Bhatt Non -Executive indepednent Director from 31.03.2015 gnwands
Shri Nagendra Kumar Singh Director from 08.06.2016 omvards
Shri Vishvesh Dineshchandra Nanavaty : Director from 19.04.2016 omwards
Shri S K Nanda, IAS Director Upto 19.04.2015
Shri Arvind Aganwal, 1AS Director Upto 12.07.2016
Shri Sanjeev Kumar, [AS Director Upto 22.06.2017
Shri $ P Desai Director Upto 08.06.2016
Shri Ksh k Merchant CFQ from 23.01.2017 to 30.11.2017 (KMFP)
Shri Jinal Shali CIFO till 22.01.2017 (KMP")
Shii Shriram Narkor Didmishe CFO from 13,12.2017 onwards tKMP)
Smit Bhoontika Shamm = |Company Secretary (KMP) from 25.02.2015 10 08.0%.2017
b The following trangnctions were earried ont with the related parties in ordinary course of busipess during
the yeur 5
(Rupees In Lakhe
B R : : 2017-18 : DG _‘j
N e snsaction Equity KMP | Others | A8y KMP | Others
45 P Coniributo:r i _Conteihutor
1__|Issue of Share Capita! 18,400.50 W o 7,037.60
Gujnrat State Investents id ol 6,000.00 o | 5.455.00 I Ul
Gujarat Power Corporation !.td. =S - O I E T
Gujarst Alkalies & Chemicals Lt - 1,200.00 i | C TRy - I
Gujorat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Lto, ) i | £16.00 |
Gujarat Ind Power Company Lid. ) | 1.200.00 | Ui
Gujrrat Minersl Development Corporaticn Lid, 10.000,00 | -~ .3
2 |Remuneration to Kev Management Peronne! 17.27 { 64.74
Short-term employee benefits ‘ 17.27 63.31
Shri Jinal Shah 15.69
Smt Bhoomika Sharma 183
Shiri Kshemank Merchant .56
Shri S K Paul 14.53 37.22
Shri 8 N Didmisl 2,74
Post employement benefits 1.44
Shai Jinal Shah -
Smt Bhoomika Sharma S
Shri Kshemank Merchant A







(Rupees In Lekhs) -

G i 2017-1% I 016170 :
ature of Transactions ! Equity : ! Euity ST e g
S RN 3 o Conlribufor l‘(}ﬂ' m"“.._‘_!_Cl'n!rilmlor A" ik Ofherei:
3 |Director Sitting Fess & Incidental Expediure T ek R | | 3.4
Direetor Sitting Feee paid to Diractors LM { | 3.44
L
4 [Donation 23.00 | 79.25
Donation paid to Vikas BECL imiative for Rural Davelonment 23.¢0 79.25
5__|Purchase of Chemicals 2.12 -
Gujarat State Fertilizers and Chemicals Limited 2.19 -
6 _ |Purchase of Lignite 11,028.43 3872.52
Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation Lid, 11,028.43
. 4
7 __[Purchase of Chemicals 49.85 6.91 1
— [Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicnls Ltd. —— 10.85 691 [
¢ Balance Payable as on 31.032018
=: (Rs. In i;:k_hi)‘
Particvlars ok 31-03-201% 3932017
Gujarat Mineral Develepmen: Corporation Ltd 4,175.20 316678
Gujarat Alkalics & Chemicals Ltd, £ 4172 5.4 |
Gujarat Power Corporation Lid, i) 315.01 31561 |
Gujaret State Fertilizers and Chemicals Limited 0.19 -1

2 Caommitments with related parties
The company has not provided any commitment to the refeted narty as at March 31, 2018

3 Terms and conditions of transactions with relatad pariivs

Transaction entered into willi related pastics are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in am's fength tranvactions, Outsiunding Balances, 3t 1he vear end are unsecrured

and interest free and settlement occures in cash







Bhavuagar Energy Corapany Lindied
Notes to the Finarcia! Statements

Note 27 : Financizl risk management
The Company’s principa! financiui
borrowings are primarily taken for sewking eopiinl manass e S Ty Mnpan
equivalents, trade receivables und athr financial assats;

While ensuring liguidity is sulfizi
and manages key financial risk !
include regulatory risk, fusl aval
liquidity risi.

sd other (innneial liabitities. The loans and
¢ rpeeial finaneiz] assets include cish and cash

iities comprise of ioauy ard barowinas, fradz po

o meet Company's operationz) rramens; ihe Company's Project & Frmancs Committes-zlto monitor
=2 {0 the operations of the Companiy by rrelvaing exposures by degree and snagnitude of risks, These risk
v and affordability risk, ket ¢isk {incleding Toreign surrency risk and price risk), credit risk and

Regulatory rivk

The Company s cperetions uresylkiéz. to regulatory intervantions, o
. frameivork, The rapialy changine seeulntory landscape prses a risk to
GERC, which is yet 1o be anpiorad,

2. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk or uncertein
The major component of market ri

ty rrising from possible mavker price roveme

C i Introst rates risk.

its and their impatt o the {usure perfonmence of a business.

The sensitivity analyses in the followir:3 sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 3! March 2017,

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effzct of the assumed changes in respective markes risks. Tiie 18 based on the financial
assels and finpncial labilities held at 21 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

Interesi rate visk ) )

Interest rate risk s the risk that the Mir value or futnre cash Nows of 2 financal instrument will fluctuate becouse of chenges in market interest
rates. The Company '« exposure to the ris¥ of changes in markes interest rates relates primerily {0 the Company s Jong-term dsbt obligations
with fleating interest rates. The Coinpany’s main interest rate risk arises from the long term borrowings with floaing rates.

The Company has initisted, the process of Financial Restructuring as per the Guidelines of RB! and appointed M/s. SBI Capital Markets
Limited as its Financial Advisors. According to restructuring plan, the existing interest rawe e, 10,60% p.a. wiil be reduced 10 8.50% p.a. ard
also tenior of tie repayment wili L2 extended from 11 years to 20,75 vears. Further, the Intercst expenses is pass through under the Fower
Purchase Agreement executed with M3, Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited

Interest rate sensitivity
The foliowing table dertonsiries tie sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and horrowinez, With all other
varishies held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the rpast an floating rate horrowines, os foiiows:

{Rugees in Lakhs)
Particulars Increase/decrense in Lasis increase/(decrense) in
2017-18 i
.. INR borrowinps ¢ v 56 {1.729.89)
230 ; 1,739.89
2016-17 - .
INR borrowings - +50 {1.649.95)
-39 1,649,985

The assunsed mavement in hasie wans for the interest rate sensitivity anadysis 5 based on the corrently abservable market enviroament,

Foreign currency risk .

Foreign currency tisk is the risk thar the fir value or future cash flows of an exposure will fivciuate because of chianyes i foreign exchange
N

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demensirate the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change in EUR and USD exchange rotes, with 21! oiher variables

(Rupees in Lekhs)
Change
Particulars in EUR  Effect on profit hefore fax Ch{mgc 18 Effect on profit before tax
vile USD rate v
2017-18 5% 2 (339.05) 5% (96.18)
-5% 339.05 =554 96.18
2016-17 5% 333,08 5% ©@2.81)

-5% 333.08 -5% 92.81







3. Credit Risk

f o

Credit risk is the risk that comnterpariy will not meet its obligations under a {inancisi instrument or custonter contract, icading o 2 financiai
loss. The Company

lit risk from = opers

i frare its firgac

tivities (prit

exposed 10 ¢ v trade receivat L activities,

including deposits with banks and finzneial institutions ansd fvvecm avchie 1um
Trade receivebles
Customer crezit risk is m v the empany s internil policies, procedores and comtrai reltting 1o customer it risk maragement

Credit qunlity of & customer ased on an credit rating s¢ s are defined 4 accordance with (bis nssessiment
Presently, the Company sa'ns poveer to sirgle custamer only which is a Government companz. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and
are penerally on 30 davs 10 60 davs oredi

dand ered

Liguidiey Risk
The Company monitors its rick of shortage of funds throvgh using a Fquidity planning too) thar ercompases a0 anal
inflow and outfiow.

sis of projeeted cash

The Company's objective is to ma
operating activities and use of b
concluded it to be low, The Company

¢ larpely througt

in 2 hlance between continuity of funding and flexibilis asnflow generation from its
lonns. The Company assesesd the concentration of risk with respect ta refinancing its debt and
access to a sufficient varicty of sources of funding.

=

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual urdiscounted payments.
! 3 pany Y

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Ondemand Uptolyear 1toSyears >Sycars Total
As at year ended
31-Mar-18
Borrowings (including current malurities &f long-term 10,331.08 5766566 12327264 195287.57 23.86,556.94
Trade & other payables 11,974.53
Other financial liab, $0.632.27
31-Mar-17
Borrowings (including current maturities of leng-term 1,883.23 402500 1.41,89080 20233099 36033503
Trade & other payables 2,169.9%8 - - 2,169.9%
Other finoncial liabilities - 4RA41604 - - 48410.04
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Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Siatements

Nofe 28 : Caregories of Fivanciri Instronments

Particulars

Financial Assets

Mecasured at amortised coi
(a) Trade and other recetvabics
(b) Cash and cash cquivalents
(c) Other Bank Balarnce

(d) Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Measured at.amortised cos?
(a) Borrowings

(b) Trade and other Paycl
(¢) Other financial Liabilities

7

n

2
0,206.6%
1,183.53

5.07

{Rupees in Lakhs)

t ®arch 31,2017

3,46,310.03
2,169.98
62,441.04







pany Limnd

Bhaynagar Energy

atements

Noics o the Fing

Note 29 : Capitai M

For the purpose of

hoiders of the C

capital ratios ip arder O

ad e reguirements of the
dividend ; 1w sharéholders, retum capital to
L debi divided oy otal capitel plus net debt. The

md other payables, less <

e Company mancges its capits! siruztere and

o~ adjust the capital struct:

financial covenanis. To

eholders or issuc he Co

ny Monitors capital u

Company includes within net debe. interest bearing loans and borrowings, trads

nd short-term deposits,

(Paupzes in Lak

Particulars

[aterest-b and borrowings (2ot 152 360.235.03

Trade and other

2.169.68
Less: cash and she
Net debt

Equity share cay
Other e

Total capital

ity (Isote 1)

q
Capital-and net debi

Gouring ratio (%3

in order.to achieve this ove
attached to th

perit the bank o immediately call 1o¢
borrowing in the current peri

capital m

interest-beasing lon

s that define capital struct financial cov ts

»d borio

searing loans aud
| thereof.

ings. There have been i

e annany !

pplicd for rescheduiing the repayment temms aad is coul

No changes were madc h 4 31,2018 and March 31,2(




tive sensitivity analysic for sianificant aconmptian is as shown below:

A quanti
Gratuity

(inerease) / decrease in defined benefit oBligation'mpact)

Level
oisi Yeer ended Mareh 21,2018 Year ended Marehi 31, 2017

Partieitars Seniter

Discount rate

Sal

Y increase

Employee tumover

_ .01
The followings are ths expested future beredi saynients for the defined beacfit plas (Ruperr io Lakin)
Pardsuhex i Year ended March 31, 2018 2ac entlerd Macc 51,2017
Gratuity E
Within the nexe 2 months (oextannan) regastang peand) 187
Between 2 and 5 vears 288
Beyond § years 1528
e T et it S, — i i
Total expected payments 18,40
e v % bt A - o
Weighted average darntien of defiacd plan ohtuaiing (hased on discounted cash flown)
Partienlars Yeas endedt Maroh 31,2018 Year ended March 31,2017
Ciratuity 13 13
.
The followings are the expested contributions 16 planred assets for the next year: {Rupers in Lakhs)
Particvir o Year ended Mereh 31,2013 Fear ended March 31,2017
2 007 620

Gratuity

.\-

83
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Bhavnagar Encrgy Compaay Lamiied
Notes to the Financial Starsments

Note 31 : Comaattinents

(Rupees in Lukhs)

Particulars

Capitnl Cormitments
Estimnted amuent of contructe (Ne, of Advances) remaining to be exesuted an Capital Amount and not
provided for, :

ot
Mapeeh 31, 2N 8

Az at

March 31,2017

22.429.90

30.491.02

22,4299

30,491.09

Note 32 : Contingent linbilities not provided fu-

Ciaims against the Company not acknosy!edped ot debts

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Pacticulars- |

Ay at
Mareh 21, 1018

As at
March 31,

2017

I 2ecordance with the Contruct Agreetment for Uansiruction of Piling aad General Civil works {ihe
“Contract™) fir 2 X 750 MW Lignité Based Thermal Power Project, at Padiv, Bhtveagnr Disiact, Mis.
Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Pyt Ll P17 served notice of Arbitmtion on the company for settiement
of dispute arises ot of contrect agreeny vards D+lay Damages, Fayment of Price Vasiations,
Certification Errors, Reintbinacreem 67 taxes mnd c2gzes & Interest Cost 2t¢.

30% on their nvoice tH st Inly, 2012 towards General, Civil
ion obtzined by the company, service tax is chuneable onliy @)
which company has not ackaowledged as debt

Further, SPCL hiss sharged service tax @ 10
& Pilling werks, which in terms of lepa! ¢
4.12%. The differcntial 2amonnt is Re, 945

0]

In Accordanve with Asticle 7 of the Tontract Agreement, the Claimant (SPCL) vide &
dated 12,01 2017 nominnted arbitratar 1a resolve the dispute. The respondent ("th
vide its letter datad 1302 2017 v

ted commpany's arhitrator to tesolve: the disputs
’

tely Rs. 183,576.55 Lakhs, The company has not acknawledged ¢laim submitted Dy Ms.
corve o arbitzation proceeding is yet not decidea nnd feinins aafis quo.

i
Further, BECL bud submitted its statement of defence dated 14.08.2017 10 the applican along with ccunter l
|

L}

29217.79

2609

|
{
i

29,217.79

869.91

Total

INNE7.70 |

N i e

e

30,087.70 |
C e

aler futake, Onutia!) and Crreslating Warer Systeny te M/s H
Ui duly 2011

W nn complese the work withas
ot aciepred claim of M

shednled tine period, the matter weni fir
arg for Rs, 31,938 Lakhs wwanis price
leredd as contingent

L Out of toml cizim of Rs, 31988 Laxha, Rs, 29638 Lakhs towards price escation and other financirg
(i) |and admtistrative cost of Rs. 2320.01 lakirs, The Company has submitted a counter Jlgin of Rs. 91,192.69
Lakhs tevards interest cost and loss of profit du to delay in completion of work. *

The Company has received Prelimineny Ay

cari dated 08th June, 2018 from Arbitration Tribunal, 'n

T y awnrd counter claim of BECL hiaz been reincted, BECL is not aceepting preliinery award, The
Prilimineny A it aot ia favour o7 the Company, hence the Company i3 in process of JHing appenl bufore
appropriate Authority.

31,998.00

2100800

Total

:
31,008,00 )
DL

31,988.00

The Company has acquired Limd 0 22112 sq. meters for approach road io site from private owaers of land,
The Company had initialiy paid Rs. 11.04 Lakhs @) Rs.29 per sq. nieter plus other expznses to all the land
owners, [n F.Y.2013-14, the company paic Rs, 9.52 Lakhs @ Rs.246 pec sq. meter plus other expenses for
(i) |3838 sq. meters of land., During the FY 2015-16, the company has paid Rs. 26.86 Lokhe @ 125.246 per sq.
meter for 10,922 sq. maters of Jand. Hewever, owners of 7352 sq. meters of land have not agreed to accept
the consideration @ Rs275/- (R.29 + Rix 246)per sq. meter and have raised their additional claim @
Rs.721per sq, meter (Rs.730-Rs 29), Tha estimmted dilTerential amount is R 53.01 Lakhs. (Previous year
Apail D1, Nat) has not ackneweldeed as debt by the Compuny, |

£3.01

“w
o
=

Total (

5301

53,01

The Company has acquited additional Innd of 24484.00 sq. meters. As per Dy. Collector, Bhnvaagar order
Gv) No, special LA O. Case no. 3/2009,Rs, 10,51 Lakhe (727/5q. meter along with solesiam charges and rate
difTerence is payabie. However, land owners have refiised to accept the amount ond claimed Rs. §5.69 Lakhs
(@) 350/~ sq. meter which the compuny has not acknowledge the debt,

85.69

Total

85.69

SdPs K-N
Am@r«am ’,
e 4




(Rupeey in Lakhs)
TATAL
fhacch 3!, 2015

Particulars

00 mm A 2N pape tine tor
-1~0N'('A prwey ,h Bhasnacer sfasice o GV
(v) |[The «Vnmu\ !nx 10 pay contpensition * mege of Tiess ard damsg: 233
bund. ete. The estimnted remaining aoaat proabla tevazds the comeee = <tisq £ Trass
fencing, earthen bund, <fo. is Rs. 2.33 Lakhe e
233
iy |WVs- EMCO Limited has subwitted exird cfviua towards of Rs, 198.09 Lakha whizh 1s ot acknowledged as el "
debt. y
Total 198.09 198.09
The Company has entered into a Purchese Power Agreement (PPA) with Gujarat UsfaVikas Nigam Lad,
(GUVNL) for sale of pawer. As per the azresinent, scheduled Commerin! Opergiion Date (COD) for Uit
and Unit 11 was 18.02.2013 and 12.05.2013 respectively and liquidated drmapes 'LF“ cante Xw:cd in case
of delay in achicvement of COD, 25 per the (e7ns OF 2greement,
(vii) Thc Company has informed GUVNL 25 well as Government of Gujarsi ztons COD and regrested tof . 16.750.00
extend thie date of COD and io eondene tie delay in & view that the delay is dne (o ressuns bevong tha contio|
of Management of the Compary and it houid e treated as Foree Majcura, 3 | !
; . i
Further, BECL hae :cqvmcd GUVNL Crenrh Energy and Petrocke nical Departizent ( he State ? |
Governmen?) i waive the LD Charg S0I- Lakls, the State Goverunent considered the raquest l
and dirrered GUVNL to waive the 1Dk CR5. 16,750/~ Lakhs vido lenier 5o [P 2-2006-2018-% | |
dated 2%th May, 2013 . i o | - | et |
_ i L e e 16.750.00 |
Note 33 : Earnings Per Shars (EDP3) v ;
e vyis ov Asat Asat
RaTveRlay Marel 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Net Profit as per Statement of Prafit and Less (82 In Lakhs) (61,7305 131,316.258)
Equity Shares outstanding £ {1e beginaing of the year (Nos.) 84,60,03,90
Equity Shares issued during tha yets (Nye ). . 18.40,00,000
Equity Shores outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.) 1.03 00,65 200

Wreighted Average Nuraber of Equity Xhires in ealeulating Basic EPS (Nos.)

¥3.98.40.285.00
Weighted Averags Number of Yovity Stares in celeuiating Diluted £PS(Nos.)

£3,08,40,285.00

Rasic £ 7 Per Share {(Ms.) {7.353) {1.73)
i ing Per Shuoe (Ry) (7.33) (3.73)
Nominal Value of Shores (Ky.) 1000 10.00

Note 34 : Segment reporting

A The Company’e operations fall uncer sinele segment namely “Power Generation™. ta%ing into account the ¢ifforent risks and reqams, tive orgenization structues and the
intemnn! reporting systene

B Compeny's revenne see devived fron sn

C. Segment revenus from “Genermifon o " represents ravenue generated from: exterral customars which is finly attribe st
India. All assefs ar2 Iocation in e coenjmny s erung, of domicile,

to n single customer being 8 Gavernment Unitertaking.

i 0 e compan ¢ % covmiry of domicile i

2ot e preauet it disglesed in Nate No. 19 of the

D. The company’ derives rovenae from Saie of Tower, The Information aont the revenues fom the exiernai cus
financial statenr~ars .

Note 35 1 During the FY 26 3-18, e Comom:
construction thereto for sweet vaier from Mr
occupation charges of e 250,000/~ Toruss of
10,0007- related 10 enrrent fipancia

Note 36 : The company, in order
the ¢lause of Liquidated Damose
21032013, in order to avoid delay in commis
Liquidated Danages.

wivning the aroject, pryment shonld he mnde in a manner that comnpaay shonlld be in pasiting 1o recover the 0wt of

Further, as per letter received from Government <* Gugarar, Enersy s Petrochemiieals Depurmyent d1.2rd Januar y. 2017,
needs to recover the Liquidared Damapes (LD) from the dilferemt vendors who have delayed in execution work. However, ¢
no action / accounting entry has been dane for recovery of Liquideted Damaees The amaunt is not quantifiahle at this Stage

hay baen given in the meetmg that, BECL
o pending the fnal settfement of the Contructs,

v

Note 37 : Based o information available with the Company. there are no suppliers who are registered as Micro, Small or Mediun enterprises under " The Micro, Small
&Medium enterprises development Act 2006™ as on3 1st March, 2018,




fint of Fnviror NGO, 1300139900 0 Lakhs a¢ pae
time capital cost for O " LU fasingt wh s expeniad De 204 74 |
Father as poer = inerre Ry, 170,00 Ls o axmpeating ant, the Con as eupended
R$.23.00 Lakks dur ne the curvent yeri vided for teouring exnen it of 2y Corporate Soeial 2esponsibility procram

For the purpose of Compornie Secial apany bac crs gt 2 frm it

Note 39 : The ex 7 18 R5.2,09,400/- Lakhs {Tetm Lonn -1) & Rs 36,600 Lakhs (
previous sanctioned. the repsyment dafe was to sia fom 32.09.2015. However. dus to del
Hence, consortium banks have approved revizion in repayment date from 30 09,2015 05
all Consortium Banks to Gefer the repayment schedule, accordingly Consortiuny banks Jay
PFSBU/Tem-08/2016-17/2039 dated 27.102014

Tern Loan - 111 of Rs. 30,000 Lakhy is P
27.10.2016

ng tean loan of the Coning

m Loan ~11) e payable in 45 quarterly installments. As per
in project schedule, compa * revision in payment date,
12.2016, Further, in view of ale, the Comps

has requested to ma!

#y i1 project sch

wepraved revicion in repayment date froim 31,32.2¢
1 4

hss requested
0 ZLA22017 vide lettor ref

I=in 44 q

rierly Instally from repaymeat s

it ante 31.03.2018 as per letter vide rel PESBL #Tem.-N8201

2059 dated

Note 40 : Addition

ntoanation (to e evtan: ap:

2. Payment 19 Auditor

(Rupees in Lakhs)

f’ 2016-17
|

Statutory Audit Fees

e Fineacial Yeor 203 " commissioned ite 2 X 250 MW poiver projesr, end
projezr,
'

its Unit-L and £ 'nit-10 on 16:h Mav. 2014

P ener anhilivation pha

arecinton of N3, 26,7

3 pro
Supports from Promoters, Leadars

adjustments are requ

ent iny cmtional o

jovernnizat, the Comoany's o1 the basis that Comoary is 8 ro

oncemn sad t

sived 1o be made in the cmrying valie of assets and

Act, 2007, the Company during the 7 Y 201516, BECL hod fillad the Petition for

Appraval of Tarifi'to GERC on 06.01.2516. Sub
wriften ohjecticns received in response to Put

Note 42 : In accordaice with the siatotory requiraments under S. 61 & 62 of the Elect
ly, as per GERC direction, BEC

‘oLee in March-2016,

- has submitted supporting documents on 22.02.9016 sid filed (e response on

In reply, GUVNL has §
caleulation and
from GERCT is

3.2014, GERC had heard e matter and civen the erder on 07,07,201

miited the reply 1 GERC on 01,03.2016 and BE? PR

was discrssed in 60th and 615

vy ani the Boasd has dirested to

3 W ihe Coning
Vieeting of'the Compa

O ix e ations

Note 43 : The compuny hins s=nt Bals
submitted aceounts oonf
reconcilistion

mee Confl

on to mmjor contractors, ves

or accounts as v 315t March, 2018, The narties who have

backs of accounts and others

d service providers o o

rmations are reconci'ed 1ot subinitted the accounts confinmation are « hject to eonfirmetion and

Note 44 : Fign

s rave been roumided

19 the nearaet Lakhs

wies havw

ped / reclassified wherever necessary 1o

Note 46

The Fina

Tz i i the Bosed of Directors an di 15 07 710

ot of even date

Chartered Acconnt
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Date ;thjuly, 2019

nnnpnr

owe: [37h Ty Jy 2018







\)‘ ALl - L.(;'-},ase ’I‘(!rep,-,qe,.\:;

Batween

ond Ml e i o B Acime o)
a."l_'; ..lno Oy CO o 2 ‘-‘\},}f,“

~J

N RE aF‘EC'w OF

250 MW Lignite Based Thermal Pow
AT & PO: Padva, Taluka: ¢ vn"Cj"‘"

1 ICA,

Bhavnagar Pin: 364 050

A

Di

ot
\‘»I




o 2 ; _' Table of Contents

ARTICLE CONTENTS Page
NO. No.
PREAMBLE
-1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 1
2 TERM OF AGREEMENT 14
3 CONDITIONS SUBSEQUENT 16
4 DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROJECT 18
5 CONSTRUCTION 23
6 SYNCHRONIZATION, COMMISSION AND 26
- COMMERCIAL OPERATION
7 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE i 29 @
8 CAPACITY, AVAILABILITY & DESPATCH 35
S METERING & ENERGY ACCOUNTING 39
10 - INSURANCES . 41
11 BILLING & PAYMENT 43
12 FORCE MAJEURE 48
13 CHANGE IN LAW 54
[ 14 EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND TERMINATIOM i &6
15 LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 60
18 ASSIGNMENTS AND CHARGES 63
17 | GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 64

18 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS 65

g

1 GUVNL
-
S KAG
7o J}/C.
(Z/S}/ Z“ \
s ;h'\.u-‘.')()DARA!) =
s A7

-~ \‘. : A
Per \"”“‘/Q'. o
\Sag 4




SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE TITLE PAGE
NO. i NO.
1 CONDITION SUBSEQUENT 71
2 FUNCTIONAL SPECIFICATION 74
3 COMMISSIONING AND TESTING 79
4 AVAILABILITY FACTORS 82
5 TARIFF 83
6 FINANCING PLAN 85
7 REPRESENTATION AND 86
WARRANTIES
8 FUEL MANAGEMENT 89




- T
AN .,5},’@,' g

R—
7

e

™, B e ’
P
w
-

N

i

b - 4

oe

QMWGUJAR‘%;T %ﬂ"“&ébm& adifivi, \8A\A o S 597349

Gesavenas R R )

oyssavm Qai cagen  Daaa. e\

21 1) PTROUEDPRant = Jut i

R 5 Sat la STes (‘uaﬂ G

R

Saan) o

wg\'b{"ﬂ N e P

214 JIRe HiraR
Hisd) Wize 200Gy
ol STAMPINAKSHAR/263106/{197

Ay s

This Agreement is made on the 17" day of November 2010 ;
Between

1. Bhavnagar Energy Company Limited ("BECL") having its registered office at 3™
Floor, Block ne. 8, Udhyog Bhavan Gandhinagar, 382011, hereinafter called
“Seller” which expressions unless repugnant to the context and meaning hereof
shall include its successors and assigns

And

2. Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited (GUVNL), having its registered office at Sardar
Patel Vidyut Bhavan, Race Course, Vadodara, 390007 herejrafter called

3




»

“Procurer” which expressions unless repugnant to the context and meaning
hereof shall include its successors and assigns

(Each of the “Procurer”, and “Selier. are individually referred to as “Party” and
collectively to as the "Partias”)

Whereas:

A. The Procurer intends to procure generation capacity and purchase electricity in
bulk.

B. The Seller has offered the Lignite Based generation capacity in aggregate of
500 MW to be installed at Padva, Bhavnagar and sale and supply of electricity in
bulk there from to the Procurer;

C. The Seller being a State Government PSU, has been exempted from competitive
bidding, as per the Government of India guidelines.

D. The Seller intends to sell the Lignite Based generation capacity and supply of
electricity in bulk to the Procurer to the extent of 500 MW capacity in aggregate
to be installed at Padva, Bhavnagar on the terms and conditions contained in
this Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) (the Agreement);

E. Accordingly, the Parties have to sign this PPA setting out the terms and
conditions of the sale of generation capacity and supply of electricity in bulk by
the Seller to the Procurer.

Now therefore, in consideration of the premises and mutual agreements, covenants
and conditions set forth herein, it is hereby agreed by and between the Parties as
follows:




- ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

. The terms used in this ‘Agreement, unless as defined below or repugnant to
the context, shall have the same meaning as assigned to them by the
Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules or regulations framed there under as
amended or re-enacted from time to time:

“Act” or The Electricity
Act 2003"

The Electricity Act 2003 or any further amendments
made subsequent to the same;

1 “Additional
| Capitalisation”

shall have the meaning as described in Article 7.10.2.

| Affected Party

|
|

Means, in respect of Force Majeure Events, procurer
and/or seller whosoever is prevented from performing its
obligations under this PPA.

| “Agreed Form”

means, in relation to any document, the form of the said
document most recently agreed to by the Parties and
initialed by them for identification:

' "Agreement" or "Power
Purchase Agreement" or
\IPPAII

means this document Including its Schedules containing

the terms and conditions for purchase of power by
Procurer,

“Appropriate
Commission"

means the State Electricity Reguiatory Cbmmission,
exercising the function to regulate sale of electricity by a
generating company and the power purchase and

procurement process of the Procurer under the Electricity
Act, 2003;

“Applicable ABT order”

means, Intra State ABT order for Gujarat State;

"Availability Factor” or
“Availability”

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Clause 4.3 of
Schedule 4 of this Agreement:

*Available Capacity”

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Clause 4.4 of
Schedule 4 of this Agreement:

“Bill Dispute Notice"

means the notice issued by a Party raising a dispute

regarding a Monthly Bill or a Supplementary Bill issued by
the other Party;

“‘Business Day"

means a day other than Sunday or a statutory holiday, on
which the banks remain open for business in Vadodara g

N\«
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Calendar Year

Means the Georgian year beginning on the 1st Day of the
month of January and ending on the 31st Day of the
month of December

“Capacity Charge” or
“Capacity Charges”

shall hava.meaning as specifiad in Schedule 5.1:

| “Capacity Notice”

means a notice given pursuant to applicable Grid Code /
Applicable ABT order

“Capital Cost”

shall be as described in GERC regulations as' amended
from time to time and as approved by GERC & Procurer.

“GERC Tariff Norms®

means the tariff fixation and other relevant regulations as
announced by GERC from time to time;

"Change in Law"

has the meaning specified in Article 13.1.1 s

"Check Meters” or
“Check Meter”

shall have the meaning as specified in CEA (Installation
and Operation of Meters) Regulation 2006 as amended
and revised from time to time:;

"Commercial Operation
Date" or "COD"

means, in relation to a Unit or the Power Station, as the
case may be, the date declared by the Seller after

"Commissioning Tests"
or "Commissioning Test”

meeting the requirements of Article_s.s.
means the Trial Run Test in accordance with Article 6.2.

"Construction
Contractor"

means one or more main contractors, appointed by the
Seller to design, engineer, constrict and Commission the
Project;

“Construction Period”
?

means the period from (and including) the date upon
which the Construction Contractor is instructed or
required to commence work under the Construction
Contract up to (but not Including) the Commercial
Operations Date;

"Consuitation Period"

means the period, commencing from the date of
issue of a Seller Preliminary Termination Nofice or a
Procurer Preliminary Termination Notice, for
consultation between the Parties to:

(i) mitigate the consequence of the relevant event
having regard to all the circumstances; and

(ii) prevent termination of this Agreement;




“Contracted Capacity”

Shall mean the rated name plate capacity of 500 MW for
‘the Power Station as a whole or such lower rated
capacity as may be determined in accordance with
ariicle 8.2 of this agreement.

means
a) the first contract year of this Agreement shall
be the pericd beginning on the date of this
Agresment and ending on ensuing 31% March.
Thereafter @ contract year shall be each
succeeding twelve (12) month Period starting
on 1% April and ending on 31% March of the

next calendar year provided that:

b) the Contract Year shall begin once again from
the actual Commercial Operation Date of the
first Unit and shall end on the ensuing 31%
March. Thereafter a contract year shall be
each succeeding twelve (12) month period
starting on 1% April and ending on 31% March
of the next calendar year and provided further
that

c) the last Contract Year of this Agreement shall
end on the last day of the term of this
Adreement;

“Contract Year”
i

;“Control Centre”
‘Nodal  Agency”
“SLDC"

or

cor

means the State Load Dispatch Centre located at Gotri,
Vadodara or such other load control centre designated by
the Appropriate Commission from time to time;

"Declared Capacity"

means the capability of the Unit or the Power Station, as
the case may be, to deliver maximum electricity at
interconnection Point, in MW, declared by the Seller, in
relation to any period of the day or whole of the day, duly
taking into account the availability of fuel:

“Dispute” means any dispute or difference of any kind between the
, Procurer and the Selier in connection with or aﬁsing out
' of this Agreement including any issue on the

interpretation and scope of the terms of this Agreement;

"Due Date" means the sixtieth (60" ) day after a Monthly Bill or a

Suppleraentary Bill is received and duly acknowledged by
Precurer (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the
immediately succeeding day) by which date such bill is
payable by Procurer;




“Electricity Laws”

means the Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules and
'regulations made there under from time to time along
with amendments and replacements thereof in whole or
in part and any other Law pertaining fo electricity
including” fegulations framed by the Appropriate
Commission;

"Energy Output"

means the net electrical output of the Power Stations at
the Interconnection Point, as expressed in kWh;

“Emergency”

means a condition or situation that, in the opinion of the
Procurer or the agency tasked with operating and
maintaining the Interconnection and Transmission
Facilities or the transmission company, as the case may
be, poses a significant threat to the Procurer’s or the said
agency's or fransmission company’s ability to maintain

safe, adequafte and continuous electrical service to ‘its |

customers, or seriously endangers the security of
persons, plant or equipment;

Equity

shall mean the aggregate of the following amounts
(denominated in Rupees and any other currencies)
expended for the Project pursuant to this Agreement and
forms part of the approved Financing Agreements:

(@)

all such amounts which have been and remain paid up to
the capital of Seller, and

(b)

all the amounts which have been paid up to the capital of
Seller to the extent that they result from an adjustment to
the Project Cost ; and

(c)

Realised Premium ; and

()

Preferential shares actually paid up; and

(e)

investment of internal resources created out of free
reserves.

®

In any case Equity amount shall not exceed 30% of the
total approved Capital Cost. Any amount of Equity in
excess of 30% of the Capital Cost shall be freated as a
deemed loan repayable within a period of 10 years from
the CoD and interest on the same shall be payable at the
weighted average rate of the outstanding term loans.

“Expiry Date"

means the 30th  anniversary of the Commercial
Operation Date of the last Unit of the Project;




Independent Engineer

|
|

means an independent consulting engineering firm or
group that may be appointed jointly by the Procurer and
the Seller to carry out the functions in accordance WIth
Ariicle 8, Article’8 and Article 12 herein.

provided that separate Independent Engineer may be
appointed for the purposes of Article 6, Article 8 and
Acrticle 12;

provided further that separate Independent Engineer may
be appointed for each financial year for the purposes of
Article 8, and in such case, such Independent engineer
shall be appointed at least ninety (90) days prior to the
beginning of the financial year.

“Indian  Governmental
instrumentality”

means the Government of India, Government of Gujarat
and any ministry, department, board, agency or other
authority of Government of India or Government of

| Gujarat;

|

| “Initial Performance | shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Clause 6.2.8
Retest Period” of Article 6 of this Agreement;

] “Installed Capacity"

|

in relation to the BECL Power Station as a whole. means
500 MW rated gross capacity, or such lower rated
capacities as may be determined in accordance thh

[ Article 8.2 of this Agreement;
’"lnterconnection means the facilies on the Procurers side of the |
Facilities" Interconnection Point for receiving: and metering

Electrical QOutput in accordance with this Agreement and
which shall include, without limitation, all other
transmission and distribution lines and associated
equipment, transformers and associated equipment,
relay and switching equipment and protective devices,
safety equipment and the metering system required for
the Project;

“Interconnection Point”

means the points of delivery of Electrical Output to the

| or “Interconnection | Procurer and shall be at the outgoing bus bar / gantry of
| Point” the Power Station for fulfilling the obligation of the Seller
to deliver the scheduled electrical energy:
“Invoice”

means either a Monthly Invoice, a Supplementary Invoice
or @ Procurer Invoice;




Independent Engineer

means an independent consulting engineering firm or
Qroup that may be appointed jointly by the Procurer and
the Seller to camry out the functions in accordance with
Article 6, Article 8 and Article 12 herein. '
provided that separate Independent Engineer may be
appointed for the purposes of Article 6, Article 8 and
Article 12;

provided further that separate Independent Enginesr may
be appointed for each financial year for the purposes of
Article 8, and in such case, such Independent engineer
shall be appointed at least ninety (8Q) days prior to the
beginning of the financial year.

‘Indian  Govemmental
Instrumentality”

means the Government of India, Government of Gujarat
and any ministry, department, board, agency or other
authority of Government of India or Government of
Gujarat;

“Initial Performance
Retest Period”

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Clause 6.2.8
of Article 6 of this Agreement:

"Installed Capacity"

in relation to the BECL Power Station as a whole means
500 MW rated gross capacity, or such lower rated
capacities as may be determined in accordance with
Article 8.2 of this Agreement:

"Interconnection
Facilities"

2

means the facilities on the Procurer's side of the |

Interconnection Point for receiving and metering
Electrical Output in accordance with this Agreement and
which shall include, without I[imitation, all other
transmission and distribution lines and associated |
equipment, fransformers and associated equipment,
relay and switching equipment and protective devices,
safety equipment and the metering system required for
the Project;

“Interconnection Point”

means the points of delivery of Electrical Qutput to the

or "Interconnection | Procurer and shall be at the outgoing bus bar / gantry of

Point" the Power Station for fulfilling the obligation of the Seller
to deliver the scheduled electrical energy;

*Invoice”

means either a Monthly Invoice, a2 Supplementary Invoice
or a Procurer Invoice;




“Law" “neans, in relation to this Agreement, all laws and

Electricity Laws in force in India and would include any
statute, ordinance, regulation, notice, circular, code, rule
or direction, or any interpretetion of any of them by a
Governmental Instrumentality and having force of law
and also includes all applicable rules, regulations, orders,
directions,  notifications by a  Governmental
Instrumentality pursuant to or under any of them and
shall include all rules, regulations, decisions directions
and orders of the Appropriate Commission ;

“Lenders”

l

means the banks, other financial institutions, RBI
registered non banking financial companies, mutual
funds and agents or trustees of debenture / bond holders,
including their successors and assignees, who have
agreed as at Financial Close to provide the Seller with
the debt financing described in the Capital Structure
Schedule, and any successor banks or financial
institutions to whom their interests under the Financing
Agreements may be transferred or assigned:

| Provided that, such assignment or transfer shall not
relieve the Seller of its obligations to the Procurer under
| this Agreement in any manner; and shall also not lead to
an increase in the liability of the Procurers:

“Main Meters®

|

shall have the meaning as specified in CEA (Installation
and Operation of Meters) Regulation 2006 as amended
and revised from time to time.

| "Maintenance Outage”

shall have the meaning ascribed there to in GRID CODE

| Metering Date

|

Means the 00:00 hours of the first day of each calendar
month and initial meter reading will be taken on the Date
of Installation of Meters.

Monthly Bill:

Will have the meaning ascribed to it in Article 11,

“Metering System"

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Article 9 of
this Agreement;

:‘ "Month"

means a calendar month:

“‘Normative Availability”

shall be 80% (However for the first three years from the
date of commercial operation it shall be 75%).

“Normative Auxiliary
| Energy Consumption® |

L

shall be 11%.

BECL
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Gross

“Normative
Station Heat Rate”

means the heat energy input to the Power Sfation in
terms of Gross Calerific Value, to generate one (1) kWh
Energy Output at the Generator Terminal,

shall be 2623 Kcal/Kwh including moisture correction.

Notice

shall mean a notice relating to any eventuality as
prescribed under this PPA and shall be understood to
have a Notice relating to that particular event in context of
which used.

"Operation Period"

in relation to the Power Station means the period from its
Commissioned Date until the expiry or earlier termination
of this Agreement in accordance with Article 2 of this
Agreement;

"Operating Procedures"

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in GRID CODE;

Outage(s)

shall mean the event(s) of non-Availability of the Power
Stations.

"Party" and "Parties”

has the meaning specified in the recital fo this

Agreement;

"Performance Test™

means the test of a Unit's rated capacity and after
commissioning of the Power Station, of the Power
Station’s rated capacity as a whole caried out in
accordance with Clause 3.1 of Schedule 3 of this
Agreement and relevant Test Code(s);

“Preliminary Termination
Notice”

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Article 14 of
this Agreement;

“Project”

means the ownership, design, financing, engineering,
procurement, construction, operation, maintenance,
repair, refurbishment, development and insurance of the
Power Station undertaken by the Seller in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

“Project Documents”

Means Contract with Construction Contractor; Fuel
Supply Agreements, including the Fuel Transpoertation
Agreement, if any and any other agreement designated
as such from time to time by the Procurer or the Seller: |

)



"Prudent
Practices"

Utility

seans the practices, methods and standards that are

generally accepted 'internationally from time to time by

electric utiliies for the purpose of ensuring the safe,

efficient and  economic  design, construction,
commissioning, operation and maintenance of power
generation equipment of the type specified in this

Agreement and which practices, methods and standards

shall be adjusted as necessary, to take account of:

a) operation and maintenance guidelines recommended
by the manufacturers of the plant and equipment to
be incorporated in the Power Station;

b) the requirements of Indian law; and

¢) the physical conditions at the Site:

"Repeat

Test"

Performance

shall have the meaning ascnbed thereto in Article 8 and
Schedule 3 of this Agreement and as per relevant Test
Code(s);

;‘ “Revised

Notice”

Capacity

means the revision in Capacity Notice, as per applicable
Grid Code or Applicable ABT order

“Reference
Rate”

Exchange

means in relation to any currency other than Rupees in
which debt or Equity component of the capital cost may
be financed in accordance with the Financing
Agreements, the weighted average selling rate in Rupee
for relevant currency at which Selier purchased /
converted such currency for raising debt and / or Equity,
as the case may be, on the date on which Seller raised
the debt, or as the cass may be, the Equity, to finance
the Proiect,

| "Rupees” or "Rs."

means the lawful currency of India:

| “SBI BR”

means the prevailing Base rate per annum as fixed from’
time to time by the State Bank of India and in the
absence of such rate, the average of the Base. rates
fixed by the Bank of india and the Bank of Baroda and
failing that any other arrangement that substitutes such |
Base rafe as mutually agreed to by the Parties;

| “Scheduled CoD” or
“‘Scheduled Commercial
Operation Date”

means for the first unit 18" February, 2013 and for the
second unit 18" May, 2013;
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“Scheduled Connection
Date”

Ahe Seller shall ensure the connection of all the
transmission lines aileast 120 days kefore the Scheduled
Synchronisation Date of the first unit:

“Scheduled Energy”

means fhe.quantum of energy at the Interconnection
Point as scheduled by the State Load Dispatch Centre;

"Scheduled Generation"
(SG)

at any time or for any period or time block means
schedule of generation in MW at Interconnection Point,
given by the Control Center; in accordance with the Grid
Code and this Agreement.

"Scheduled Qutage"

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in GRID CODE:

"Scheduled
Synchronisation Date"

means the date which falls 120 days before the
Scheduled CoD of the any Unit of the project:

"Settlement Period"

means the time block for issue of daily declaration,
generation and drawal schedules as may be defined by
GRID CODE [presently fifteen (15) minute block];

Site means the site of the Generating Station at village
Padva, 2 x 260 MW (500 MW) Power Station by BECL
for the purpose of this Power station

“State Transmission

Utility” or “"STU"

means the Lility as defined in the Electricity Act 2003:

"Supplementary Invoice"

means an invoice other than a Monthly Invoice raised by
either Party in accordance with Article 11:

"Tariff Payment"

means the payments under Monthly Invoices as specified
in Schedule 5 and the relevant Supplementary Invoices;

"Tariff"

means the tariff payable in accordance with Schedule 5;

"Technical
Specifications"

means the technical requirements and parameters
prescribed in relation to the Project, forming a part of the
Construction Contract. Provided these shall always
comply with the requirements of Schedule 2 of this
Agreement:; '

“Tested Capacity”

in relation to 2 Commissioned Unit, or the Power Station | .
as a whole (if the Power Station has been commissioned)
means the results of the most recent Performance Test
or Repeat Performance Test carried out in relation to the
Power Station in accordance with Schedule, 3 of this

10
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Agreement;

“Termination Notice"

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Article 14 of
this Agreement:

“Term of Agreement"

has the meaning specified in Article 2

| “Total Debt Amount’

means the sum of the following amounts, expressed in

Rupees (with all amounts denominated in currencies

other than Rupees being converted to Rupees at the

Reference Exchange Rate, the selling rate in Rupees for

the Foreign Currency on the relevant day, as notified by

the State Bank of India as its TT Rate at 12:00 noon on
the date of notification of Force Majeure Event):

a) the principal amount of the debt incurred by the Seller
" (as per the terms of the Fxnancmg Agreements) to
finance the Project according to the Capital Structure

 Schedule as approved by the Gommission which
remains outstanding on the date of notification of
Force Majeure Event after taking account of any debt
repayments which could have been made out of the
Monthly Payments received by the Seller on or before
the date of nofification of Force Majeure Event as per
the terms provided in the Firancing Agreements : and
bj all accrued interest and fi Inancing fees payable under
the Financing Agreements on the amounis referred fo
in Article (a) above since the Fixed Charge Payment
immediately preceding the date of notification of
Force Majeure Event or, if Fixed Charges have not yet
fallen due {o be paid, from the most recent date when
interest and financing fees were capltahsed and

c) if this Agreement is terminated during the
Construction Period, any amounts owned to the
Construction Contractor for work performed but not
paid for under the Construction Contract (other than
amounts falling due by reason of the Seller's default
or this Agreement being terminated);

| “Unit* or “Power Station®

_

means a block of Boiler, Steam Turbine, Generator along
with associated auxiliaries in case of single such Unit and
shall be called “Power Station” in case of all units taken
together

11




“Unscheduled means as defined in relevant GERC Regulations;
Interchange”

“Energy Charge” or | shall have meaning ss specified in Schedule B

“Fuel Charge”

"Week" means a calendar Week commencing from 00:00 hours of

Monday, and ending at 24:00 hours of the following
Sunday;

"Wheeling Charges” are the charges paid by the Procurer to the STU or any

or .

“Transmission | other agency for the transfer of power from the Plant

Charges” switchyard end to the Procurer's network

Zero Date means 18" February, 2010.

1.2

1.2.1

1232
1.2.3
1.2.4

1.2.5

126

1.2.7

Interpretation
Save where the conirary is indicated, any reference in this Agreement to:

A "Recital", an "Article", a "Schedule”, a “Paragraph" and a “Clause” shall be
construed as a reference to a Recital, an Article, a Schedule, a Paraqraph
and a Clause respectively of this Agreement
An “affiliate” of any person shall be construed as a reference to a subsidiary
or holding company, or a subsidiary of a holding company, of such person
“this Agreement” shall be construed as including a reference to its Schedules
and Annexes;

A “crore” means a reference to ten million (10,000,000) and a “lakh® means a
reference to one tenth of a million (1,00,000);

An "encumbrance" shall be construed as a reference to a morigage, charge,
pledge, lien or other encumbrance securing any obligation of any person or
any other type of preferential arrangement (including, without limitation, title
transfer and retention arrangements) having a similar effect.

“indebtedness” shall be construed so as to include any obligation (whether
incurred as principal or surety) for the payment or repayment of money,
whether present or future, actual or contingent;

A "person" shall be construed as a reference to any person, firm, company,
corporation, society, trust, government, state or agency of a state or any
association or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality)
of two or more of the above and a person shall be construed as including 2
reference to its successors, permitted transferees and permitted assigns in
accordance with their respective interests.

12




1.2.8 A ‘“subsidiary” of a cpmpany or corporation shall be construed as a reference
to any company or cdrporation:

a) which is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the first-mentioned company
or corporation; or

b} more than half the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned,
directly or indirectly, by the first-mentioned company or corporation; or

¢) which is a subsidiary of another subsidiary of the first-mentioned company
or corporation and, for these purposes, a company or corporation shall be
treated as being controlled by another if that other company or corporation
is able to direct its affairs and / or to confrol the composition of its board of
directors or equivalent body

1.2.8 The "winding-up", “dissolution”, "insblvency", or ‘reorganization" of a
company or corporation shall be construed so as to include any equivalent or
analogous proceedings under the law of the jurisdiction in which such
company or cerporation is incorporated or any jurisdiction in which such’
company or corgoration caries on business including the seeking of
liquidation, winding-up, reorganization, dissolution, arrangement, protection or
relief of debtors. '

1.2.10 Words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.

1.2.11 This Agreement itself or any other agreement or document shall be construed
as a reference to this or to such other agreement or document as it may have
been, or may from time to time be, amended, varied, novated, replaced or
supplemented.

1.242A Law shell be construed as a reference to such Law including its
amendments or re-enactments from time to time.

1.213A time of day shall, save as otherwise provided in any agreement or
document be construed as a reference to Indian Standard Time.

1.2.14 Different parts of this Agreement are to be taken as mutually explanatory and
supplementary to each other and if there is any inconsistency between or
among the parts of this Agreement, they shall be interpreted in a harmonious
manner so as to give effect to each part.

1.2.15The table of contents and any headings or sub-headings in this Agreement
have been inseried for ease of reference only and shall not affect the
interpretation of this Agreement.

1.2.16 All interest payabie under this Agreement shall accrue from day to day and

be calculated on the basis of a year of three hundred and sixty five (365)
days. '




2.1

2.2

2.3
2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

2.4
. 2.441

ARTICLE 2

TERM OF AGREEMENT

Effective Date and Term of Agreement
This Agreement is effective from the date of its signing by both the parties.

The Agreement shall have a term from such effective date until the Expiry
Date ("Term of Agreement"), when it shall automatically terminate, unless:

a) terminated earlier, pursuant to Articie 2.2, or

b) extended, pursuant to Article 2.3.

Early Termination .

This Agreement shall terminate before the Expiry Date:

a) if either the Procurer or Seller exersises 2 right to terminate, pursuant to
Article 14 or Article 3.3; or

b) in such other circumstances as the Seller and Procurer may subsequently
agree, in writing.

Extension of Term

Prior to at least Three hundred and Sixty Five (365) days before the Expiry

Date, Procurer may give a written notice to the Seller that it wishes to extend

this Agreement for an additional period to be specified by that Procurer.

If such written notice is delivered to the Seller by the Procurer, this

Agreement can be extended to such date. Upon the receipt of such notice,

the Parties shall meet and discuss an extension of this Agreement, which

may be extended on such terms including the period of extension, tariff,

capacity and operating characteristics as the Parties may mutually agree in

writing. Such extension shall commence upon the end of the last day of the

Term of Agreement.

On Expiry of any extension of the Term under Article 2.3. 2, the provisions of

this Agreement, including this Article 2.2 itself shall apply mutatis mutandis in

relation to either Party's right.

Consequences of Procurer or Seller not extending

In the event that the Procurer or Seller chooses not to automatically extend
the PPA under Article 2.3, the PPA shall expire and no rights and obligations
by Procurer to the Seller or vice versa shail be owed by any party to another.

14




Survival 2

The expiry or termination of this Agreement shall not affect accrued rights
and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement, nor shall it affect any
continuing obligations for which this Agreement provides, either expressly or
‘by necessary implication, the survival of, post its expiry or termination.
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3.1

3.2

V.

VI.

-

* ° ARTICLE2

CONDITIONS SUBSEQUENT

Satisfaction of conditions subsequent by the Seller

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary specified in this Agreement and
unless specifically waived in writing by either Party, the other Parly agrees
and undertakes to duly perform and complete the following within twelve {12)
months from the effective date of this Agreement:

the Seller shall have received the Initial Consents as mentioned in Schedule
1, either” unconditionally or subject to conditions which do not materially
prejudice its rights or the performance of its obligations under this Agreement
the Seller shall have appointed the Construction Contractors, if Seller itself is -
not the Censtruction Contractor, for the design, engineering, procurement,
construction and Commissioning of the Project and shall have given to such
Contractor an irrevocable notice to proceed.

the Seller shall have achieved Financial Closure in relation to the Project;

the Seller shall make available to the Procurer the data with respect to the
Project for design of Interconnection Facilities and Transmission Faciiities, if
required;

the specific Interconnection Point has been idenfified by Parties zt the
outgoing gantry of the Power Station;

the Seller shall have got vacant possession of the Sites and shall have
obtained valid, enforceable, unencumbered and insurable freehold or
leasehold tifle thereto and such other real property rights including way-
leaves as may be required for the Project or the performance of its
obligations under this Agreement.

Reports

The Seller shall notify the Procurer in writing at least once a month on the
progress made in satisfying the conditions in Article 3.1 and may also
mention whether the actual Commercial Operation Date shall be as per the
Scheduled Commercial Operation Date or is likely to be preponed or
postponed and by how much time.

16




3.3
3.31

Consequences of non-fulfiliment of conditions under Article 3.7

If any of the conditions specified in Article 3.1 is delayed beyond a period of
one year (12) months then elther Party may terminate this Agreement without
any obligation or iiability;

2 In case of Force Majeurs affecting the Seller, the time period of twelve (12)
months for Condition Subsequent, shall be extended for the purpose of
termination as per Articie 3.3 subject to @ maximum extension period of 10

months continuous or non continuous in aggregate.




4.1
4.1.1

ARTCLE 4

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PRCJECT

The Seller’s obligation to build, own and operate the Power Station
Subject to the terms and condifions of this Agreement, the Seller undertakes
to be responsible at Seller's costs and risks for:

1L

V.

V.

Vi

obtaining and maintaining in full force and effect any Consents required by
it pursuant te this Agreement and Indian law;

executing the Project in a timely manner so as to enable each of the Units
and the Power Station as a whole to be Commissioned no later than its
scheduled Commercial Operation Date and such that as much of the
Installed Capacify as can be made available through the use of Prudent
Utility Practices will be made available reliably to meet the Procurer's
scheduling and dispatch requirements throughout the Operating Period of
the Power Station;

- owning the Power Station throughout the term of this Agreement free and

clear of encumbrances except those expressly permitted by Article 18;
procure the requirements of electricity at the Power Station (including
construction, commissioning and start-up power) to meet in a timely
manner all formalities for getting such a supply of electricity;

shall be responsible for informing about the project to the STU and
procuring the Interconnection and Transmission Facilities upto the
Interconnection Point to enable the Power Station to be connected to the
Grid System of the STU not later than the Scheduled Connection Date
and to facilitate transmission of power from the Power Station to
Interconnection Point; and

fulfilling all other obligations undertaken by him under this Agreement.

Procurer’ obligation
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Procurer:

L

il

endeavour its best (without any legal obligation) to assist the Seller in
procuring the electricity required as per Article 4.1 (d); and

using all reasonable endeavours to facilitate the commissioning and
testing of the Units and after commissioning of the Power Station, as a
whole that are within it's power to do,

lll. shall co-ordinate with the STU for the Interconnection and
Transmission facilities.

18




4.3
4.3.1

4.3.2

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

A
TR

4.5.41

Purchase and sale of Available Capacity and Electrical Output

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Seller undertakes
to sell to the Procurer, and Procurer undertake to pay the Tariff for the
Available Capacity and Electrical Output of the Power Station throughout its
Operating Periods. _
The Seller shall sell all the Available Capaéity of the Power Station to the
Procurer pursuant to Scheduled Generation given by the Procurer or SLDC.

Right to Available Capacity/ Electrical Output ]

The available Capacity of the Unit or the Power Station, as the case may be,
shall be used exclusively for the benefit ¢f the Procurer and the Seller shall
not grant to any third party or allow any third party to obtain any entitiement to
the Available Capacity and Eleclrical Output.

The Seller shall not itself use any of the electricity generated by the Power
Station during the term of this Agreement except for the purpose of meeting
the Power Station's auxiliary load to the power plant.

Extensions of time

In the event that:

{a) the Seller is prevented from performing its obligations under Article
4.1(b) by the required date because of any default of the Procurer; or

{b) a Unit, or the Power Station cannot be Commissioned by its
Scheduled Commerclal Operations Date because of Force Majeure
Event; or ‘

{c} a Unit, or the Power Station cannot be Commissioned by its
Scheduled Commercial Operations Date due to delay caused by
relevant authority and situations beyond the control of the Seller, for
the clearances to be obtained by the Seller as per Schedule 1.
whereby, delay needs fo be Justified by the Seller.

the Scheduled Commercial Operations Date, the Scheduled Connection Date
and the Expiry Dafe shall be deferred, subject to the limit prescribed in Article
4.5.8,for a reasonable period fo permit the Seller through the use of due
diligence, to overcome the effects of the Force Majeure Event or in the case
of the Procure:'s material defauit illl such time the rnaterial default is rectified
by the Procurer. )

If the Parties have not agreed, within thirty (30) days after the affected Party's

performance has ceased to be affected by the relevant circumstance on how
long the Scheduled Commercial Operations Date, the Scheduled Caonnection

19
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4.5.3

4.6
4.6.1

4.6.2

Date or the Expiry.Date should be deferred by, any Party may raise the
Dispute in accordance with Article 17.

The Scheduled Commercial Operations Date of any Unit or the Scheduled
Commercial Operations Date of the Power Stafion as a whole, may hot be
extended by more than a total of twelve (12) months from the Scheduled
Commercial Operations Date first determined pursuant to this Agreement by
reason of one or more Force Majeure Events, and the new date shall be
deemed the Scheduled Commercial Operations Date for the purposes of this
Agreement. If the original Scheduled Commercial Operations Date is delayed
beyond twelve (12) months, this Agreement shall terminate as detailed in
Article 14.

Liquidated damages for delay due to Procurer default

If

a. a Unit cannot achieve COD by its Scheduled Commercial Operations
Date, due to a Procurer Event of Defauit which shall not include non
availability of Transmission Evacuation system or

b. a Unitis available for conducting Commissioning Tests and is anticipated
to be capable of duly completing the Commissioning Tests as certified by
the Independent Engineer, but the said Commissioning Tests are not
undertaken or completed due to such Procurer Event of Default ;

such Unit shall, until the effects of the Procurer Event of Default no longer
prevent the Seller from undertaking 2 Commissioning Test/s, be deemed to
have, a Tested Capacity equal to the Contracted Capacity and to this extent,
be deemed to have achieved COD with effect from the Scheduled COD

»Without taking into account delay due to such Procurer Event of Default and
shall be treated as follows.

In case of delay on account of the Procurer Event of Default, the Procurer
shall make payment to the Seller of Capacity Charges caiculated on
Normative Availability of Contracted Capacity of such Unit for and during the
period of such delay. »

In every case referred to in Article 4.6.1 hereinabove, the Selier shall
undertake @ Commissioning Test as soon as reasonably practicatile after the
point at which it is no longer prevented from doing so by the effects of Force
Majeure Events or a Procurer Event of Default (as appropriate)rapd if such

20




4.7

&.7.4

4.7.2
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Commissioning Test is not duly completed and / or demonstrates a Tested
Capacity which is less than ninety five percent (95%) of the installed
Capacity, then:

a) The Unit which faiis the Commissioning Test, shall be deemed to have
not been Commissioned from ithe deemed commissioning date
referred to in Articie 4.6.1;

b) The Selier shali refund to the Procurer, sums received by way of
Capacity Charge pro-rata to the shorifall in Instailed Capacity.

Liquidated damages for delay in providing Contracted Capacity

If any Unit does not achieve COD by its Scheduled Commercial Operation
Date other than for the reasons specified in Article 4.5.1 the Seller shall pay
to the Procurer liquidated damages for such delay in achieving COD. The
sum total of the liquidated damages payable by the Seller to the Procurer for
such delayed COD shaill be calculated as follows:

SLDb = [CCun x dn x DR1], if dn<=60
SLDb = [CCun x 60 x DR1} + [CCunx (dn - 60 ) x DR2] , if dn > 60

Where:
a. “SLD5" are the liquidated damages payable by the Scller during the

Date of a Unit up io and including the day on which Unit actﬁally achieves
COD;

b. “CCun”is the Installed Capacity of Unit “n"; ;

c. “d" is the number of days in the period beginning with the day after the
Scheduled Commercial Operation Date of Unit “n" up to and including the
day on which such Unit actually achieves COD;

d. “DR1"is Rs. Five Thousand (5,000) of damages per MW per day of delay
in case “d" is less than or equal to 60 days and "DR2"'is Rs. Ten
Thousand (10,000) of damages per MW per day of delay in case “d" is
more than 60 days.

The Seller's maximum liability under this Article 4.7 shall be limited to the
amount of liquidated damages calculated in accordance with Article 4.7.1 for
and upto twelve (12) Months of delay for Contracted Capacity of the Unit.
Provided that,in case of failure of the Seller to achieve COD of t it even




4.7.3

4.7.4

4.8

after expiry of twelve {12) Months from its Scheduied Commercial Operation
Date, the provisions of Arlicie 14 shall apply.

The Procurer shall start recovering the liquidated damages calculated
pursuant to Article 4.7.1 fror the first monthly bill raised by the seller and
shall be fully recovered not later than 60 days from the date on which the
Unit actually achieves COD ; or within 60 days from the date of termination
of this Agreement.

The Parties agree that the formula specified in Article 4.7.1 for calculation of
liquidated damages payable by the Seller under this Article 4.7, read with
Article 14 is a genuine and accurate pre-estimation of the actual loss that will
be suffered by the Procurer in the event of Seller's delay in achieving COD
of a Unit by its Scheduled COD.
Increased costs due to Procurer’s default ;
The Parties expressly agree that the Procurer’ only liability for any loss of
profits or any other loss of any other kind or description whatsoever, suffered
by the Seller by reason of the Procurer’s failure to meat its obligations under
Article 4.2 shall be the amounts specified in Article 4.6.
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ARTICLE §

CONSTRUCTION

Seller's Construction Responsibilities

The Seller shall be responsible for dasigning, constructing, erecting,
commissioning, completing and testing the Power Station in accordance with
the following, it being clearly understood that in the event of inconsistency
between two or more of the following, the order of priority as between them
shall be the order in which they are placed, with ‘applicable law’ being the
first:

a. applicable Law;

the Grid Code;

the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

the Functional Specifications; and

. Prudent Utility Practices. -

Not\v;mstandmg anything to the contrary contained in this PPA, the Seller
shall ensure that the technical parameters or equipment limits of the Pro;ect
shall always be subject to the requirements as specified in points (a) to (e)
above and under no event shall over-ride or contradict the provisions of this
Agreement and shall not excuse the Seller from the performance of his
obligations under this Agreement. '

P HPF

The Site

The Seller acknowiedges that, before entering into this Agreement, it has had
sufficient opportunity to investigate the Site and accepts full responsibility for
its condition (including but not limited to its geological condition, on the Site,
the adequacy of ie road and rail links fo the Site and the availability of
adequate supplies of water) and agrees that it shall not be relieved from any
of its obligations under this Agreement or be entitled to any extension of time

or financial compensation by reason of the unsuitability of the Site for
whatever reason.

Establishment of interconnection Facilities

The Seller shall be responsible for establishing interconnection facilities for
evacuation of power from the Power station to the Intercoririection Point.




54  Quality of Workmanship

54.1 The Seiler shail ensure thai the Power Station is designed, built and

: completed in a good workmanlike manner using sound engineering
construction practices and using only materials and equipment that are new
and of international utility grade quality such that, the useful life of the Power
Station continues till the Expiry Date.

5.4.2 The Seller shall ensure that design, construction and testing of all equipment,
faciliies, components and systems of the Project shall be in accordance with
Indian Standards and Codes issued by Bureau of Indian Standards and/or
internationally recognised Standards and Codes, such as;

I.  American National Standards Irstitute (ANSI)

fl.  American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM)

iii. American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
iv. American Petroleum Institute (APT)

V.. Standards of the Hydraulic Institute, JSA

vi. International Organization for Standardization (1ISO)
vil. Japanese Industrial Standards (JIS)

viil. Tubular Exchanger Manufacturer's Association (TEMA)
ix. American Welding Society (AWS)

X. National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA)
xi. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

xil. International Electro-Technical Commission (IEC)
xiil. Expansion Joint Manufacturers Associatior, (EJMA)
Xiv. Heat Exchange Institute (HEI)

xv. American Water Works Association (AWWA)

xvi. Deutsches Instfitut fur Normung (DIN)

Other international standards, estaklished to be equivalent or superior to the
above standards shall also be acceptable. However, in the event of any
conflict between the requirements of the interational codes and standards
and the requirements of the Indian standards/regulations, the latter shall
prevail.

5.5 Consents .

5.5.1 The Seller shall be responsible for obtaining all Consents required for
developing, financing, constructing, operating and maintenance of the Project
and maintaining/ renewing all such Consents in order to carry out its
obligations under this Agreement in generai and this Article 5 and Schedule |
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in particular and shall supply to the Procurer promptly with copies of each
application that it submits, and copy/ies of each consent/approvalllicense
which it obtaine.

Construction Documients

The Seller shall retain at the Site and make available for inspection to the
Procurer at all reasonable times copies of the results of all tests specified in
Schedule 3 thereof.

Co-ordination of Construction Activities

Before the tenth (10th) day of each alternate Month, during the Construction

Period:

(a) the Seller shall prepare and submit to the Procurer a bi-monthly progress’
report, in the Agreed Form, which reviews the progress of the design,
engineering, procurement, construction, completion, testing = and
commissioning of the Power Station; and .

(b) The Seller shall prepare, in consultation with STU, and submit to the
Procurer, a bi-monthly progress report in the Agreed Form which reviews
the 5rogress of the design, engineering, procurement, construction and
installation of the Interconnection and Transmission Facilities upto the
Interconnection Point. The same shail be submitted by the Seller to the
Procurer.

£.7.2 The Seller and the Procurer individually shall designate from time to time, by

giving a written notice to the other party up to five (5) of its employees who
shall be responsible for coordinating all construction activities relating to the
Project and who shall have acczss at all reasonable times to the other party’s
land for the purpose of appraising the progress of the work being carried on,
subject to such designated persons or the party appointing them giving
reasonable notice to the other party of such visit and subject to their
complying with all reasonable safety procedures.
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6.1
6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

ARTICLE 6

SYNCHRONISATION, COMMISSIONING AND COMMERCIAL

OPERATION

Synchronisation

The Seller shall give the Procurer and SLDC at Ieast sixly (60) days advance
preliminary written notice and at least thirty (30) days advance final written
notice, of the date on which it intends to synchronise a Unit to the Grid
System.

Subject to Article 6.1.1, a Unit may be synchronised by the Seller to the Grid
System when it meets all connection conditions prescribad in any Grid Code
then in effect and otherwise meets all other Indian legal requirements for
synchronisation to the Grid System.

Commissioning 2

The Seller shall be responsible for ensuring that each Unit is commissioned
in accordance with Article6.3 at its own cost, risk and expense.

The Seller shall give the Procurer and the and Independent Engineer not
less than ten (10) days prior written notice of Commissioning Test of each
Unit.

The Seller, the Procurer and the Independent Engineer (individually) shal
each designate qualified and authorised representative to witness and
monitor Commissioning Test of each Unit.

Testing and measuring procedures applied during each Commissioning Test
shall be in accordance with the codes, practices and procedures mentioned
in Schedule 3 of this Agreement. '

Within five (5) days of a Commissioning Test, the Seller shall provide the -
Procurer and the Independent Engineer with copies of the detailed
Commissioning Test results. Within five (5) days of receipt of the
Commissioning Test results, the Indevendent Engineer shall provide to the
Procurer and the Seller in writing, his findings from the evaluation of
Commissioning Test results, either in the form of Final Test Certificate
certifying the matters specified in Article or the reasons for non-issuance of
Final Test Ceriificate.

A Unit shall be commissioned on the day after the date when the Procurer
receives a Final Test Certificate of the independent Engineer staling that:

N
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6.2.9
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The Commissioning. Tests have been carried out in accordance with Article
6.3 and are acceptable to him;

If a Unit fails a Commissioning Test, the Seller may retake the relevant test,
within a reasonabie period after the end of the previous test, with three (3)
day's prior writter: notice to the Procurer and the Independent Engineer.
Provided however, the Procurer shall have & right to require deferment of any
such re-tests for a period not exceeding fifteen (15) days, without i incurring
any liability for such deferment.

The Seller may retake the Performance Test by giving at least fifteen (15)
flays advance notice in writing tc the Procurer, up to eight (8) times, during a
period of one hundred and eighty (180) days (YInitial Performance Retest
Period”) from a Unit's COD in order to demonstrate an increased Tested
Capacity over and above as provided in Article 6.2.6(b). Provided however,
the Procurer shall have a right to require deferment of any such re-tests for a
period not exceeding fifteen (15) days.

If a Unit's or Power Station's Tested Capacity at the end of the Initial
Perforrnance Relest Period is found te be more than it's Rated Capacity, the
Rated Capacity shall be deemed fo be the Unit's or Power Station's Tested
Capacity for all purposes.

Provided that the Tested Capacily in excess of the Rated Capacity shali be
ignored for all urnoses of this Agreemeni but the Procurer shall have the
right over such sxcess. No capacity charges shali ba payable for such excess
capacity.

Provided further that, in ail the above events, the Seller shall be liabie to
obtain / maintain all the necessary consents (including Initial Consents),
permits and approvals including ihose required under the environmental laws
for generation of such excess Tested Capacity.

Commercial Operation

A unit shall be considered as commissioned on the date when the
construction and commissioning of all plants and equipments required for
operation of {he unit at rated capacity are complete and the unit achieves full
rated load on the designated fuel. Upon successful trial run test, Seller may

declare Entry into the Commercial Service of the relevant Unit. The Seller .

shall, within 180 (One hundred cighty) days’ from the Date of Commercizl
Operation, execute the Performance Guarantee Test as provided under

r\
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Schedule 2 If such, date of Entry into Commercial Service is likely to fall
ahead of the date specified in Article 1, the Seller shall have to obtain a
written prior consent of the Procurer in that regard.
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ARTICLE 7

COPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

Operating Procedures

The Operating Procedures shall be consistent with the following, it being

clearly understood that in the event of inconsistency between two or more of

the following, the order of priority as between them shall be the order in which

they are placed, with ‘applicable law’ being the first:

(a) Applicablzs law; )

{b}the Regulations , Grid Code; Terms and conditions of Tariff and ABT- as
& when appliceble;

(c) the terms ahd conditions of this Agreement;

{d) the Funciional Specifications;

(e) the Technical Specifications; and

(f) Prudent Utility Practicss. '

Operation and Maintenance of the Power Staticn

1 The Seller shall be responsible at its own expense for ensuring that the

Power Station is operated anc maintained in accordance with all legal
requirements, including the terms of all Consents and Prudent Utility
Practices so as fo meet its obligations under this Agreement, including
without limitation its obiigations under Article 4.1, and so as not to have an
adverse effect on the Grid System. :

The Seller shali be responsible at its own expense fer obtaining and keéping
in feree all Consents required for the operation of a Unit, the Power Station
and the Project in accordance with this Agreement throughcut its Operating
Period.

The Seller shall ensure that sufticlently competent and qualified personnel
are always on hand al the Power Station to enable a Unit to be operated
twenty four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week throughout the year.

Inspections
The Procurer shal: have the rignt to designate, from time to time in a written
notice to the Seiler, up te five (5) of their representatives who shall be
responsible for inspecting ine Fower Staiion for the purpose of verifying the
Seller’s compliance with this Aticle 7 and who shall have access to the
Power Station: ; : '
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7.4
7.4.1

7.5
7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

754

{a) on no rore than two (2) occasions in a Coniract ‘Year, upon giving not
less than twenty four (24) hours notice of the inspeciion to the Seller;

(b) on occasions when the Seller has reported partial or full outage, to verify
the other conditions reported by the Saller which in tha reasonable opinion
of the Procurer may affect the output of a Unit and / or the Power Station
in the next twenty four (24) hours, by giving one (1} hour notice; and at
any other time for good cause, upon giving such notice as maybe
reasonabie in the circumstances; subject, in all cases, to their complying
with all reasonable safety precautions and standards.

In the exercise of any of its right under Article 7.3.1, the Procurer shall ensure

that their representatives do not knowingly interfere with the proper cperation

or maintenance of the Power Station.

Scheduling Procedures ’
The Parties shail comply with the Scheduling Procedures in accordance with
the Grid Code and / or Applicable ABT order. :

Scheduled Quiages

Not later than sixty (60) days before the Entry into Commercial Service of

each Unit and thereafter not later than the 31* January in each year {or by

such other date as may be mutually agreed), Seller shall submit to Procurer

its Maintenance Programme and the Scheduled Outages desired therefore

for the relevant Unit(s) and for the relevant period(s).

Within two (2) months after receiving Seller's proposals, Procurer shali notify

in writing whether the proposed Scheduled Qutages are acceptable and, if

not, and after discussing the matter with Seller, shail indicate the periods that

would be acceptable, which shall be:

(i) of the same duration as the periods requested by Seller;

(i) within the time limits required by any legal requirement reiating to
routine maintenance; and

(i)  within the time limits required or recommended by the manufacturer or
supplier of the plant which is to undergo maintenance.

Seller may only object to a Scheduled Outage proposed by Procurer on the

grounds that it would be inconsistent with the requirements of above

mentioned paragraph 7.5.2 of this Articla.

The Scheduled Outages accepted by Procurer or agreed to by Seller

pursuant to paragraph 7.5.3 of this Article shall be confirmed to the extent

that they relate to the next Year and shall be provisionally confirmed to the

extent that they relate to subsequent Years. Provisionally. confirmed

~
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7.6  Maintenance Cutage

a) Whenever Seller needs a Maintenance outage, it shall advise Procurer
in accordance with the Operating Procedures of the nature of the work
to be carried ouf, the estimated time required to complete it and the
latest time by which, in Seller's opinion, the work should begin
consistent with Prudent Utility Practices (which shall not be earlier
than 48 (forty eignt) hours after the lime when Seller advised Procurer
of the need fer the Maintenance Outage).

b) After discussing the matier with Seller, Procurer shall advise as to
when the requesied Maintenance Outage can begin (which shall, as
far as possible no: be later than the latest time indicated by Seller).
Seller shall use iis reasonable endeavors consistent with Prudent
Utility Practices to take the Unit out of service at the schaduled time.

c) Procurer may require Saller to schedule the Maintenance Outage so
as to remedy any requirement of the Unit's ability ic meet its Operating
Characteristics.

7.7  Forced Outage :

Any period, other than the Cutage caused by reasons attributable to Procurer

and the Scheduled/Maintenance Cutage in which the Power Station is unable

to meet the Scheduisd 'Generations,will be considered as the Forced Outage.
7.8 Notused

7.9 Maintenance of Records :

7.8.1 Each Party shall keep complete and accurate records and all data required
Dy each of them ior the purposes of proper adminisiration of this Agreement
including, without limitatior,, an accurate and up to dat= cperating log at the

* Power Station with records of:
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7.5.6

Scheduled Outages may be changed by either Party for good cause.

In an Efnergency, Procurer may require Seller to use its best efforts to
reschedule a confirmed Scheduled Outage (including one which has already
begun) to a more convenient time.

Seiler shall not declare any Unit Available for Commercial Operation when it.

was scheduled to be undergoing a Scheduled Outage except to the extent
that the Availabiliiy of the Interconnection and Transmission Facilities is
sufficient to allow Procurer to utllise the full amount of that Unif's Declared
Capacity.




7.9.2

7.9.2

7.10

meter records and other records nesded ‘¢ reflect real and reactive
energy generated for each Seftlement Period and Electrical Output of
the Power Station on a continuous real fime basis;

(b) records of Available Canacity and Daclared Capacity and scheduled
generation;

(c) the resuits of any tests;

(d) changes in operating status, Scheduled Outages, Maintenance
Outages and Forced Outages (and any other restrictions or limitations
affecting Available Capacity);

{e) any unusual conditions found during inspections; and

() records or primary and secondary fuel receipts, consumption and
stocks.’

All records maintained pursuant to this Article 7.9.1 shall be maintained for

minimum of sixty (60) months after the creation of such records or data:

Provided that, the Parties shall not dispose of or destroy any such records

after such sixty (60) month period without thirty (30) days' prior written nofice

to- the other parties or at any time during the continuation of any dispute in
respect of any matter to which such records relate.

Every Party shall have the right, upon reasonable prior notice, to examine the

records and data of the other Parties relating to this Agreement or the

operation and maintenance of the Power Station at any time during normal
office hours. -

Modifications

7.10.1 Seller shall be entitled to carry out any medification, at no cost to Procurer, to

the Power Station if and only if :

(@)  such modification does not contravene Prudent Utility Practices;

()  such modification will not result in the Power Station being unable to
operate within the Functional Specifications as set out in Schedule 2;

(c) such modification will not have an adverse effect upon the contracted
levels of Availabiiity; and

7.10.2 Notwithstanding the above, the Capita! Cost shall be increased to include .

additional capitalization, as may be admitted by the Appropriate Commission,
to account for the cost of modifications, if any, in accordance with Article 13
and shall include:

{a) Deferred liabilities;

(b) Works deferred for execution;

(¢) Procurement of initial capital spares in the original scope of work, subject
to ceiling specified by GERC;
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(d) Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compiiance of the order or
decree of a court; and
(e) On account of Change in Law.

[collectively “(Additional Capitalisation)]

7.10.3 Subject fo the provisions of Article 7.10.4 hereunder, the Capital Cost of the
following nature actually incurred after the Commercial Operations Date, as
may be admitted by the Appropriate Commission shall also be considered as
Additional Capitalization:

(i) Deferred liabilities reiating w works/services within the original scope of
WOTl;

(ii) Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of the order or
decree of a court;

{ii)On account of change in iaw;

(iv)Any additional works/services which have become necsssary for efficient
and successful opscation of the Unit or the Power Station, but not
included i the original Capital Cost; ana

(v) Deferred works relating to ash pond or ash handling system in the original
scope of wWork.

7.10.4 Any expenditure on minor items/assets like normal tools and tackles,
personel comguters, furniture, air-conditioners, voitane stabilizers,
reirigerators, fans, coolers, TV, washing machines, heat-conveciors, carpets,
mattresses =fc. biought after the Commercial Operations Date, shall not be
considered for Additional Capitallzation.

7.10.5 Any expenditure admitted on account of committed liabiiities within the
original scope of work and the expenditure deferred on techno-economic
grounds but falling within the original scope of work shall be serviced in the
debt-equity ratio approved by the Appropriate Commission.

Any expenditure on replacement of old assets shall be considered after
wriling off the gross vaiue of the original assets from the Capital Cost, except
such items as are listed in Article 7.10.4.

Any expenditure adimitied by the Appropriaie Commission for determination

of tariff on account of new warks not in the original scope of work shall be
serviced in the debt-equity ratio approved by the Appropriate Commission.
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Any expenditure admitted by the Appropriate Commission for determination
of tariff on renovation and modernization and life extension beyend 25 years
shall be -serviced on debt-equitv ratio approved by the Appropriate
Commission, after vriting off the arigir.={ amount from the Capital Cost if any
replacement of existing assets are invoived.

OO
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ARTICLE &

CAPACITY, AVAILABILITY AND DESPATCH

Repeat Performance Tesis

The Procurer may from time to time during the Operating Period, but only if
the Available Capacity has not been Ninsty Five per cent (95%) of the
Installed Capacity of fhe commissioned units (excluding the unit(s) under
planned outage for capital maintenance in consultation with the Regional
Power Committee/State Power Commiitee, if any) for one continuous period
of atleast three (3) hours during any three continucus months, require the
Seller to demonstrate a Unit's or Units' Tested Capacity by carrying out a
further Performance Test (a “Repeat Performance Test”) in accordance with
this Article 8.1. A Repeat Performance Test snhall be carried out-in
accordance with Clause 3.4 of Schedule 3, save that the fest shall last
iwenty-four (24) hours. Provided that if the Tested Capacity after such test is
less than Ninsty Five percent {(€5%) of the Rated Capacity (as existing on the
Effective Date) of the Commissioned Units, the Seller shall also have a right
to conduct not more than two Repeat Pericrmance Test within a period of six
months, by giving a notice of not less than fifteen (15) days to the Procurer
for each such test. Provided that the Procurer shall have a right to require
deferment of each such re-tests for a period not exceeding fifteen (15) days,
without incurring any liability for €uch deferment.

.2 The Procurer sivzll give the Selier not less than seven (7) days' advance

written notice of the fime when a Repeat Parformance Test of a Unit or Units
is 1o begin. A Repeat Performance Test may not be scheduled for any period
whnen a Unit to be tested is due fc undergo a Scheduled Outage.

The Procurer and Seller may ointly appoint the Independent Engineer to
monitor the Repeat Performance Test and to certify the results in accordance
with Article 8.2 or get the same certified by ihe Independent Eﬁglneer.

if the Seller wishes to take any Unit, out of service for repair before a Repeat
Performance Test, it shall inform the Procurer in writing before its scheduled
start of the repairs and the estimated time required to complete the repairs.
The Parties shall then schedule a Maintenance Outage in accordance with
the Grid Code to enabie the Seller to.carry out those repairs and in such a
casg, the Procuver shall defer the Repeat Performance Test until such Unit is
returned to service foilcwing that Maintenance Outage.




8.1.5 The Procurer may, -for reasonable cause. defer #ny Repeat Performance
Test for up te fifteen (15) days from the date originally notified to the Seller in
accordance with Arficle 8.1.2 if the Procurer notifies the Seller in writing at
least three (3) days bafore the epeat Farformance Test starts of the reason
for the deferral and when the test Is to be rescheduled.

8.1.6

8.1.7

8.1.8

8.1.9

8.2
8.2.1

8.2.2

,Prbvided , such deferment at the request of the Procurer shall be permitted

only once in respect of each of the Repeat Performance Tests.

The Seller, the Procurer and the Independent Engineer individuaily, shall
each have the right to designate qualified and authorised representatives (but
not more than three each) to monitor the Repeat Performance Test.

Testing and measurement procedures applied during the Repeat
Performance Test shall be in accordance with the relevant Test Codes,
practices of procedures as generally/norrnaily applied for the Performance
Testis. '

Within five (5) days of a Repeat Performance Test, the Seller shall provide
the Procurer and the Independent Engineer with copies of the detailed test
results.

Within one (1) Month of the date by which all the Units have been
commissioned, the Seller shall conduct a Performance Test of all the Units
(hereinafter referred to as "Total Capacity Performance Test”) whereafter the
provisions of Article 8.2 shall apply. A Total Capacity Performance Test shall
be carried out in accordance with Clause 3.1 of Schedule 3, save that the test

‘shall last twenty-four (24) hours.

Derating

A Repeat-Performance Test shall be concluded when the Procurer receives

the Final Test Certificate of the Independent Engineer stating that the Repeat

Performance Test has been carried out satisfactorily in accordance with

Schedule 3.1 and certified the Unit's or Units’ then current Tested Capacity

as demonstrated by the results of the Repeat Performance Test.

() If a Unit's or Units' then current Tested Capacity as established by the
Repeat Performance Test and the Final Test Certificate issued by the
Independent Engineer, is less than 95% of Rated Capacity of the Unit or
Units as existing on the Effective Date, the Unit shall be de-rated with the
following consequences in each case with .effect from the date of
completion of such most recent test:

{a) the Unit's or Units' Contracted Capacity shall be reduced in
proporfion of the Tested Capacity to the Rated C/%Ecity and
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8.3
8.3.1

Capacity Gharges shall be pald with respect fo such reduced
Contracted Capacity.

(b) the Seller shall not be permitted to declare the Available Capaclty of
the Unit at a level greater than its Contracted Capacity;

(c) the Availability Factor of the Derated Unit or Units shall be
calculated with reference to the reduced Contracted Capacity, in
each case with effect from date on which the Procurer first notified
the Seller of their intention to carry out a Repeat Performance Test
of the Unit or Units; and

{d) the Capital Cost and each element of the Capital Structure
Schedule shall be reduced in proportion {0 the reduction in the
Contracted Capacity of the Power Station as a result of that derating
(taking into account the Contractec Capacity of any Unit which has
yet o be Commissioned);

{iil  The consequences mentioned in sub-Article 8.2.2(i) above shall apply
from the compietion date of each Repeat Performance Test. if at the
end of second Repeat Performance Test conducted by the Seller or
the last date of the end of the six month period referred to in Article
8.1.1, whichever is earlier, the Tested Capacity is less than the Rated
Capacity, the conseguences menticned in Article 8.2.2 shall apply for
a period of atleast one year after which the Seller shall have a right to
undertake a Repeat Performance Test. Provided that, if the Seller
carries out a maintenance Programme for the plant, within a period of
one year, they shall be allowed to carry out another peiformance test.
Provided that such consequences shall apply with respect to the
Tested Capacity existing at the end of second Repeat Performance
Test conducied by the Seiler or the iast date of the end of the six
month period referred to in Article 8.1.1, whichever is eariier.

If the Independent Engineer certifies that it is unable to give a Final Test

Certificate because events or circumstarices beyond the Seller's reasonable

control have prevented the Repeat Perfermance Test from belng carried out

in accordance with Clause 3.4 of Schedule 2, the Procurer shall reschedule a

Repeat Performance Test as socon as reasonably practicable.

If & Unit's or Units’ Tested Capacity is found to be more than i's Rated

Capacity, the provisions of Articlz 6.2.9 shall apply mutatis mutandis.

Availability

The Seller shall comply vith the provisions of the applicable Law regarding

Availability including, in particular, to the provisions of the ABT and Grid Code

relating to intimation-of Availability and the matters incidentai thereto.




”

8.4 Scheduled Generation

8.4.1 The Seller shall comply with 32 srovisicns of the applicable Law regarding
Scheduled Generations, in particular, to the provisions of the ABT and Grid Code
relating to Dispatch and the matters incidental thereto.
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9.1
8.1.1

9.1.2

2.3
3.3.1

ARTICLE ©

METERING AND ENERGY ACCOUNTING

Metering system of the Project :

The metering system for the Project (the “Metering System®) shall be installed

by the Seller in consultation with the STU/Procurer as per the Central

Electricity Authority (Instaliation and Operation of Meters) Regulations, 2006

Appropriate Electricity Grid Code and the Applicable ABT orders as

amended and revised from time to time and shall comprise of:

(i) a meter on each Unit (the “Generator Meters”);

(i) a meter at each of the Interconnection Point (the “Interconnection Meter);

(iliya meter at each of the station transformer (the “import Meter"); and

(iv)check meters for the Generator Meters, the Interconnaction Meter and the
import Meter (the “Check Metars”).

The Metering System shalli measure:
(a) in respect of the Generator [Yeters and the corresponding Check Meters,
the Generator Capacity of each Unit at its generator terminal;
{b)in respect of the Interconnection Meters and the carresponding Check
Meter, the Eleclrical Output delivered at the Interconnection Points: and
{c)in respect of the Import Meter and the corresponding Check Meter,
energy imported by the Company mto the Power Station at the station
transformers.
Meters

<1 For installation of Meters, Meter testing, Meter calibration, Meter reading,

Energy accounting and Testing accuracy of meters and all matters incidental
thereto, the Seller and the Precurer shall follow and be bound by the Central
Electricity Authority (Instaliation and Operation of Meters) Regulations, 2008,

the Grid Code and intrastate ABT order as amended and iavised from time.

to time.

SLDC Charges

All applicable scheduling and SLOC charges-

(a) upto the Interconnection Point shall be borne by the Seller and
(b) beyond the Interconnestion Point shall be bome by the Procurer.
Meter Reading

-~
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Power Cbmmittee (RPC) and State Power Committee (SPC) for preparation
of Energy Account.

9.5 Energy Accounting

State Energy Account
Nodal Agency will issue State Energy Account (SEA) based on reading from
ABT compliant meters. The SEA is subject to subsequent revision /
correction. The Seller shall bill the Procurer based on the Scheduled Energy
-and Capacity Availability as per the SEA. The SEA zs finalized shall be
binding on beth the Parties.

9.6 © POWER LINE CARRIER COMMUNICATION

9.6.1 Seller, at its sole cost and expense, shall provide:

(a) Power Line Carrier channels to 220 KV substations for the purposes of
telemetering, protection and communlcatlons including the Repeater
Terminals, as may be necessary.

{b) direct telephone line with STD facility;

(c) transducers and remote terminal unit for transmission of analogue
data and digital output to the Load Despatch Centre; and

(d) equipment to allow the sending and receiving of tele copies.

9.6.2 Procurer may, in addition, require Seller, at Seller's expense, to instal}l such
additional remote monitering equipment as Procurer may reasonably require
for the purpose of measuring and monitoring the performance of the Project.

9.7  Switchyard:

The 220 KV switchyard shall be provided for beth units as combined.
Separate meters shall be provided for the both Units existing and expansion
projects as per Clause no. 2.1.1 above.
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ARTICLE 10

INSURANCES

Seller's Obligations

Seller, subject to other provisions in this Article, hall be obliged to procure

and maintain or cause to be procured and maintained Insurances in respect

of the Power Station during the Term of the PPA as may be necessary on

account of:

¢ requirements under the staiute

e requirements under the Good Industry Practice

o requirements under the £RC contracts of packages

s requirements under the Financing Agreements and

» “requirements to provide security to the staff and the'equipments

FAILURE TC INSURE : L

Seller shall not be in breach of iis obligations to procure any insurance under

Clause 10.1 !o tne exient, and only for the period, that the particular

insurance is not avaiiable to il in the internaticnal and Indian insurance

markets for reasons other than any negligence or defauit by, or condition

(ﬁnahcia( or otherwise) of Seiler. However, they will not be absolved of

associated risk(s), if any.

NO CHANGE TG INSURANCE

_ Seller shall effect the changes to Insurances covering different risks,

deductibles, endorsements, co-insurers or other terms to those referred to in

this Article. However the changes should not dilute the coverage specified in

Clause 10.1 above.

NON PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS _

Seller shall ensure that each policy of Insurance contains an endorsement

providing that it may not be cancelled (except for non-payment of premiums)

or reduced without aflgast 30 (thirty) days' prior written netice being given by

the insurer to Procurer, provided that each such endorsement shall provide:

(i) that the insurer may not cancel ihe coverage for non-payment of
premiums without first giving Procurer 30 (thirty) days’ written notice that
Seller has failed to make timely payment of the premium (including
details of the amount owing); and :

(if) that Procurer shall, after having received the notice referred to in the
paragraph (i) above, have the option to pay such premium directiy to the
relevant insurer and which amount shall then be recovered ﬂﬁ\n}me next
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immediate Monthly Tariff Payment due fo Seller.

10.5 EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE COVER

10.5.1 Seller shall furnish to Procyrer conies of certificates and policies of the
Insurances as soon as they are effected and renewed by or on behalf of
Seller and from time to time shall furnish evidence to Procurer that all
relevant premiums have been paid as soon as they have been so paid, and
that the relevant policy or policies remain in existence.

10.5.2 Failure by Seller to obtain the insurance coverage or certificates of insurance
required pursuant to this Article 10 shall not relieve or limit Seller’s obligations
under any provision of this PPA.

10.6 APPLICATION OF INSURANCE PROCEEDS

The proceeds of any insurance claim made due fo loss or damage fo the
Project or any part of the Project shall be first appiied fo reinstatement,
replacement or renewal of such loss or damage. If a Natural Force Majeure
Event renders the Project no longer economically and technically viable and
the insurers under the Insurances make pavment on a “total loss” or
equivalent basis, the Procurer(s) shall. have no claim on such proceeds of
such Insurance. ‘

ORI
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11.1

11.2

1.3

- ARTICLE 11

BILLING AND PAYMENT

Monthly Tariff Payments shall be payable in Rupees. No payment,

. whatsoever, shall be made for any inadvertent flow (as defined in ABT norms)

of Energy into Grid System.

Monthly Tariff Payments shall be calculated for pericds of a full calendar
month except:

. when the actual Commercial Operation Date falls after the fifteenth day of a

calendar month, the first month for which a Monthly Tariff Payment shall be
calculated shall end on the last day of the next calendar month:
when one or more Tariff Changes referred to in Clause 5.1.4 of Schedule 5
occur during the course of a month, the Monthly Tariff Payments for that
month shall be calculated separately for
a. the period from the beginning of the month uniil the day before the first
Tariff Change occurred,
b. each period (if any) from the date of Tariff Change occurred untii the.
day before the next Tariff Change in that month occurred, and
¢. the period from the date on which the last Tariff Change in that month
occurred until the end of the month (as though each such period were
a separate month) and the Monthly Tariff Payment for the month shall
be the sum of those separate calculations; and

. When the Term of this PPA expires or is Terminated other than on the last

day of a month, the last Monthly Tariff Payment shall be calculated for the
period from the first day of that month until the day on which this PPA expires
or is Terminated.

THE MONTHLY TARIFF INVOICE:

Upon commercial operation of each Unit and after Completion of one full
calendar month therefrom, Seller shall raise a Monthly Tariff Invoice for the
purpose of recovering its dues in terms of this PPA. The date of raising
Monthly Tariff Invoice shall not be earfier than 3" working day of the next
month. The Monthly Tariif Invoice shall be submiited in triplicate to the
General Manager (Commerce) or any other Officer of Procurer designated.
Seller shall aisc fumish the relevant supporting documents as may be
required. Non submission of the Monthly Tariff Inveice in the style and
manner and non submission of the relevant supporting documents will be
reckoned as incomplste submission for the purpose of reckoning the Due
Date of the payment of the Monthly Tariff Invoice by Procurer. &’
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114 THE DUE DATE: -
The Due Date shall ba the date on which the paymants of the Morithly Tariff
Invoice or the Supplementary Monthiy Tariff Invoice of Selier shall become
due. The Due Date in respect of the Monthly Tarii Invoice submitted
pursuant to the provisions under 11.3 above shall be reckoned from the date
of receipt of Monthly Tariff Invoice by ihe Procurer, raised in accordance with
Para 11.3. If, however, such Menthly Tariff Invoice is submitted at any later
date, the Due -Date shall be reckoned from such. later date only. Procurer
shall arrange fo pay the eligible amounts of such Monthly Tariff Invoice(s)
within a time limit of 60 (sixty) days following thereafter.

11.5 REBATE:
Seller shall, in respect of the payments made within the Due Date, allow
rebates as under: ‘
2.0% for payments to be made within 7 (seven) working days from the date of
receipt of Invoice
1.0% for payments to be made from the 8™ to 30" dav from ¢he date of
receipt of Invoice,
However, the applicable rate of rebate shall be modified as per GERC tariff
norms app!iéable from time to time. The rebates shall be available for
payments either made directly or through the L/C.

11.6 THE DELAYED PAYMENT CHARGES:
For non payment of the dues of Seller within the stipulated period, either
partly or fully, unless any Monthly Tariff Invoice or any such amount thereof
(as the case may be) is disputed, Procurer shall pay the Delayed Payment
‘Charges to Seller. The Delayed Payment Charges shall be admissible from
the 61% (sixty iirst) day from the date of receipt of the Monthly Tariff Invoice.
The Delayed Payment Charges wili be chargeable at the rate 1.25% per
month. However, the applicable rate of Delayed Payment Charges shall be
modified as per GERC tariff norms applicable from time to fime.

11.7 DISPUTED MONTHLY TARIFF INVOICE(S):
If, within 2 period of 6 (six) months from the date of receipt of the Menthly
Tariff Invoice, the receiving Party does not question or Dispute any of the
claims made, such Monthly Tariff invoice shall be deemed to be correct,
complete and conclusive as between the Parties except for the inaccuracy of
the meter reading noticed at any point of time and the arithmetical mistakes.
This provision shall, however, not be applicable where any willful default or
negligence was committed by the Party raising the Monthly Tariff Invoice.

The Party raising the Dispute shall do so by serving a notice, 1,;(9 Moenthly
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11.8

1.9

Tariff Invoice Disjou‘ce Notice, to the other Party, within a period of & (six)
months from the date of receipt of the Monthly Tariff Invoice, in case of the
Procurer and from the date of receipt of details on Monthly payment admitted
in case of the Seller. The receiving Party shall give necessary clarifications,
along with relevant supporting documents, if any, to the issuing Party within a
period of another 7 (Seven) working days thereafter or resubmit the Monthly
Tariff Invoice, duly corrected so as to remove the cause of Dispute. The
disputing Party shall then, if so satisfied, arrange to release the payment of
the Monthly Tariif Invoice(s) as provided under this Schedule. The Due Date
of payment of such Monthly Tariff Invoice(s) shall be reckoned -upon
completion of the formalities as this. The provisions relating to the Rebate
and the Delayed Payment Charges, as the case may be, shall then apply as
aforesaid. In case(s) where the entire amount of the Monthly Tariff invoice(s)
is not Disputed, then in such case(s), the undisputed amount(s) shall be paid
forthwith. Whereas the dispute could be raised for any sum, the payment to
be held up shail, however, not exceed 30% (thirty percent) of the average
amount of the previous three Monthly Tariff Invoice(s) at any time on a
cumulative basis.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION:

The Parties shall endeavour te resolve the Dispute(s) related to the Monthly
Tariif Invoice(s) within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date. of receipt of -
necessary ciarification(s) as provided under 11.5 hereinabove. If this is not
done, the Dispuie shall be resolved in accordance with the Dispute
Resolution Mechanism as provided under Article-17 of this PPA.

All the amounis considered payable at e end of the resolution of the
Dispute, shal! be paid by the owing Party to the other Paity within a period of
10 {fen) Working days of ithe resolution of the Dispute. Such paymenis shall
attract payment of Delayed Payment Charges as specified under paragraph
11.6.

SUPPLEMENTARY MONTHLY TARIFF iNVOICE:

The payments not idenfified to be incorporated under the Mohthly Tariff
invoice, shall be recovered by raising the Supplementary Monthly Tariff
Invoice(g), upon such paymenis becoming due. The provisions mentioned
from 11.4 to 11.8 shall hold good for such Supplementary Monthiy Tariff
Invoice(s) aiso in respect of the relevant date(s) of the Supplementary
Monthly Tariff Invoice!s).




11.10 THE MODE(S) OF PAYMENT:
11.10.1 Direct Payment

The payments of any Monthlz. 721 Invsice or the Supplementary Monthly
Tariff Invoice of Seller shall be: made by Procurer on the stipulated Due
Date(s) through one or more than one Account Payees’ Cheque(s) drawn in
favour of the drawee. The charges for upcountry clearings, if any, shall be
borne by the drawee.

11.10.2 Pavment Sectirity Package

The Procurer shall provide following securities as fall back arrangement o
the mode of payment stated under para 11.10.1.

11.10.2.1 Letter of Credit :

11.11

Establishment of the L/C.

As provided under this Article 11, Procurer shall make direct payments of all
the Monthly Tariff Invoices and Supplementary Monthly Tariff Involces on the
relevant Due Date(s). Procurer shall establish Letter of Credit as detailed
hereln below 15 (fifteen) days ahead of the Entry into Commercial Service of
the First Unit In the event of non-payment, Selier shali be eligible to draw
upon the Letter of Credit.

Value of the L/C.

The value of the L/C, initially, shall be equivalent‘to the estimated Monthly
Tariff Payment. Thereafter the value shall be updated corresponding to one
month’s average billing on Quarterly basis.

Description of the L/C.

The L/C(s) shall be irrevocable, unconditional, revolving and stand-by in
nature. The L/C(s) shall be valid for 2 period of 12 (twelve) months from the
date of opening. Procurer shall be obliged to renew/replace any L/C., upon its
expiration or operation, as the case may be prior to expiry of the same.
Acceptability to Seller

The L/C shall be opened on a Scheduled Bank acceptable fo Seller. Any
replacement/renewals shall also be subject to the acceptability of Seller.
Costs and Fees )

All costs relating to opening and maintenance of the Letter of Credit shall be
bome by the Procurers; however, Letter of  Credit negotiation charges shall
be borne and paid by the Seller. - ’

Procurer Invoice

Procurer shall serve Procurer Invoice for the payments to be made by Seller
to Procurer on account of its import of power from Procurer for the purposes
this PPA or for any other purpose. The payment of Procurer lnvz'fgs,shal! be

N




reckoned due on the dates as specified in each of Procurer Invoice. Seller
shall make payments of Procurer's Invoices through account payee cheque
drawn in favour of Procurer or through adjustments.
11.12 Payment for Start up Power and Auxiliary Load
The Seller shall pay to Procurer or other entity directly for the power and
energy consumed for start-up of the Project and sourced from such entity.
11.13 Order of Priority J ;
Any payments to be received by Seller under this Agreement shall be applied
in or towards the settlement of amounts payable against the principal
amounts outstarding, the longest outstancing Monhly or Supplementary Bill,
being settled first.

The Clalm for interest on amounts outstanding or DPC shall be raised and
paid separately and shall not be adjusted against any monthly payments.
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12.2

12.3

ARTICLE 12

FORCGEMAIEITRE

Definitions

In this Article 12, the following terms shall have the foliowing meanings:
Affected Party

An affected Party means the Procurer or the Seller whose performance has
been affected by an event of Force Majeure.

An event of Force Majeure affecting the STU or any other agent of Procurer,
which has affected the Interconnection and Transmission Facilities beyond
the Interconnection Point, shall be deemed to be an event of Force Majeure
affecting Frocurer. '

Similarly, any event of Force Majeure affecting the EPC coniractor or any
other agency employed by the Seller for the execution of the project has been
affected to camyout the implementation work upto the Delivery Point, shall be
deemed to be an event of Force Majeure affecting the Selier.

Any event of Force Majeure affecting the performance of the Seller’s agents,

shall be deemed to be an event of Force Majeure affecting Seller only if the
Force Majeure event is affecting and resulting in:

{a) late delivery cf plant, machinery, equipment, materials, spare parts,
water or consumables for the Project; or
(b) a delay in the performance of any of the Seller’s contractors.
Similarly, any event of Force Majeure affecting the performance of the
Seller's contractor for the setting up or operating Interconnection Facilities
shall be deemed to be an event of Force Majeure affecting Seller only if the

Force Majeure event is resuiting in 2 delay in the Performance of Seller's
contractors.

Force Majeure

A Force Majeure means any event or circumstance or a combination of
events and circurnstances referred to in following Article 12.3.1 which (or any
consequences of which) adversely affects the performance by the Affected
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Party, of its obligations under this Agreement and to the extent that such -
events or circumstances are beyond the reasonable control of such Affected

Party and which the Affected Party could not have prevenied by Prudent

Utility Practices or by the exercise of reascnable skill and care.

12.3.1 Events of Force Majours

Force Majeure shall mean the following events and circumstances to the

extent that they, or their consequences, have an effect described in Article

12,3 .

(I} Act of God, epidemic, lightning, earthquake, cyclone, whiriwind, flood,
tempest, storm, drought, lack of water or other unusual or extreme
adverse weather or environmental conditions {excluding the monsoon),
action of the elements, meteorites, objects falling from aircraft, pressure
waves caused by aircraft or aerial devices fraveling at supersonic speed, @
fire or explusion to the extent originated from the source external to the
Power Station due fo reasons other than, those caused py negligence of
the Parties, chemical or radioactive contamination or ionising radiation:

(i) Act of war {(whether declared or undeciared), invasicn, armed conflict or
act of foreign enerhy, blockade, embargo (resulting in non-availability or
shortage of Fuel), revolution, riots, insurrectidn, civii commotion, act of
terrorism, cor Sabotage;

(i) Air Crash, the impact of non-natural-airborne objects with the ground or
with objects or structures on the ground inclucing, without restricting the -
gererality of the foregoing, aeroplanes, helicopters, gliders, satellites
and other simitar objects;

(iv) Strikes and Lock-Outs of general nature having a duration of not less
than 7 consscutive days and not arising out of disputes between Seller
or any Affillate or any of their employaes, conractors, subcontractors or
agents;

(v) The Expropriation or Compulsory Acquisition or seizure of the assets of
Seller ’by Govemnment of India, Government of Gujarat or any
Government authority thereof, provided that this Article 12.3.1 shall not
apply where such act (including expropriation or compuisory acquisition)
constitutes a remedy or sanction lawfully exercised as a result of a
breach by Seller of any indian law or Indian cirective but excluding any
Change in Law; T

(Vi) Any exercise of a sovereign or executive prerogative by any of
Government ¢f India, Government of Gujarat or any Government
authority thereof vested by law with such authority, p:'ovﬁ,that this

J
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12.4

Article 12.3.1 (vi) shall not apply where such act constitutes a remedy or
sanction lawfuily exercised as a result of a hreach by Seller of any
Indian Law or Indlian directive but excluding any Change in Law;

(vii) Any events or circumstances not épeclﬁcally provided hereinabove but
of 2 analogous nature and having same material and adverse effect on
the performance of the Affected Party.

In addition to the above, the foliowing shall be events of Force Majeure prior
to Entry into Commercial Service of the Unit or the Unit(s) as the case may
be:
a. loss of or damage to marine cargo in the course of marine transit and
intended for incorporation in the Power Station; and /or
b. any decision or order of a court or tribunal which has the effect of
restraining all or any-of the activities concerning the construction of the
Power Station, except to the extent that it constitute a remedy or
sanction lawfully exercised as a result of a breach by Seller of any
Indian law or Indian directive but excluding any Change in Law. in this
connection due regard shall be had to the final determination of the
Court or Tribunal and the question as to breach by Seller of any Indian
law or Indian directive shall be determined on such basis; and/or
c. any decision or order of a court or tribunal which has the effect of
restraining all or any of the activities concerning the construction of the
Transmission and Inter connection Facilities, except fo the extent that
it constitute a remedy or sanction lawfully exercised as a result of a
breach by Seller of any Indian law or Indian directive but excluding any
Change in Law. In this connection due regard shall be had to the final
determination of the Court or Tribunal and the question as tc breach
by Procurer of any Indian law or Indian directive shall be determined
on such basis.
(viii) Any events of failure of Power Transmission System

Force Majeure Exciusions

Force Majeure shall not include the following conditions, except fo the extent

that they are consequences of an event of Force Majeure:

(a) Unavailability, late delivery, or changes in cost of the plant, machinery,
equipment, materials, spare parts, fuel or consumables for the Project;

(b) Delay in the performance of any contractor, sub-contractors or their
agents excluding the conditions as mentioned in Articie 12.2;

{c) Non-performance resulting from normal wear and tear typically
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experienced in pewer generation materials and eguipment;
(d) Strikes cr labour disturbance specifically at the facilities of the Affected
Party;
{e) Insufficiency of finances or funds or ie agreement becoming onerous to
peiferm; and
() Non-performance caused by, or connected with, the Affected Party's:
i. Negligent or Intentional acts, errors or omissions:
ii. Failure to comply with an Indian law or Indian Directive; or
il. Breach of or default under this Ag:'eem'ent or any Project
Agresments or Government Agreamernts.

12.5 Notification of Force Majeure Event
12.3.1 The Affecled Party snall give notice to the other Party of any event of Force

Majeure as scon as reasonably practicable, but not later than seven (7) days
after the date on which such Parly knew or should reasonably have known of
the commencement of the event of Foice Majeurs. If an event of Force

Majeure results in a breakdown of communications fendering it not

reasonable to give notice within the applicable time limit specified herein,
then the Party claiming Force Majeure shall give such notice as soon as
reasonably praciicable zfter reinstatement of comﬁ*.unicat’;ons, but not later
than one (1) day after such reinstatement. Such notice shall include full
particulars of the event of Force Majeure, its effects on the Party claiming
relief ana the remedial measures proposed, and the Affected Party shali give
tne other Party regular (and not iess than monthly) reports on the progress of
those remedial measures and such other information as the other Party may
reasonably request about the situation.

12.5.2 The Affected Parly shall give notice to the other Party of (i) the cessation of

12.6

12.7

the relevant event of Force Meajeure; and (i) the cessation of the effects of
such event of Force Majeure on the performance of its rights or obligations
under this Agreement, as soon as practicable after becoming aware of each
of these cessations.

Duty to perform and duty to mitigate :

Te the extent not prevented by a Force Majeure event pursuant to Article
12.3, the Affected Party shall continue fo perform itz obligations pursuant to
this Agreement. The Affected Party shall usz its reasonable efforts to mitigate
the effect of any event of Force Viajeure as soon as practicable.

Available Relief for a Force Maieure Event

12.7.1 Neither Party shall be responsibla or liable for, or deemed %o be ﬁbreach of




any term of this Agreement because of any failure or delay in complying with
its obligations under or pursuant to this Agreement diia solely to one or more
events of Force Majeure, and the nerjods allowed for the peiformance by the
Parties of such obligation(s) shail e exianded on 2 day-for-day basis from
the date of the event of Force Majeure provided that no relief shall be granted
to the Affected Party to the extent that such failure or delay would have
nevertheless been experienced by that Party had such Force Majeure event

not occurred,

12.7.2 Consequences After Commissioning

The consequences on account of occurrence of any of the FM Event are
mentioned in the following Table:

Transmission
System Failure

- Clause

12.3.1(Vviii)

Event Periodicity | Affected Consequences

from the date Party

of occurrence
Act of God --| Upto 270 Days | Either or | Performarnice excused,
Clause both Financial liability: Nil
12.3.1(0)
All other | Upto 7 Days
Clauses from
12.3.1(ji) to
12.3.1(viii)
Act of War —| More than 7 | Seller Seller excused of performance;
Clause Days and upto Procurer to pay to Seller:
12.3.1(i), Air| 270 Days 25% O&M plus
Crash -Clause 100% Interest on legitimate
12.3.1(3i)), & outstanding amount of Loan
Strikes and pius
Lock Outs - Depreciation to the extent of
Clause meeting the repayment
12.3.1(iv) & obligation of Seller
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12.9

! | Procurer | Procurer excused of
| ! | performance;
& | Procurer to pay to Seller:
' ' 50% Q&M pius
100% Interest on legitimate
outstanding amount of Loan
plus
Depreciation to the extent of
meeting the repayment
obligation of Seller;
Expropriation | More than ! Seller l Selier excusad of performance;
Clause | 7 Days and ! Procurer not to pay any amount:
12314(v)  &!upto 270 | to Seller.
Exercise of | Days ; Procurer | Procurer excused of
Authority by performance;
Sovereign l Procurer to pay 100% amount of
Execulive - i Capacity Charge to Seller;
Clause ; Procurer to owe liability on
12.3.1(vi) i account of Fuel Supply
i !Agreement (FEA} and Fuel
Transmission Agreement (FTA)
as approved by Procurer.
Any other | More than | Seller &or | Performance and Payment
Clause 7 Days and | Procurer | obligations as mentioned for
Analogous fo |upto 27C| respective Clause.
Clauses Days
12.3.1() to
12.3.1(vi) &
12.3.1(viii) i |

12.8 The Scheduled CoD of the Unit or Power Station, as the case may be and /
or the Interconnection and Transmission Facilities shall be extended during
the pendency cf an avent of Force Majeure on a day for a day basis to the
extent that {ne event of Force Majeure is the cause of delay affecting the
Party's’ obligations unaer this Agreement. ,
12.8.1 The Party, other than the Affected Party, shall not bear any liability for any
loss or expense sufiered by the Affected Party as a result of a Force Majeure
except as provided in Article 12.7.2.

Liablilties for other losses, damages etc.

Save and except as expressly provided in this Article 12, neither Party hereto
shall be liable in any manner whatsoever ‘o the other Party in respect of any
loss, damage, cost, expense, claims, demands and proceedings relating to or
arising out of occurrence or existence of any Force Majeure Event.




ARTICLE 13

CHANGE IN | AW
13.1 Definitions '
In this Article 13, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
43.1.1 "Change in Law" means the occurrence of any of the following after the date,
which is seven (7) days prior to the signing of this Agreement:

(a) the enactment, bringing into effect, adoption, promulgation, amendment,
modification or repeal, of any statute, decree, ordinance or other law,
regulation, notice, circular, code, rule or direction by any Governmental
Instrumentality or a change in its interpretation by a Competent Court of
law, tribunal, government or statutory authority or any of the above

£ regulations, taxes, duties charges, levies, etc., or

@ {b)the imposition by any Governmental Instrurnentaiity of ‘any material
condition in connection with the issuance, renewal, modification,
revocation or non-renewal (other than for cause) of any Consent after the
date of this Agreement.

that in either of the above cases results in any change with respect to any

tax or surcharge or cess levied or similar charges by the Competent

Government on the generation or sale of electricity;

but shall not inciude (i) any change in any withholding tax on income or
dividends distributed to the shareholders of the Seller, or (ii) change in
respect of Ul Charges or frequency intervais by an Appronriate Commission.

13.1.2"Competent Court" means:

‘ the Supreme Court of India or any High Court, or any tribunal or any similar
ﬁ judicial or quasi-judicial body that has jurisdiction in relation to issues relating
to the Project.
13.2 Tariff Adjustment Payment for Change in Law
13.2.11f a Change in Law results in the Seller's revenue or costs directly attributable
to the Project being decreased or increased by one percent (1%), on
cumulative basis, of the estimated revenue from the Electricity for the
Contract Year (calculated in that Contract Year and the energy corresponding
to Normative Availability of the Installed Capacity and for the purpose of
above calculations the calculated tariff will be determined assuming the fuel
indices notified by GERC at the time when it is being brought to the notice of
other party as per Aricle 13.2.2) for which such adjustmen{ becomes
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applicable or more, during Operation Period, the Tariff Payment to the Seller 5
shall be proportionaiely increased or decreased.

13.2.2 The Procurer or the Selier, as the case may be, shall provide the other Party
with a cerlificate stating that the adjustinent in the Tariff Payment is directly
as a resuit of the Change in Law and shial! provids supporting documents to
substantiate the same ana such certificate shall correctly refiect all increases
or decreases fill the date of such certificate.

13.23 The adjustment In Monthly Capacity Payment for reasons attributable to
Article 13.2.1 shall be effective from:

(i) -the date of adoption, promulgation, amendment, re-enactment or
repeal of the Law,

{ii) the date of order/judgment of the Competent Court, if the Change
in Law is on account of a change in interpretation of Law;

{lii)the da'te”of impact resulting from the occurrence of Article @
13.1.1(b). -
13.24 The payment for Changes in Law shall be through Supplementary bill

as mentioned in Article 11.9, -
13.3 Appeal against Change in Law

If the results stated in Article 13.1.1 are brought about by a change in the
interpretation of Law .by a court or tribunal that does not qualify as a
Competent Court. the Seller agrees that it shall, at its own cost, appeal
against cuch orderfudgment up to the ievel of the appropriate Competent
Court and the right of the Seller to recover the additional amount from the
Procurer on acceunt of Changes in Law shall, unless waived in Writing by the
Procurer, shall ke dependent on the Sellers taking adequate steps to contest
the increase.
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14.1

ARTICLE 14

EVENTS CF DEFALILT AMD TERMINATION

Seller Event of Default

The occurrence and continuation of any of the foliowing events, unless any

such event occurs as a result of a Forca Majeure Event or a default / breach

by Procurer of its obiigations under this Agreement, shali constitute a Seller

Event of Defauit: :

(i) the failure of any Unit to be Commissioned by the date falling twelve (12)
months after its Scheduled Commercial Operation Date, or

(if) if at any time following a Unit being Commissioned and during its retest,
such Unit's Tested Capacity is less than ninety two (92%) percent of its
Installed Capacity and such Tested Capacity remains below ninety two
(92%) percent even three (3) months thereafter; or '

(ifi)after Commercial Operation Date of the Project, the Seller fails to achieve
Average Availability of sixty five (65%), for a period of twelve (12)
consecutive months, or

(iv)the Seller fails to make any payment more than'Rs.1 Crore required to be
made to Procurer under this Agreement within three (3) Months after the
Due Date of 2 valid and undisputed invoice raised by the said Procurer on
the Seller, or

(v) any misreprasentation or untrue statement made in the representation
and warranties made by the Seller in Schedule 7 of this Agreement; or

(vi)if the Seller:
a. assigns or purports to assign its assets or rights in violation of this

Agreement; or
b. transfers or novates any of its rights and/or obligations under this
agreement, in violation of this Agreement; or

(vii) if the Seller becomes voluntarily or involuntarily the subject of
proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws or goes into
liquidation or dissolution or has a receiver appointed over it or liquidator is
appointed, pursuant to Law, except where such dissojution of the Selleris
for the purpose of a merger, consolidation or reorganization and where
the resulting entity has the financial standing to perform its obligations
under this Agreement and creditworthiness similar to the Seller and
expressly assumes all obligations under this Agreement and is in a
position to perform them; or
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{viii) the Selier repudiates this Agreement: or

(ix)except where cue to the a Procurer’s failure fo comply with its obligations,
the Seller is In material breach of any of its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement.

14.2 Procurer Event of Default

The occurrence and the continuation of any of tha following events, unless

any such event occurs as a result of a Force Majeure Event or a breach by

the Seller of its obligations under this Agreement, shall constitute the Event of

Defauit on the part of Procurer:

(i} the Procurer falls to pay (with respect to a Monthly Bill or a Supplementary
Bill cr a Delayed Payment Charges Bili) an amount exceeding 15% of the
most recent undisputed amount of Monthly Bill for a period of ninety (90)
days after the Due Date and the Seller is unable tc recover the amount

- outstanding to the seller through the Letter of Credit; or

{ii) the Procurer repudiates this Agreement: or : .

{filfthe Procurer is otherwise in materia! breach of this Agreement which
leads to Inabiliiy of tre Seller to parform ite obligations under this
Agreement; or

(ivjany misrepresentation or uUnftrue statement made in the represéentation
and warranties made by the Procurer in Scheduie 7 of this Agreement.

(V) If the Procurer becomes voluntarily or involuntarily the subject of
proceedings under any bankruptoy or insolvency laws or geas into
liquication cr dissslution or has a receiver appointad svar it or liquidator is
appcinted, pursuant to Law, except where such dissolution of the Procurer
is for the purpase of a merger, consolidation or reorganization and where
the resulting entity has the financial standing to perform its obligations
under this Agreement and creditworthiness simiiai to the Procurer and
'xpresely assumss all obligations under this Agreement and Is in a
position {o perform them; or

{vi)The Precuier fails to implement and maintain the Payrnent Security
Mechanism in accordance with Article 11.10 of this Agresment.

14.3 Termination due to Force Majeure Events

14.3.1 Upon continuation of an event of Force Majsure for More than 270
consecutive days, eitner Parly can Terminate the Agreement, without any
liability or obligation on their part, by giving a notice of fifteen (15) days.

14.4 Termination procedurs for Seiler Event of Defauit

14.4.1 Upon the occurrence and continuation of any Seller Event of Default under
Article 14.1, the Procurer shall have the right %o deliver to the Seller a
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Procurer Preliminary Termination Notice, which shail specify in reasonable
detail the circumstances giving ris2 to the issue of such nofice.

-~ 14.4.2 Following the issue of Procurer Freliminary Termination Notice, the

Consultation Period of ninety (80} days or such longer period as the Parties
may agree shall apply.

14.4.3 During the Consultation Period, the Parties shall, save as otherwise provided
in this Agreement, continue to perform their respective obligations under this

. Agreement.

14.4.4 Within a period of seven (7) days following the expiry of the Consultation
Period and unless the Parties shall have otherwise agreed to the contrary or
the Seller Event of Default giving rise to the Consultation Period shall have
heen remedied, Procurer may terminate this Agreement by delivering a

* Procurer Termination Notice, wheteupon this Agreement shall terminate on
the date of such notice.

14.4.5 Lenders option to assume obligations of Seller:

If, at any time following the service by Procurer of a Procurer Termination:
Notice pursuant to Clause 14.4.4, the Lenders, on behaif and instead of
Seller, pay all sums which are due and payable to Procurer as at the date of
the said Procurer Termination Notice and / or perform or cause to be
performed any unperformed obligations of Seller as at such date, then:

(a) such Procurer Termination Notice shall be revoked and all existing rights
of termination in favour of Procurer under this Agreement shall terminate
(but without prejudice to any rights of Procurer in respect of any future
breach of this Agreement); and

(b) Procurer shall continue to perform its obligations under this Agreement as
if its rights of Termination, had not arisen (but without prejudice to any
rights of Procurer in respect of any such future breaches).

14.5 Teormiration procedure for Procurer Events of Default

14.5.1 Upon the occurrence and continuation of any Procurer Event of Default
pursuant to Article 14.2 (i) in making payment of the amount due to the
Seller, the Seller shall have the option to follow the remedies provided under
Article 11.10.

14.5.2 Without in any manner affecting the rights of the Seller under Article 14.5.1 in
the event payment of any undisputed bill or amount due as per the direction
of the Appropriate Commission remains outstanding for more than 10 days or
in the event of default under Article 14.2 (i), (jii), (iv), (v) and (vi) the Selier
shall have the right to deliver to Procurer a Seller Preliminary Termination
Notice, which notice shall specify in reasonable detail the cirgymstances
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giving rise to its issue.

14.5.3 Foliowing the Issue of a Seller Preliminary Termination Notice, the
Consultation Period of 80 days shall apply.

14.5.4 Within a period of
Period and uniess the Parties shall have otherwise agreed or the Procurer
Event of Default giving rise to the Consultation Period shall have been
remedied, the Seller may terminate this Agreement by delivering a Seller
Termination Notice, whereupon this Agreement shall terminate on the date of
such notice.

14.6 Consequences of Termination

14.6.1 Consequence of Termination for Seller Event of Defauit
Where this Agreement is terminated by ~rocurer pursuant to Article 14 for
any Seller Event of Default, the Seller shali pay as compensation to Procurer,

energy corresponding to the Normative Avaulabmty of the installed Capacity.
14.6.2 Consequence of Termination for Procurer Event of Defauit

where inis Agrecment is terminated by the Seller pursuant to Article 14 for

any: o the Procurer Event of Defauit, the foilowing shall 'be the

consequences: '

(a) the Seller shall offer to any person, the Capacity allocated to the Procurer

at following terms; '
The Seller shall be entitled to claim compensation from the Procurer the
actua! luae suffered by the Seller pending the sale of such Capacity and
thereafter on the difference in the price payabie under this Agreement by
the Procurer and the possible price the Seller can procure on such resale
of the Capacity.

(b) the Seller shail make every effort to mitigate the loss tc the Pr ocurer.

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained above, the aggregate liabillty of the
Procurer shall ot in any event exceed an amount equivalent to twelve
(12) months of the billing at the Tariff and ener gy, corresponding to
Normative hvudc.bm»y of the Installed Capacity, as liquidated damages.

The termination of the Agreement shall not affect the accrusd rights and

obligations of the parties.

14.6.3 Consequenc;- of Temmination at the end of the Term shall be governed by the

provisions of Article 2
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seven (7) days following the expiry of the Consultation .

an amount equivalent to tweiv\. (12) months of the billing, at the tariff andA )
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ARTICLE 1§

LIABILITY AND INDEVMIFICATION

154 indemnity
15.1.1 The Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold Procurer harmless agdinst:

()

(b)

any and all third party claims, actions, suits or proceedings for any loss of
or damage to property of such third party, or death or injury to such third
party, arising out of a breach by the Seller of its obiigations under this
Agreement except to the extent that any such claim, action, suif or
proceeding has arisen due to a negligent act or omission, breach of this
Agreement or breach of statutory duty on the part of Procurer; and

any and ali losses, damages, costs and expenses including legal costs,
fines, penalties and interest suffered or incurred by Procurer by reason of-
a breach by the Seller of any of its obligations under this Agreement.
(Provided that this Article 15 shall not apply to such breaches by the
Seller, for which specific remedies have been provided for under this
Agreement) except to the extent that any such claim, action, suit or
proceeding has arisen due to a negligent act or omission, breach of this
Agreement or breach of statutory duty on the part of Procurer.

the above iosses logether shall constitute “Indemnifiable Losses”.

15.1.2 Pl;ocurer shall indemnify, defend and hold the Seller harmless against:

(a)

(b)

any and all third party claims, actions,-suits or proceedings for any loss of
or damage to property of such third party, or death or injury to such third
party, arising out of a breach by Procurer of its obligations under this
Agreement except to the extent that any such claim, action, suit or
proceeding has arisen due to 2 negligent act or omission, breach of this
Agreement or breach of statutory duty on the part of the Seller, its
contractors, servants or agents; and

any and all losses, damages, costs and expenses including legal costs,
fines, penalties and interest suffered or incurred by the Seller by reason
of a breach by Procurer of any of its obligations under this Agreement
(Provided that this Article 15 shall not apply to such breaches by
Procurer, for which specific remedies have been provided for under this
Agreement.), except to the extent that any such claim, action, suit or

~ proceeding has arisen due to a negligent act or omission, breach of this

Agreement or breach of statutory duty on the part of the Seller, its

a
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coniractors, servants or agents

The above losses together shall constitute “Indemnitiable Losses”.
Limitation of liability

A Party ("indemnifying Party") shall not be ffable to indemnify the other Party
("Indemnified Party") under this Article 15 for any indemnity claims made in a
Contract Year unti! the aggregate of all indemnity claims of the Indemnified
Party in a given Contract Year exceeds half a percent (0.5%) of the average
annual Tariff Payment for all the Contract Years up to the Contract Year in
which the indemnity claim is made.

15.3 Procedure for claiming indemnity

15.3.1 Third party claims

(@) Where the Indemnifiled Pary is entided to indemnification from the

(B}

An Indemnifying Party may, .at its own expense, assume cov%gl of the

Indemnilying Parly pursuant to Article 15.1.1(a) or 15.1.2(a), the

_Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Indemnifying Party of such

claim, proceeding, action or suit referred to in Article 18.1.1(a) or
15.1.2(a) in respect of whicn it is entitled to be indemnified. Such notice
shall be given as scon as reasonably practiceble after the Indemnified
Party becomes aware of such claim, proceeding, action or suit. The
Indemnifying Party shall be liable to settle the indemnification claim within
[30 days] of receipt of the above notice. Provided however that, if:
(1) the Parfies choose to contest, defend or litigate such claim, action,
suit or roceedmgs in accordance with Article 156.3.1(b) below; and
{ii) the claim amount is not required 1o be paid/deposited to such third
sarty pending the resolution of the dispute,

the indemnifying r ”r" shall become liable to pay the claim amount fo the
Indemnified Party or to the third party, as the case’ may be, promptly
foliowing the resolution of the dispute, if such dispute is not settled in
favour of the Indemnilfied Pany.

The Indemnified Party may contest, defend and litigate a claim, action,
sult or proceeding for which it Is entiiled to be indemnified under Article
15.1.1(a) or 16.1.2(2) and the indemnifying Party shall reimburse to the
indemnified Party all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the
indemnified party, Howévnr such indemnified Party shall not settle or
comoron:lsc such claim, action, suit or proceedings without first getting
the consent of the Indemnifying Party, which consent shall not be
Unreasonably withheld or delayed.

4
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15.4

16.5

defence of any proceedings brought zgainst the indemnified Party if it
acknowledges its olbligation to indemnify such, indemnified Party, gives such
Indemnified Party prompt nofice of its intention o assume conirol of the
defence, and employs an independant legal counsel at its own cost that is
reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Party.

Indemnifiable l.osses

Where an Indemnified Party is entitled to indemnifiable Losses from the
Indemnifying Party pursuant to Article 15.1.1(b) or 15.1.2(b), the Indemnified
Party shail promptly notify the Indemnifying Party of the Indemnifiable
Losses. The Indemnifiable Losses shall be paid by the Indemnifying Party
within {30] days of receipt of the notice seeking Indemnifiable Losses by the
Indemnified Party.

Limitation on Liability

Except as expressiy provided in this Agreement, neither the Seller nor

‘Procurer nor their respective officers, directors, agents, employees or

Affiliates (or their officers, directors, agents or employees), shall be liable or
responsible to the other Party or its Affiliates, officers, directers, agents,
employees, successors or assigns (or their respective insurers) for incidental,
indirect or consequential damages, connected with cor resuiting from -
performance or non-performance of this Agreement, or anything done in
connection herewith, including claims in the nature of lost revenues, income
or profits (other than payments expressly required and property due under
this Agreement), any increased expense of, reduction in or loss of power
generation production or equipment used therefore, irraspective of whether

'such claims are based upon breach of warranty, tort (including negligence,

whether of the Procurer, the Seller or others), strict liability, contract, breach
of statutory duty, operation of law or otherwise. Procurer shall have no
recourse against any officer, director or shareholder of the Seller or any
Affiliate of the Seller or any of its officers, directors or shareholders. The
Seller shall have no recourse against any officer, director or shareholder of
Procurer, or any affiliate of Procurer or any of its ofiicers, directors or
shareholders. '

)
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ARTICLE 18

ASSIGNMENTS AND CHARGES

Assignments

Subject to Arlicie 16.2.2, this Agreement may not be assigned by any Party
(and no Party shall create or permit to subsist any encumbrance over all or
any of its rights and benefits under this Agreement) other than by mutual
agreement between the Parties o be evidenced in writing:

Provided that, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld if either of the

Parfies seeks to transfer to any transfeise all of its rights and obligations

under this Agreemant; and ,

(a) 'such transferee s either the owner or Operator of ‘ali-or substantially all
|of the distribution syster for Gujarat and / or such transferee is a

successor entity of any of the Procurer; and

(0} | all Agreements shall remein In place and shall be effective as to such
SUCCEessor.

Permitied Charges

Notwithsianding Article 16.1, the Seller may assign this Agreement or create

any encumbrance over all or part of the Security Package or the other assets

of the Project to the Lenders or the Lender's Representative or as required by

the Lenders, on their behalf as saeurity for; '

(@) | amounis payabie under the Financing Agreements; and

(b) | any other amounts agreed by the Parties,

16.2.1 Article 16.1 does not apply to:

(a) lliens arising by operation of law (or by an agreement evidencing the
same) in the crdinary course of the Seller carrving out the Project;

{b) |pledges of goods; the relaisd documents of iitle and / or other related

documents arising or created in the ordinary course of the Seller
caitying out the Project; or
{¢) security arising out cf retention of title provisions in relation fo goods

acquired ir: the ordinary course of the Seller carrying out the Project.




ARTICLE 17

" GOVERNING LAW AND DIZPUTE RESOLUTION

174 Governing Law
This Agreement shall be governed by and consirued in accordance with the
Laws of India.

17.2 Amicable Setilement

17.2.1 Either Parly is entitled to raise any matter, dispute or difference of whatever
nature arising under, out of or in connection with this Agreement inciuding its
existence or validity (collectively *Dispute”) by giving a written notice to the
other Party, which shall contain:

()  adescription of the Dispute:
(ii) the grounds for such Dispute; and
(iii)  all written material in support of its claim.

17.2.2 The other Party shall, within thirty (30) days of issue of dispute nofice issued
under Article 17.2.1, furnish:

(i) counter-claim and defenses if any regarding the Dispute; and
(i)  all written material in support of its defenses and counter-claim.

17.2.3 Within thirty (30) days of issue of notice by other Party pursuant to Article
17.2.2, both the Parties shall meet to settle such Dispute amicably, failing
which the Dispute shall be referred to Dispute Resolution in accordance with
Article 17.3.

17.3 Dispute Resoiution -

Where any Dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement is not
resolved mutually then such Dispute shall be submitted te adjudication by the
Appropriate Commission as provided under section 79 or 8¢ of the Electricity
Act, 2003 and the Appropriate Commission may refer the matier to Arbitration
as provided in the said provision read with section 168 of the said Act. For
disputes beyond the power conferred upon the Appropriate Commission,
such disputes shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the High Courts of Gujarat.
17.4 Parties to Perform Obligations
Notwithstanding the existence of any dispute and difference referred to the
Appropriate  Commission as provided in Article 17.3 and save as the
Appropriate Commission may otherwise direct by a final or interim order, the
Parties hereto shall continue to perform their respective obligations under this

Agreement, including making of payments by either Party.
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18.4

16.5

ARTICLE 18

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Amendment
This Agreement may only be amended or supplemented by a written

“agreement between the Parties with necessary approval from the GERC..

Third Party Beneficiaries
This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties and their respective
succsssors and permitted assigns and shall not be construed ds creating any

duty, standard of care or any l!abihty te, any person not a party to this
Agreement.
No Waiver

A walver by a Party shall bs In writing and executed by an authorized ~

representative of that Parly. Neither the failure by cne Parly to insist on any
cocasion upon the parformance of the terms, conditions, and provisions of
this Agreement nor tims or other indulgence granted by one Party to the other
shall act as a waiver of such breach or acceptarice of any variation or the
relinquishment of any such right or any other right under this Agreement,
which shall remain in full force and effect.

Remedies

Where this Agreement provides for any rebate or other remedies for any
breach or shortfall in performance, the Parties shall not be entitled to make
any other claim or pursue cther remedies under law.,

Entirety

18.5.1 This Agreement and the Schedules are intended by the Parties as the final

expression of their agreement and are intended aiso as & complete and
exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement.

18.5.2 All prior written or oral understandings, offers or other communications of

18.6

18.7
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every kind pertaining to this Agreement or the sale or purchase of Electrical
Output and Installed Capacity under this Agreament to the Procurer by the

Seller are abrogated and withdrawn.

Asslgnment

This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the Parties

and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Confidential ?.;nformation

Subject to Article 18.8, all Parties shall at all times auring the continuance of
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this Agreement:. *

(a) use their reasonable endeavours to keep all information regarding the
terms and conditions of this Agreement and any data or information
acquired under or pursuant iz, this Agreement confidential and
accordingly no Party shall disclose the same to any other person; and

(b) not use any document or other information (whether technical or
commercial) obiained by them respectively by virtue of this Agreement
conceming another's undertaking for any purpose other than
performance of that Party’s obligations and exercise of its rights under
this Agreement: :

Provided that, the provisions of this Article 18.7 shall not apply to information

which at the time of disclosure was in the public domain other than by breach .

of the foregoing obligations of confidentiziity.

18.8 Disclosure of Confidential Information
18.8.1 Each of the Parties shall hold in confidence the agreements relating to the

Project and all documents and other information (whether technical or
commercial) which is of a confidential nature disclosed to it by or on behalf of
the other Party or Parties relating to the Project and shall not, save as may be
required by law or appropriate regulatory or statutory authorities, or to any
Indian Governmental Instrumentality, or to prospective lenders to, or
investors in, the Seller or to the professional advisers of the Parties or of
those prospective lenders or investors, publish or otherwise disclose or use
the same for its own purposés otherwise than as may be required to perform
its obligations under this Agreement.

18.8.2 The provisions of Article 18.8.1 shall not apply to:

(a) any information in the public domain otherwise than by breach of this
Agreement; :

(b) Information relating to the Project in the possession of a Party before
that information was disclosed to it by or on behalf of the other Party or
Parties and which was not obtained under any obligation of
confidentiality; and :

(c) information obtained from a third party who is free to disclese the
same, and which is not obtained under any obligation of confidentiality.

18.8.3 Every Parly shall be enfifled to disclose the terms and conditions of this

Agreement and any data or informaticn acquired by it under or pursuant to
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party or Parties,
as the case may be, if such disclosure is made in good faith:

(a) to any affiliate of such Parly, having made it aware of the re&';ements
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of this Articie718.8, or to any Indian Governmental instrumentality; or

{b) to any outside consuitants or advisers engaged by or on behalf of such
Party and acling in that capacity, having made them aware of the
requirements of this Article 18.8; or

{c) to the Lenders, the Lencers’ Representative any security trustee, any
bank or other financial institution and its advisers from which such
Party is seeking or obtaining finance, having made them aware of the
requirernents of this Articie 18.8; or

{d) to the extent required by the rules of a relevant and recognised stock
exchange; or

(e} 1o the extent required by any applicable law of India or pursuant to an
order of any court of competent jurisdiction; or )

(i, toany insurer under a poiicy of insurance; or

(g) to direciors, employees and officers of such Party having made them
aware of the requirements of this Article 18.8, W

and is necessary to snable such Party to perform this Agresment or to protect

or enforce its rights under this Agreement or ahy other Project Document or
to enable it to cumply with any requirement referred to in Articles 18.8.3(d)
and 18.8.3(e) or to carry on ifs ordinary business.

Affirmation

The Selier and Procurer each aifirm that:

{) neither It nor iis respective directors, employees, or agents has paid or
undertaicen te pay or shiall in the future pay any unlawful commission,
bribe, pay-nff or kick-back; and '

(i} it has net in any other manner pzid any sums, whether in Indian
currency cr foreign cutrency ang whether in india or abroad to the
cther Party to procure tnis Agreement, and the Seller and Procurer
hereby underiake not to engage in any simiiar acts during the Term of
Agreement.

Severability _ . ‘

The invalidity or enforceabllity, for any reason, of any part of this Agreement

shall not prejudice or affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of

this Agreement unless the part held invalid or unenforceable is fundamental
to this Agreement.. '

No Parinership

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute a partnership or

agency or any such simiiar relationship between the Seller and Procurer.

18.12 8Survival
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary nerein, the provisions under Article:
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12 (Force Majeure), Article 15 (Liability and Indemnification), Arficle 17
'(Governing Law and Dispute Resolution), Article 14 (Events of Default and
Termination), and Article 18 (Miscellaneous) shall continue and survive any
expiry or termination of this Agrasment.
18.13 Counterparis
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original and all of which collectively shall be deemed one
and the same instrument. '
18.14 Notices
18.14.1 All notices to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and in
the English Language. :
18.14.2 All notices must be delivered personally, by registered or certified mail or
facsimile to the addresses below: ‘
For Procurer:

Attention: General Manager (Commerce)
Address: Sardar Patel Vidyut Bhavan, Race Course,
Vadodara, Pin Code 380 007
Facsimile: 91-265-2344543/2337918/2338164
Phone 91-265-2340504, 2340289
For Seller :
Attention: Chief Manager (Finance)
Address: 3" Floor, Block no.8, Udyog Bhavan , Sector-11
‘ - Gandhinagar
Facsimiie: 91-79-23245506
Phone 91-79-23241391

18.14.2 All notices or communications given by email or facsimile shall be confirmed
by depositing a copy of the same in the post office in an envelope properly
addressed to the appropriate Party for delivery by registered or certified
mail. All Notices shall be deemed delivered upon receipt.

18.14.4 Any Party may by notice of at least fifteen (15) days to the other Parties
change the address. and / or addresses to which such notices and
communications to it are to be delivered or mailed. ‘

18.15 Language

The language of this Agreement and ail written communication between the
Parties relating to this Agreement shall be in English.
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18.16 Breach of Okligations

The Pariies acknowledge that « breach of any of ine obligations contained
herein would result in injuries. The Parties acknowledge the damages alone
shall not' be adequate remedy for such breach. Accordingly each Party
agrees that in addition to any other rights or remedy which the other Party or
Parties, as the case may be, may have at Law or in equity, the non breaching
Party or Parties shali be entitled o specific performance and injunctive relief
in any court of competent jurisdiction for any breaca or threatened breach by
the other Party.

18.17 Nomination Restriction
Notwithstanding anything contained to the conwary in this Agreement,
wherever a reference is made io the right of a Procurer to nominate a third
Farty to receive benefits under this Agreement, such Third Party shall have a
financiai standing not less than to the Procurer in question.

18.1€ Scheduled Generation
Notwithstanding anything contained to the contrary in this Agreement,
wherever a reference is made o a Procurer or Procurer issuing a Scheduled
Generations to the Seller, where law se requires that Scheduled Generations
be issued only by a control centre, such references shall be construed as
being references to the Seller receiving Scheduled Generations from the
sald control centre @nd the same shall apply in relation to any other functions
being exercised by any other entity or organisation in the future, from time to
time..
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF 4he Parties have executed these presents through their
authorized representatives at VVadodara.

For and on behalf of Seller For arg on behalf of Procurer

(Jinal Shah) ' (S.B. Khyalia)
Chief Manager (Finance) Executive Director (i
BECL ' GUVNL

and witnessed by

oL " %ﬂ

(S. K Joshi) | (SailajaVachhrajani)
Addl. General Manager(Project) Chief Finance Manager (IPP)
BECL 3 GUVNL
W/
C@\/ /p\)“(h*’jof\f\«’
(Chirag Shukia) (R.P.Soni)
Company Secretary Deputy Engineer (IPP)
BECL GUVNL
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SCHEDULE 1

CONDITIONS SUBSEQUENT

1.1 Conditions subsequent to Seiler
Seller shall have been obtained all applicable pre-Zero Date clearances as
listed here below, zither unconditionally or subject to conditions whish do not
materiaily prejudice Seller's rights, the enjoyment of its benefits or the
periormance of its obligations under this Agreement and such clearances
shall be in full force and effect;

S. No. | Reguiatory / Statutory Clearance Authority
1 Project Cost esfimzte including Financing | GERC (if applicable).

Agreernent and this Agreement approval. '
l2 Water Availability Government of  Gujarat . _ %
' and GWS&SB/ CWC . :

3 Air and Waier poilution. Gujarat Pollution Control
: ' Board. '

4 Environment Clearance. ' Forest and Environment

I Deptt., Govt. of Gujarat

| j /Ministry of Environment

‘ and Forest, Govt, of India,
‘ as applicable.

3 Civil Aviation Clearance for Chimney heinht. Airporte Authority of India.

6 ’ Ccmpany registration. S, ) Reaistrar of Companies
' 7 Approval for payments in foreign currency. Not applicable
| 3 Mining and Transportation of Fuel Government of Gujarat
, | | GPCLIGMDC

After Start of Construction, as applicable: : %
? Sr. No. | Statutory Clearance : Authority
? 1 Boiler and other pressure paris including | The Chief inspector of
P pipes and vaives - Beilers (Gujarat)

Design aspects and inspeciion before light _

Lo up. : :
|2 Chlorine storage Dist. Collector / Dept. of
' Carbon Dioxide Explosives  (Gujarat /
Hydroger Mumbai/ Nagpur)
‘ SF6




Sr. No.

Statutory Clearamnce

Authority

Acetylene

Nitrogen

Oxygen

LPG

Propane, etc.

- Design / Instaliation

3 Fire fighting / protection Loss Prevention Agency /
TAC

4 Electrical plant and equipment The  Chief  Electrical
220 kV installation Inspector (CEl) (Gujarat).
- Design / installation with respect to back | Prior approval of CEl to be
chafging clearance and synchronizing | obtained before
clearance _ installation.
- transformers, MV / LV swilch gear motors,
earthing / lighting arrestors. |

5 Approval for stack obstruction light/ painting. ' Airports Authority of India.

6 Pre installation approval for buildings, pipe | The Chief Inspector of
layout cable routes, acid and other chemical | Faciories  (Gujarat) /
storage. Concermned rmunicipalities

as applicable.

7 Approval for stack emission levels, water | Gujarat Pollution Control
effluent quality, solid waste, etc. Board.

8 Approval for lifts, cranes and hoists, before | Elevator and Lifts
hand over to the Employer. Inspector, (Gujarat).

9 Approval for frequency allotation for | NAVAL Wireless Center
communication equipment like radio, PLCC, | (NWC).
remote operated cranes efc.

10 Import license and formalities. Not applicabie

11 License for labour commissioner for | Labour Commissioner,
construction labour pursuant to section 7 of | Govi. of Gujarat
the Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Act, 1870. ‘

12 Labour Commissioner,

Registration of workers required pursuant to
Section 2 A of the Empléyees State
Insurance Act, 1984, or exemption to be
claimed if other group insurance is taken for
Contractor's personnel.

Govt. of Gujarat
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Statutory Cleararice Authority :
| Consent of the Commissionar of Expicsives | Not applicable |
1 or the possession and use of explosives for
' the purpose of blasting, if any.
Approval of temporary construction power | Electrical insbéctorate,
lines within the plant area. Govt. of Gujarat. |
Approval of weigh bridge anc weigh scales inspector of we#@hts and
measures, GO of
Guijarat. L}

Collection, storage and disposa{l of waste,
site clearance, safe report and safety audit.

Gujarat Pollutioq; Control

Board. |

Approval of building proposals and layout. Not applicable |
Approval of building layout with fire safety | Municipal Coﬁsoraﬁon,
concerns and receipt of No Objection |Chief Fire Officer or
| Certificate. concerned authotifies.

| No Objectionn  Cartificate for storm water | Not applicabie .
drainage design. u
Wayleaves, RoU / RoW for construction, | Not applicable f';
installation and  ‘commissioning of ]
Interconnection Fagilifies. i

Fuel Pricing Mechanism Procurer/ GERC |i
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2.1.2

- SCHEDULE 2

FUNCTIONAL SPECIFICATION

TECHNICAL FEATURES OF THE PLANT

A conventional layout has been proposed with 220 KV Switchyard in front of
the Turbine House and Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator and Chimney at the
back. The station is a pithead lignite based Power Station,

To take care of emission of SO2 and NOx from the Steam Generator,
Circulating Fiuidised Bed Combustion System, an environment friendly
combustion technology adopted by the advanced countries has been opted
for the Power Station.

STEAM POWER PLANT AND AUXILIARIES

The steam generator (SG) would be designed for firing 100% lignite and
would be of circulating fluidised bed combustion (CFBC) type. The CFB
combustor, cyclones, fluidised bed heat exchangers and seal pots, constitute
the main components of the circulating fluidized bed combustion system. The
CFBC steam generators would be natural circulation single drum type. The
SG would be of circulating fluidized bed design, radiant, single reheat, and
balanced drafi, semi-outdoor type, rated to deliver 810 t/nr of superheated
steam at 175 kg /em2 (a), 540 + 5° C when supplied with feed water at a
temperature of 245 deg. C at the economiser inlet. The reheat steam
temperature would also be 540 +5° C.

TURBINE GENERATOR AND AUXILIARIES

The steam turbine genérators (STGs) would be rated for 250 MW continuous
output at the generator terminals, with throttle steam conditions of 170kg/cm2
(a) and 537°C steam temperature. The steam turbine would be a two/three
cylinder tandem compound, reheat, extraction type and condensing type. The
generators would be rated to deliver 250 MW, at 16.5 kV, 50 Hz, 0.85-power
factor, at 3000 rpm. The generator would be provided with either brush-less
or static excitation system. All generator compohents, rotor winding, stator
core, end region flux shield structures and lead box, stator winding, stator
coils, parallel rings, main leads and terminal bushings are hydrogen cooled.
The terminals of the generator would be connected to the Generator
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transformer through-a Generator Circuit Breaker (GCB) using Isolated Phase
Bus Duct (IPBD) of adequate short circuit withstand capability withisuitably
rated tap-offs to ihe unit transformers and station wansformer. The Bus duct
wouid be natural air-cooled and would run partly indeoor and partly ou%oor.

The turbine-generator would be complete with all accessories such as
protection sysiem, Lube and control oil systems, facking oil system, seal
steam system, turbine drain system, 80% TGMCR HP / LP bypassisystem,
Electro-hydraulic control system, automatic twrbine run-up system,! on-line
automafic turbine test system and turbine supervisory instrumentation. The
STG system also includes all piping, fitting, valves and specialities,
and support thermal insulation ete. All pumps would be 2x100% of 3x50% -
and coclers would be 2 x100%. The turbine-generator would also thave all
necessary Indicating and contro!l devices to permit the unit to be placed on
turning gear, roiled, accelerated and synchronised automatically from the
control room. Other accessories of the turbine-generator would include an oil
purification unit with transfer purps and clean and dirty oil storage tanks of
adequate capacity.
UTILITIES
Electrical System ‘
Evacuation of powsr from the proposed power plant shall be done i 220kV
network through & nos of 220V transmission lines to the follo 'ng sub
stations.

{2) LILU or exising 220kY 8/C Savarkundla - Vartej line at 220.W BECL

Padva (30 Ki, LILO distance).
(bj 220KV DIC BECL Padva ~ Botad lines (110 REM). - ;
{c) 220kV D/C BECL Padva - Palitana (Sagapara) lines (55RKM) ﬁ

220KV switchyard woulq be installed in the plant and would have the -bllgwmg

cireuits:

{a) Generator transformer bays - 2
(b) 220 kV Transmission line bays - 6
(c) Bus Coupler Bay - 1

(d) Bus Transfer Bay - 1

Sea Water Draw! System _
The project site is @ 4.5 Km away from sea. Sea Water is proposecﬁ to cater
to the cocling water requirement of condenser and secondary sidefof ACW




223

224

i
) o] afia et S sems o
wof! S B R

RS AR gt R o S S5

ot

Bunglow from Gulf 7 Knabhat and wouid be released in deep sea. The sea
water will be drawn through 160 m long open channel at suitable location
nearby HTL. The intake water system comprises of intake channel, storage
pond and pump house. The storage nond, pump house znd intake channel
would be beiween HTL and LTL. Sea water of 6067 m%hr (145608 m’/ day)
is required for CW make up system. Sea water required for CW make would
be pumped to CW forebay by 3 nos. (2W+1S) of sea water intake pumps of
capacity 3500 m/hr through pipe line from Hatab Bunglow to power plant.'
The blowdown of seawater will be done inio sea at the appropriate point.

Sweet Water System )

Sweet water of 5 MLD would be used for Boiler make-up and for domestic
use from GWIL main pipe line at Budhe! which is at a distance of 10 Km from
the plant location. The pipeline is already connected at Power Project site.
Sweet water would be supplied to a proposed raw water reservoir of capacity
33500 m® located inside the plant area. The reservoir would be sized to store
about 7 days requirement of raw water for the proposed 2 x 250 MW units fo
take care of any 2aventualities of maintenance of pipeline.

Ash handling System:
Ash generated in the boilers in the form of bottom ash and fly ash will be

collected in the respective silos by pneumatic conveying System.

Bed Ash Handling System

‘Bed ash formed due to combustion of lignite and injection of limestone in the

boiler would be collected, cooled to about 120 to 150 deg. C and conveyed
by Dense Phase Pneumafic Conveying system to bed ash surge hopper.
From here the bed ash would be conveyed to the bed ash storage silo by
Dense Phase Pneumatic Conveying system. Transmiiter vessels would be
provided below the bed ash surge hopper outlets. On initiation of bed ash
collection system,(which is by the actuation of ieve! probes in the bed ash
surge hopper(s) and also depending upon the availability of either of the two
silos) the inlet valve would open and ash weuld be fed into the transmitter
vessel for pre-determined leve! / time after which the inlet vaive would close.
On closure of ash inlet:valve, compressed air would be allowed to flow into
the transmitter vessel. On reaching the pre-determined conveying pressure in
the vessel, the bed ash would be conveyed to either of the fwo bed ash
storage silos through transport piping. Removal of ash from the surge hopper
would be initiated whenever the level in the hopper reaches a pﬁtermined

\
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level. There would Be twe bed ash storage silo for the proposed ufit. Vent
|

filters would be provided at the air outlet of each of the silos. [ I
|

Fiy Ash Handiing System : . i

The fly ash handling system would be designed to collect fly ash in dry form
in silos using dense phase pneumatic conveying system, which is described
below: '

|

]
The fly ash colleciec at the air preheater hoppers, economiser hop rs and
ESP hoppers would be gravity fed into individual transmilter vessels rpvided
below each hopper. On initiation of fly ash removal cycle, fiy ash '_:uld be
fed into the transmitter vesse! after whicn the inlet valve would close. On
closure of ash inlet valve, the conveying compressed air would be @ flowed to
flow into the transmitter vessel by opening the air iniet vaive. On readghing the
pre-determined conveying pressure in the vesse!, the fly ash ,.wd be
conveyed ¢ any one of the six fly ash silos with the help of comprassed air
through transport- piping. The conveying air would be vented by vent fan
through the bag filters mounted on top of the silos in order to limit e dust
concentration: in the vented air below 50 mg per cum. There would be three
fly ash storage silo of 1000 tonnes capacity per unit. ‘ |

Lignite and Limestone Handling System ; '

The lignite handiing system is divided in to two portions viz External Lignite
Handling System (ELHS) and !nternal Lignite Handling Systern (ILHS). The
ELHS would be for handling the as mined lignite and transporting thelsame to
the ILHS. The [LHS would be for receiving and handling the "as received"
lignite from the mines and transporting the samie to the bunkerg ;.of the
proposed Unit after screening, crushing, stacking and reclaiming. ".Iignite
of (-} 450 to 500 mum size would be received through the ELHS at thefterminal
point inside the plant. - "i

%

Crughed limestene from limestons bunkers is fed to mills for further cr 'shlng
to- size required for combustion and pneumatically conveyed to liestone
bunkers provided in Steam Generator area for {eeding along with %lignite.
Limestone handling system comprises of milling of crushed limestone,
classificatior/segregation, surge storage (in product hopper) and pheumatic
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Limestone miiling 4nd conveying system

Limestone injection system consisting of milling plant and limestone powder
conveying system would be provided to reduce the SOx emissions. Limes-
tone milling plant would coniprise ¢f crushed limestone hopper feeder, air
swept ball mill, grid separator cyclone, bag filter, mill exhaust system, screen /
rotary feeders, oil fired hot gas generator and conveying system would

include dense phase pressurised system. Lime stone storage bunkers with
lime stone air lock feeders of gravimetric type would be provided at steam
generator end.

Limestone from bunkers would be fed to the milling plant through series of
feeders. Ball mills of 2 Nos. (Both working) of 55 tph capacity for each unit
would be provided and crushed to required size. The powdered limestone
would be then pneumatically conveyed to the powdered limestone bunkers
located in 8G area.

Plant Instrumentation and control system

Main Plant DCS system is maxDNA system from BHEL-EDN, Bangalore.
Complete main plant equipments will be operated from Main Plant control
room. Dedicated hot-redundant PLC system will be provided for Utility
packages like Ash handling system, DM Plant, Limestone milling system,
Limestone conveying system, AC & Ventilation system etc.
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* SCHEDULE 3 |

COMMISSIONING AND TESTING |

31 PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE TESTS i
Seller shall execute the Performance Guarantee Test to demonstt: te the
Rated Name Plate Capacity of each Unit within 180 (cne hundre Flghty)
days from the date of Entry intc Commercial Service. The procedu -{ for the
execution of the Performance Guarantce Test and the conse ol ences
corresponding to the Tested Capacity as well as Capacity Dema f_': ation
Test are brought out in this Schedule-3. m ,
Seller shall give 7 (seven) days’ nofice and shall invite Ph ) urer's ' ’
representative {o attend the Performance Guarantee Test . The ure of @

such representalive to attend may, however, not cause the postponément or. -
invalidation of any such test. I

3.2 SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF THE UNIT(S) \l
The Tested Capacity of the Unit/Power Station established du g the
Performance Guarantee Test or Retest shall in no case be less than!! 5% of
the Rated Name Plate Capacity so as to achieve Successful Co letion
thereof. If, however, such Tested Capacity is found to be below 958 ,Seller
shall have the oplion to conduct Re-Testing as provided under parag ph 3.3
hereunder, Even aiter such Re-Testing, if the Tested Capasity contit ues to

be found below S8%, Procurer shall have the rigit to reject the { roject
besides its right (o reduce the Fixed Charge payments. {
33 RETEST |
Seller shall carry out necessary improvement and modifications tol| achieve
the Rated Name Plate Capacily pursuant to testing as per Clau5‘3.1 of
Schedulz 3. Seller, upon carrying out such improvements and mod ations %

or otherwise, shall arrange for retest of the Unit(s) after following the
procedure as laid down under Clause 3.1 of Schedule 3. Procurer, rder to
facilitate the improvement and modifications, shall allow necessary ( ﬂ tages
as. a part of the Commissioning activity to Seller and issue’ ‘~ eduled
generation with due regard for -such Outages. Such Retest "' hall be
permissible to, be cairied out thrice and shall be carried out within ] overall '
period not extending beyond 180 (One Hundred and Eighty) days ffom the
date cf Enfry into Commercial Service of the Unit, which peri" can be
extended with mutual consent. The Capital Cost at the end of an 'rﬁnal
Retest shall be updaied corresponding te the achievement of Ratdd Name
Plate Capaclty or the Tested Capacity so established.
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3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

3.4.7

»

REPEAT PERFORMANCE GUARAMNTEE TEST AND/OR CAPACITY
DEMONSTRATION TEST

Procurer may, from time to tinz, during- e Term of this PPA, but not more
frequently than once every 12 (twelve) months, require Seller to demonstrate
the Unit's Tested Capacity by carrying out further Performance Guarantee
Test (s) (the "Repeat Performance Test(s))"or the Capacity Demenstration
Test (individually or together the Test) as provided hereunder. Such Test
shall be carried out at no cost to Procurer and in accordance with procedure
laid down herebelow _
Procurer shall give Seller not Iess than 7 (seven) days’ advance written notice
of the time when a Repeat Performance Guarantee Test or a Capacity
Demonstration Test on the Unit(s) is to begin. No Test may be scheduled for
any period when the Unit(s) to be tested is due to undergo a Scheduled
Qutage.

If Seller wishes to take the Unit out of service for repairs before it undertakes
a Test, it shall inform Procurer in writing before its scheduled start of the
repairs to be carried out on the Unit and the estimated time required to
complete the same. The Parties shall then schedule a Maintenance Outage
to enable Seller to carry out those repairs and Procurer shall defer the Test
until the Unit is returned to service following that Maintenance Qutage.
Procurer may, for valid reasons and with due written notice 72 (seventy two)
hours ahead of the scheduled date of the Test, defer same upto 15 (fifteen)
days. The new date for Test should be simultaneously notified.

Seller and Procurer shall each designate qualified and authorised
representatives to monitor the Test. ‘

Testing and measurement procedures applied during the Test shall be the
same as those for the Performance Guarantee Test.

TEST RESULTS 5 :

Within 7 (seven) days of the completion of any Performance Guarantee Test,
Seller shall supply to Procurer all completed test summary data sheets and
other relevant data derived from such Performance Guarantee Test and or
Test as specified in this Schedule 3. Procurer shall notify Seller within 7 days
from its receipt of such completed test summary data sheets whether or not
the relevant Unit has achieved Successful Completion.

Procurer shall accept into Procurer System all Energy and Reactive Power
generated during synchronisation, Performance Guarantes Tests and any
other testing or Successful Completion procedures required under the terms

80

v




3.4.8

T

——

S

of this PPA. . |
CONSEQUENCEE OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE TEST AND TEST(S)
if the Capacity demonstrated at the end of the Performance Guarantee Test
and/or any other Test(s) specified under this Schedule is less than the 95%
of Rated Name Plate Capacity or the Derated Name Plate Capa fas the
case may be, of the Unit or the Power Station as the case may be, the
Capital Cost of the Project will be reduced pro-rata for the pufpose of
computation of the Fixed Charges under the Schedule 5 of this PPA#Il such
time that the full or higher Capacity is demonstrated at any later data through
relevant Tesi(s), provided, however, that no compensation of increasgd Fixed
Charges shall be admissible from any retrospective date.

if the Capacity demonstrated during the Performance Guarantee Test and/or
the Repeal Test is greafer than the Rated Name Plate Capaciyfior the
Derated Name Plate Capacity, as the case may be, of the Unit or ,’:.P-ower
Station as the case may be, the Capital Cost of the Project will not '{ ltered
‘or the purpose of computation of the Fixed Charges under the =‘?z le 5 of
this PPA. | |

! i
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4.2
4.3

SCHEDULE 4

AVAILABILITY FACTORS
Introduction
The Availability declaration or Revised Availability Declaration, if any, shall be
governad by the Grid Code/ Appropriaie ABT Order.
The Permitted Tolerance shall be as per Crid Code / Applicabte ABT Order.
Cumulative Availability Factors

In any period, the cumulative availability factor (the *Availability Factor”) of the
Power Station shall be calculated as follows:

N N
%Cum, Availability =10000x 3, DCi+ 3,[CCx{100 - AUXn)]

i=1 i=1

Wherg,

DCi
CcC
|

N

AUX,-

4.4

is the Average Declared Capacity for the settiement period T’ in MV,

is the Instalied Capacity of the Power station in MW

is the relevant settlement period,

is the total Number of seftlement periods from the beginning of the

operating year, till the end of the billing period, and

is the Normative Auxiliary Energy Consumption as a percentage of gross

generation
Available Capacity
4.4.1 The Power Station’s available capacity in each Setftlement Period (its
“Available Capacity”) shall be equal to its Declared Capacity in that
Settlement Period, fess any Capacity Reduction as per the applicable ABT
order.

et PO S
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5.1.4

SCHEDULE 5

TARIFF

The Monthly Taritf Payment
General ;
Procurer shall pay the Monthiy Tariff Payment for the period from the date on
which Installed Capacity and electrical energy is first accepted by Procurer,
after acceptance of commercial operation until this Agreement expires or is
terminated.

Wonthly Tariff Payment(S) ‘

From the date of Synchrenisation and upte the Entry into Commercial Service
of the Unit (Infirm Power), Supply of power shall be accou ' ed as
Unscheduled lnierchange {Ul) and paid for from the regiona! or state Ui pool
account at the applicable frequency-linked Ul rate by the STU: .
Provided that any revenue eamed by the generating company fromiSale of
infirm power after accounting for the tuel expenses shall be ap for
reduction in capital cost;

-5 The Monthly Tariff except the parameters agreed at clause 5.2 beloW shall

consist of the components z2s specified In the GERC Terms and Con ‘ ons of
Tarlff Regulation apgiicable from time to time. . Further correction i8ito be
made on Capacity Charges if Tested Capacity (Tc) is less than 95%lof the
Instaliec! Capacity (Cs) by multiplying the Capacity Charges with the fattor of
Tel/ Ce. -
Monthly Tariff Payments are payable in Rupees. it

5.1.5 In celculating the Monthly Tariff Payment for any period when one oF more

5.2

Units are already Commissioned but before the Commercial Operations Date
of the Power Stafion as a whole, its debt and equity elements Il be
allocated to the Units aiready in Commercial Operation in the pPropo jon that
the most recent Tested Capacity of such Units bears to the Installed G acity
of the Power Station. :

The Seller agrees to supply power at the following Tariff Parameters: ,

Tarift Parameters Agreed Norms ,
| Project Cost | Not exceeding Rs.7.23 Crs./MW ||
Debt-Equity Ratio 80;20 '
Operating Parameters
SHR with Moisture Correction | 2623 Keal/Kwh

Aux, consumption 11%
 Lime stone 1 260 gm/kwh o
\ )
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5.3

5.4

5.5

Tariff Parameters Agresd Nerms
Target availability 80% (78% for first three years)
Return on eguity (14%

The Operaﬁon and Maintenance expenses for the year shall be lower of the

fellowing

1. as determined by GERC from time o fime. .

2. Rs.21.51 lacs/MW/Year for the Year 2012-12 and escalated for the
subsequent years there after as per prevailing GERC Tariff norms from
time to time.

The above O&M Charges shall be added to other components of Capacity

Chargas computed as per the applicable Tariff Regulation to get the Total
Capacity Charges for the year,

Ifthe rate of Water Charges actually incurred by the Seller, is higher than that
considered by GERC, the differential rate shall be reimbursed by the

Procurer, keeping the quantum of Water Consumption per KWh the same as
considered by GERC.

Computation and Payment of Capacity Charges and Energy Charge

The Capacity Charge and Energy Charges payable to the Generating Station
for a calendar month shall be calculated as specified in tha SERC Terms and
Conditions of Tariff Regulation applicable from time to time. .

Unscheduled Interchange (Ul) Charges:

Variation between scheduled generation and actual generafion shall be
accounted for through Unscheduled Interchange (Ul) Charges as detailed in
the GERC Terms and Conditions of Tariff Regulations as amended from time
to fime. The Ul will be settled between the Seller and STU.

OO N
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FIKANCING PLAN
Financing Plan

The Capital Cost of the Project shall be subject to approval by Procurer/
GERC. Equiiy above 20%shall se considered on merit. However in no case
2quity should excezd 304 of (he total capitai cost.

The actual Financing Plan shall be sublect to approval of Procurer/ GERC.
The Tariff for sale of Electricity from the Project shall be determined on the
basis of the final financial package and Preject Cost approved by Procurer/
GERC. '

Pursuant to Gol Resolution No. 237 dated 22-10-1281 a minimum of 11% of
the total outlay must come through Promoters’ contribution and shall be so
reteined through out the Term of the PPA.

Seller shall furnish break-up of the Capital Expenditure made by Seller for the
power station as mentioned in this PPA. The aciual capital expenditure
incurred on completion of Project shall alsc be subject to approval of

Frocurer/ GERC,
Financing Change(s)

Seller shall, during the Tenm of the PPA, endeavour to employ the cheapest
Means of Finance in zccordance with Good Industry Practices. For this
purpose, Seller may make Financing Change(s) 1o its original approved
Financing Plan. Such Fir*.ancing Changes shall, however, not be implemented
without the prior written approval of Procurer/ GERC. The cosis associated
with such Financing Changes shall be borne by the Procurer.

The Financing Agreements 0 be entered (170 with Financial Institutions in this
regard must have the provision of allowing Seller to refinance the Capital
Cost. The henefits of such refinancing shall be passed on to Procurer. Not
withsianding this provision, the obligation of achieving Financlal Closure
within the stipuiaied date on the sart of Seller shall not be mitigated.
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Representations and Warranties by the Praocurer

Procurer hereby represents and warranis to and agrees with the Seller as
follows and acknowledges anc confirms that the Seller Is relying on such

representafions and warranties in connection with the fransactions described
in this Agreemenit:

The said Procurer has all requisite power authorising and has been duly
authorised to execute and consummate this Agreement;

This Agreement is enforceable against the said Procurer iti accordance with
its terms;

The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement on
the part of the said Procurer will not violate zny provision of nor constitute a
default under, nor give rise to a power to cancel any charter, morigage, deed
of trust or iien, lease, agreement, license, permit, evidence of indebtedness,
restriction, or ofiver contract to which the said Procurer is a party or to which

said Procurer is bound, which violation, default or power has not been
waived;

The said .Procurer is not insolvent and no insolvency proceedings have been
instituted, nor threatened or pending by or against the said Procurer:

There are no actions, suits, claims, proceedings or investigations pending or,
to the best of the said Procurer’s knowladge, threatened in writing against the
said Procurer at law, in equity, or otherwise, and whether civil or criminz! in
nature, before or by, ary court, commission, arbitrater or governmental
agency or authority, and thers are no outstanding judgments, decrees or
orders of any such courts, commission, arbitrator or governmental agencies
or authorities, which materially adversely affect its ability to execute the
Project or to comply with its obligations under this Agreement.

Event of Defaull: 'r. tha event that any represantations and warranties offered
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by a Procurer in the'Arénle zoove are not true or arg incorrect, the occurrence
of such event would & 1 & Procurer Event of Def’u it releasable to the
Procurer making the false or incomect representaion and warranty under
Ariicie 4.2 of inis A nd the Seller shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement in accoicance with Article 1« of this .agreement.

7.2 Representation and Warranties of the Seller
The Seller hereby représents and warrants to and agrees with the Procurer
as follows and acknowiedges and confirms that the Procurer are relying on
such representatioric ane wamanties in conneclion with the transactions
described in this Agresment

o o T e o i e AR a eI e
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It has alf requisite power autharising and has bean duly authorised 1o execute , .
l {/
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".'»..:; cofisummation of e Tancastions contempletec by this Agresment on
the part of the Seller will not vioiate any provision of nor constitute a defauit
under, nor give rse 0 & power w cancel any charter, mortgagea, dead of trust
or lien, lease, agreement, license, permit, evidence of indebtedness,
gstriction, or sther coniract ic which the Seller is a party or to which the
Seller Is bournd ':.:;f:';ch viclation, default or pcwer has not baen waived;

The "Selier is not insolvent and no insolvency procesdings have been
instituted, not threatenad or pending by or against the Seller;

actions, siils, claims, QTO‘S;¢1:!H5£ or investigations pending or, é‘

Jdedge, threataned In wiiting ageinst the Seller at
se. ano whether ““/ll or ¢riminal in nature, before or
o, arbitrator or governmental agency or authority,
and thare are 0o CL‘.:~..".';'.?",-;L§,":f._'j judgments, decrees or orders of any such
coutts, commiszior, arilrator or governmental ag :.‘x.:ie; i authorities, which
miatenialy adversaly :-';;“:«,ci 1o anility to execute the Project or to comply with

its obligations under this Agreement.

Event of Default; In the wq\;n": that any reprasentations and warranties offered
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SCHEDULE 8

“UEL MANAGEMENT
84 FUEL

811 The Power Siation is designed to use Lignite as 2rimary Fuel, FO or other
simiior Fust as Secordary Fue! and Limestone or Its substitute as an additive.

¢
oy

8 Sl Avaliabilityl Procurement
Sa-"l;e. shedl be solely mspcnszble fc ensure avallability of Lignite and the _
Secondary Fusl as well as Limestone of the requhed quantity and quality at %}
all imes during the Term of the PPA. . ; :
8.3  Ligniie Prieca Mochanism

Toe Ugnite Price Mechanism and Limestone Price: Mechanism shall be
uhies uvel of Procurer/ GERC. Notwithstanding this provision, where
4y winkact Subcontract agreements are signed or amended by Seller

wiliout the prior approval of Procurer, and where such agreement or
nentinends) rasdlt inlo increase of the Energy Charnes i any respagt,
Frocwer shzl et be obliged to pay such increased Energy Charges

cowever F guch Gontract agreements are amended by. Beller, and where
such amendment(s) result. into decrease of the Energy Charges in any
o' L

respecy, ine Seiler shali pase on the benefit to the F‘rocurer._mrther th‘, Eeller

shall include & repn sgenting member of the Procurer in the Tender - %
“ommitiee.




/\/J' ax No. 079 23245506- :
Of L)

LA Th:s hos re ference to your letter dated 17-5- 201 6 wnerem you i" ave’ »lnfo
e achlevement of full-load of 250 MW: Unit 1 on, 16-5- 20’!6 and reques’te~ :

accept- Commcrual Operat:on of umt 1& submltted vanous docume. :tc nn
“same. p

stipport of

c"t‘o mform us the source of’ hgmte to be consude in the
une: along with the full break up of cost and' expecied GCV of

Q. nform the cost per KWh to SLDC for the purpose of
-order..

jgh%s in terms of the provisions of the PPA.

Yourhlgith‘.’ uily,

G
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| GUJARAT URJUA VIKAS NIGAT LIMITED |
3 g CliN Ud()l(})u}"(‘:“ SCC045195 1ISO 99001- -2008 Certified Company i

Sardar Patel Vidyut Bhavan, Race Cour 'se, Vadodara (Gujarat) Pin-390007

Phone’; Direct (0265) 2340289 POX-(0265)75 LO302/83/84/85 86 Fax : {0265)-2344543

s I e Ll Jnn[_)p ini@gebinail.com

e ey i

! ’Jr 3
Li:_:\.i)_.(_'_‘_:[, “COM-CFM(IL ” 357 ' Date : oW °Pr22°.1~7-

Shri Sudhir Bhargava

Chief General'Manager.
BhaVnaqarE lerqy L,ompanv Limited,
Block No 8, Udyog avan,

-.3;
Gandhi nagas— 382 O? 1

! Fax No, 079 23245506 / 0278 2931175

uhy: Qe;faration of Commercial Operation of 250 MW Unit 2 of BEGL

-ycur 1etier no BECL / Padva / GUVNL / 2017 / COD U2 | 553

: wzv :ﬂnz ,/ou h ve mforn‘cu about acnuavemmt of full Ioad of 250 MW
JA
] l c1! 1(,1 lf:,‘

inform you that the Ccmmercial Operation of BECL
C '. 1crom 27-3-2017 in terms of provisions of the PPA.

e provisions of the PPA.

Yours faithfully,

(I
MW
(Sailaja Vachhrajani)

General Manager (IPP)

Fax:0265 2352018

Scanned by CamScanner
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Lignite FO LDO
Month | Qty (MT) R':f;;:T (ﬁt}’) Rate Rs./MT ((:nt}’) RF;j;neT
Apr-18 7547.98 1981 11.66 31682 27.72| 47045
May-18 53245.07 2018 60.11 33110 99.02| 47045
Jun-18 97899.17 2058 94.61 33110 109.19| 50606
Jul-18 3111.51 2056 0.00 33110 0.00{ 50606
Aug-18 0.00 2061 0.00 33110 0.00{ 50606
Sep-18 0.00 2096 0.00 33110 0.00{ 52016
Oct-18 34264.11 2147 308.16 40503 574.28| 56837
Nov-18 77927.08 2173 111.50 41923 191.58| 57674
Dec-18 121537.84 2206 44.06 41923 91.20| 56064
Jan-19 118812.61 2227 0.00 41434 67.80| 53161
Feb-19 26229.27 2233 79.00 41434 153.84| 52560
Mar-19 130929.56 2240 5.08 41528 234.40| 51818
Lignite FO LDO

Month Qty Rate Qty Rate Qty Rate
Apr-19 0.00 2240 0.07| 51409
May-19 0.00 2240 0.03| 51409
Jun-19 14013.18 2240 544.06| 49086
Jul-19 31915.00 2244 299.89| 48907
Aug-19 25277.00 2244 345.00] 49107
Sep-19 46231.00 2246 228.00| 48944
Oct-19 37625.00 2340 276.00( 49424
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77,606.69

ArnnERyRET St
BLTPS Monthwise Fuel Data % ig
COAL DATA (MT) LDO DATA (KL) FO DATA(MT) Y =

= . Station Closin Openin - Station Closin Openin . Station Closing
B ) Spetiing slack s Cons. stockg :tockg Receipt Cons. stockg gtockg Receipt Cons. stock
Apr-18 1,25,292.05 34,129.76 7,547.98 1,51,873.83 60.21 220.00 27.72 252.49 333.12 221.06 11.66 542.52
May-18 1,561,873.83 27,469.00 53,245.07 1,26,097.76 252.49 0.00 99.02 153.47 542 .52 95.00 60.11 577.41
Jun-18 1,26,097.76 38,276.18 97,899.17 66,474.77 153.47 128.00 109.19 172.28 577 .41 0.00 94.61 482.80
Jul-18 66,474.77 6,575.59 3,111.51 69,938.84 172.28 0.00 0.00 172.28 482.80 0.00 0.00 482.80
Aug-18 69,938.84 11,160.92 0.00 81,099.76 172.28 0.00 0.00 172.28 482.80 0.00 0.00 482.80
Sep-18 81,099.76 18,251.18 0.00 99,350.94 172.28 57.00 0.00 229.28 482.80 0.00 0.00 482.80
Oct-18 99,350.94 70,441.37 34,264.11 1,35,528.20 229.28 788.00 574.28 443.00 482.80 404.99 308.16 579.63
Nov-18 1,35,528.20 72,744.92 77,927.08 1,30,346.04 443.00 186.00 191.58 437.42 579.63 94.30 111.50 562.43
Dec-18 1,30,346.04 1,22,474 14 1,21,537.84 1,31,282.34 437.42 87.00 91.20 433.22 562.43 0.00 44 .06 518.37
Jan-19 1,31,282.34 1,26,011.56 1,18,812.61 1,38,481.28 433.22 124.00 67.80 489.42 518.37 48.00 0.00 566.37
Feb-19 1,38,481.28 30,304.08 26,229.27 1,42,556.09 489.42 51.00 153.84 386.58 566.37 0.00 79.00 487.37
Mar-19 1,42,556.09 96,886.47 1,30,929.56 1,08,513.00 386.58 207.00 234.40 359.18 487.37 27.00 5.08 509.29
Apr-19 93,262.75 0.00 0.00 93,262.75 353.05 85.00 0.00 438.05 492.61 0.00 0.00 492.61
May-19 93,262.75 0.00 0.00 93,262.75 438.05 0.00 0.00 438.05 492.61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Jun-19 93,262.75 0.00 14,013.00 79,249.75 438.05 598.00 544 .06 491.99 492.61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Jul-19 79,249.75 40,304.00 31,915.06 87,638.69 491.99 247.00 301.00 437.99 492 .61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Aug-19 87,638.69 4,403.00 25,277.00 66,764.69 437.99 302.00 345.00 394.99 492 61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Sep-19 66,764.69 26,915.00 46,231.00 47,448.69 394.99 257.00 228.28 423.71 492 .61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Oct-19 47,448.69 58,572.00 37,625.00 68,395.69 423.71 277.00 276.05 424.66 492 61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Nov-19 68,395.69 70,850.00 61,739.00 77,606.69 424.66 131.00 158.00 397.66 492 61 0.00 0.00 492.61
Dec-19 1,17,048.00 1,20,861.00 73,793.69 397.66 190.00 150.00 437.66 492 .61 0.00 0.00 492.61
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ANNEXY RLE- T

GUJARAT MINERAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORA TION LIMLITLD \
(A GOVERNMENT OF GUIARAT = BN T ERERISE) l
CIN: L14100G)196350LCU0206 l

| LIGNITE PROJECT BHAVNAGAR TALUKA  BHAVAALAR
DISTRICT - BHAVNAGAR \
— WD—.
,! tnvoice Date  21/04/20718
‘ Commercial Invoice No. GMDC/SALES/INV/RECL/050/ 2010 1

{
“3Bp+BAp Grade” LIGNITE DISPATCL FROM 01/08/2018 TO 15708/ 2018 (15T v AUG l
18) TO BHAVNAGAR ENERGY COMPANY LTD, (BECL] Power Plant '

SUMMARIZED INVOICE STATEMENT ;

| | | . — =
|BAp Rs. |BSP Rs, | Tetal Lignite ” ‘ "
¢ Ap Total Ar t | gHp Totsl Amount
Farticulars per MT | Per MT Quantity \ BAp Total Amoun ip sl Amuug
i 1
Basic Price | |
(BBp/BAp Grade) 1150 1450 9598889.00V vy
wel01.04.18 1] |
o e e IS SR S e 4
Mine Closure Fund | 198 198 ‘ 1652677.007 )
Huyalty@ 6% ' 69.00T;— 87.00 ! 375933.04, U.ps
NMET of Royalty | ""*’l’ | e
| K ; 14.00Y 0ol
@ 2% w.el. 148 T4 1353208, |
01/01/2016 ‘ g !
DMF of Royalty - | 1 BAp §346.860 4 !
| 2070 26.a0|M1+BBpUMT 172773 00/¢ ‘
@ 30% ‘ 20.7( 6.10 $leios 7 V)
w.el 01/ /0172016 $346.860 MT |
Eml Assessable 1439.081 1762.84 12011786.00 K \ l
Value | | |
: , = [ = -
CCST@2.5% | 3598 44.07 . 300294.00| 300
= T ‘ e — "_’q'
| { |
SGST @ 2.5% [ 35.‘)8" 44.07 | 300294.00¥ ""l
$ub Total | 151 03| 1850.98 | 12612374 .00 * “
GST Camp. Cess 1 400. UO’ 400.00 { 3338744 00N {
it . S PRI 4
Total GST | 47195 48U.14 | 3949332 00Y
Total Price [1911.03| 225098 [ Casssinises”
|- y £ [N
!
, Rv. 1.59,51,118/- |
| Total Amount Payable (llupuul Dne Crore fdl) Nine Lokt Fifty One Thousan
\ 1 w UN MR Humdred Fighices ,
| . Ao ¥
_ v SEAE” . S
kN 000 I PP
/\ulnm red >wn nory
| general Maunager (P'ro
Lnclosures "ﬂ’o\"\“ Lignite Project, Bhavasgar
} Advance Stamp Reciept ﬁfq\ f
12 Statement of Distpatch During Fortnight (via ema 1)
| GMDC GST: 24AAACG7987FIZ]
{Note : Payment within 15 days from date of receiving Invoice, after thut inierest & D12 Q= =
pending amount will be charged for the delayed perod LS i

Bank Details for Online Payment : Account No. 002405019374, 1CCHBar \.'u))(!f wadLay
IKSC:1CIC0000024




